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IN THE PRIVY COUNCIL No. 21 of 1961

10

ON APPEAL
FROM THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT OF THE WEST INDIES 

APPELLATE JURISDICTION, TRINIDAD

B E T W E E N;

ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN trading as
A.J. MAURITZEN & CO. (Plaintiff) Appellant

- and -

GORDON GRANT AND COMPANY LIMITED
(Defendant) Respondent

20

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

No. 1 

WRIT OF SUMMONS

M. HAMEL-SMITH & CO.
Solicitors, Conveyancers

and Notaries Public.

TRINIDAD (Writ of Summons) 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF TRINIDAD & TOBAGO

No. 107 of 1959

BETVffiEN

ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN trading
as A.J. MAURITZEN & CO. Plaintiff

- and - 

GORDON GRANT & COMPANY LIMITED Defendant

ELIZABETH II, by the Grace of God of the United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland 
and of Her other Realms and Territories, Queen, 
Head of the Commonwealth, Defender of the Faith.

To Gordon Grant & Company Limited, 
6, St. Vincent Street, 
Port of Spain.

In the 
Supreme Court

No. 1

Writ of 
Summons.
4th February, 
1959.
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In the 
Supreme Court

No. 1

Writ of 
Summons.
4th February, 
1959
- continued.

We command you, that within Eight days after 
the service of this Writ on ypu, inclusive of the 
day of such service, you do cause an appearance to 
be entered for you in our Supreme Court, Port of 
Spain in an action at the suit of Albert James 
Mauritzen trading as A.J. Mauritzen & Co. and take 
notice that in default of your so doing, the Plain­ 
tiff may proceed therein, and judgment may "be given 
in your absence.

WITNESSs The Honourable Sir Stanley E. Gomes, Kt., 10 
Chief Justice of our said Court at Port of Spain, 
in the said Island of Trinidad, this 4th day of 
February 1959.

U.S. This Writ is to be served within Twelve
Calendar Months from the date thereof, or if 
renewed within Six Calendar Months, from the 
date of the last renewal including the day of 
such date and not afterwards.

The Defendant may appear hereto by entering 
an appearance either personally or by Solicit- 20 
or at the Registrar's Office at the Court 
House, in the City of Port of Spain.

The Plaintiff Claim is: against the Defendant for;-

1. A declaration that the Plaintiff is a tenant
and entitled to possession of a portion of the
first floor of premises No. 4 St. Vincent
Street, Port of Spain, of which the Defendant
is the landlord and that such portion of the
premises extends to the balustrade at the
western end of such building \ 30

2. A declaration that the Plaintiff is entitled
to the use of the passageway and stairway lead­ 
ing from St. Vincent Street aforesaid to the 
first floor of the said premises;

3. A declaration that the Plaintiff is entitled to 
the use of the gallery along the western side 
of the said premises from the head of the said 
stairway to the entrance of the premises occu­ 
pied by him;

4. An injunction restraining the Defendant their 40 
contractors, servants and/or agents and/or 
workmen and each of them from trespassing or 
from carrying out further demolitions or acting 
so as to cause a nuisance to or interfere with 
the peaceful and quiet enjoyment by the



3.

Plaintiff of All that portion of the premises 
occupied by the Plaintiff situate in the City 
of Port of Spain in the Island of Trinidad and 
known and assessed as No. 4 St. Vincent Street 
together with the appurtenances thereto belong­ 
ing which said premises are within the provis­ 
ions of the Rent Restriction Ordinance Chapter 
27 No. 18;

5. A mandatory injunction requiring the Defendant 
10 to restore to its proper condition the balus­ 

trade and windows at the western extremity of 
the premises occupied by the Plaintiff, to 
replace the portion of the stairway from the 
ground floor to the first floor of the premises 
and the galvanized iron roof thereto and the 
portion of the gallery leading from the said 
stairway to the portion of the premises occu­ 
pied by the Plaintiff5

6. Damages for wrongfully removing the balustrade 
20 and windows at the western extremity of the 

premises occupied by the Plaintiff and for 
wrongfully removing the said stairway and 
gallery;

7. Damages for trespass;

8. Damages for nuisance;

9. Damages for breach of covenant for quiet 
enjoyment;

10. Costs.

11. Such further and/or other relief as the nature 
30 of the case may require.

In the 
Supreme Court

No. 1

Writ of 
Summons.

4th February, 
1959

- continued.

This writ was issued by Messrs.'!. HAMEI-SMITH 
& CO., of No. 19, St. Vincent Street,- Port of Spain 
(and whose address for service is'the same), 
Solicitors for'the said Plaintiff, who is a Customs 
and Freight forwarding Agent and resides at No. 66 
Ellerslie Park, Maraval, in the Ward of Diego 
Martin in the Island of Trinidad.

M. HAMEI-SMITH & CO.,;"" 
Plaintiffs Solicitors.



In the 
Supreme Court

Ho. 2

Statement of 
Claim.
4th February, 
1959

4.

No. 2 

STATEMENT OP CLAIM

TRINIDAD

IN THE SUPREME COURT OP TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO

No. 107 of 1959

BETWEEN

ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN trading
as A.J. MAURITZEN & CO. Plaintiff

- and - 

GORDON GRANT & COMPANY LIMITED Defendant 10

STATEMENT OP CLAIM of the above-named Plain­ 
tiff delivered with the Writ of Summons issued herein 
on the 4th day of February, 1959, by his Solicitors, 
Messrs. M. Hamel-Smith & Company, of No.19, St. 
Vincent Street, Port of Spain.

M. HAMEL-SMITH & CO.
Plaintiff's Solicitors.

1. The Plaintiff is a Customs and Freight Forward­ 
ing Agent carrying on business on a portion of the 
first floor of premises known as No. 4 St. Vincent 
Street in the City of Port of Spain in the Island 
of Trinidad, of which he has been in possession as 
a tenant of the Defendant since the month of July, 
1954, at a rental of $44.00 per month and to the 
quiet enjoyment of which he is entitled. The said 
premises are within the provisions of the Rent 
Restriction Ordinance Chapter 27 No. 18

2. The Defendant is a Limited Liability Company 
having its registered office at No. 6 St. Vincent 
Street in the said City and Island and has since 
the month of July 1954 been the landlord of the 
Plaintiff.

3. On the 13th day of November, 1958 the Defendant 
through its agent George Howden commenced ejectment 
proceedings against the Plaintiff for possession of 
the said premises occupied by him as aforesaid and 
on the said ejectment matter coming on for hearing 
on the 3rd of December, 1958 the matter was adjourn­ 
ed to the 9th day of March, 1959.

20

30
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4. 'The Defendant by its servants and/or agents 
unlawfully and in "breach of its implied covenant 
for quiet enjoyment;-

(a) on or about the llth of December, 1958 removed
the windows on the Western side of the premises
occupied by the Plaintiff;

(b) on or about the 13th day of December, 1958 
commenced demolition work on the first floor 
of the said premises adjoining the portion 

10 occupied by the Plaintiff and as a result dust 
and dirt have been constantly entering the 
premises occupied by the Plaintiff and the 
Plaintiff has been greatly disturbed by noise;

(c) On or about the 20th day of December, 1958 re­ 
moved the roof over the stairway by which the 
Plaintiff had access to the said premises rent- 
ed by the Plaintiff;

(d) on or about the 23rd day of December 1958
erected galvanized iron sheets along the side 

20 of the premises occupied by the Plaintiff to
try to prevent the dust and dirt from entering 
the said premises but removed the said galvan­ 
ized iron sheets on or about the 29th of Janu­ 
ary 1959 and as a result all the dust and dirt 
created by the work of demolition and by the 
operation of the Defendant's coffee huller 
downstairs of the said premises occupied by 
the Plaintiff.

(e) on or about the 10th or llth day of January, 
30 1959 blocked the stairway by which the Plain­ 

tiff had access to the premises occupied by 
the plaintiff and erected another temporary 
stairway without any roof thereto;

(f) on or about the 24th or 25th day of January, 
1959 removed portions of the floor of the 
gallery by which the Plaintiff had previously 
had access to the said premises rented by the 
Plaintiff;

(g) on or about the said 24th or 25th day of 
40 January removed the balustrade at the western 

end of the premises which the Plaintiff 
actually occupies and removed the sign board 
bearing the name of the Plaintiff's firm.

In the 
Supreme Court

No. 2

Statement of 
Claim.
4th February, 
1959
- continued.

5. And the Defendant continues to commit acts of
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In the 
Supreme Court

No. 2

Statement of 
Claim.
4th February, 
1959
- continued.

trespass and to interfere with the Plaintiff's 
rights under the tenancy and intends unless 
restrained to continue similar acts of trespass 
and/or interference.

6. By reason of the foregoing the Plaintiff has 
experienced great difficulty in carrying on his 
"business of a Customs and Freight Forwarding Agent 
and is thereby much damnified.

The plaintiff claims:-

1. A declaration that the Plaintiff is a tenant 10 
and entitled to possession of a portion of the 
first floor of premises No. 4 St. Vincent 
Street, Port of Spain, of which the Defendant 
is the landlord and that such portion of the 
premises extends to the balustrade at the 
Western end of such building;

2. A declaration that the Plaintiff is entitled 
to the use of the passageway and stairway 
leading from St. Vincent Street aforesaid to 
the first floor of the said premises; 20

3. A declaration that the Plaintiff is entitled 
to the use of the gallery along the Western 
side of the said premises from the head of the 
said stairway to the entrance of the premises 
occupied by him.

4« An injunction restraining the Defendant their 
contractors, servants and/or agents and/or 
workmen and each of them from trespassing or 
from carrying out further demolitions or act­ 
ing so as to cause a nuisance to or interfere 30 
with the peaceful and quiet enjoyment by the 
Plaintiff of All that portion of the premises 
occupied by the plaintiff situate in the City 
of Port of Spain in the Island of Trinidad and 
known and assessed as Ho.4 St.Vincent Street 
together with the appurtenances thereto belong­ 
ing which said premises are within the provis­ 
ions of the Rent Restriction Ordinance Chapter 
27 No.18;

5. A mandatory injunction requiring the Defendant 40 
to restore to its proper condition the balus­ 
trade and windows at the Western extremity of 
the premises occupied by the Plaintiff, to 
replace the portion of the stairway from the
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ground floor to the first floor of the premises 
and the galvanized iron roof thereto and the 
portion of the gallery leading from the said 
stairway to the portion of the premises occu­ 
pied by the Plaintiff.

6. Damages for wrongfully removing the balustrade 
and windows at the Western extremity of the 
premises occupied by the Plaintiff and for 
wrongfully removing the said stairway and 

10 gallery|

7. Damages for trespass;

8. Damages for nuisance;

9. Damages for breach of covenant for quiet 
enjoyment;

10. Costs.

11. Such further and/or other relief as the nature 
of the case may require.

R. HAMEI SMITH 
Of Counsel.

In the 
Supreme Court

No. 2

Statement of 
Claim.
4th February, 
1959
- continued.

20 No. 3

DEFENCE AND COUNTERCLAIM 

•TRINIDAD 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO

No. 107 of 1959

BETWEEN

ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN trading
as A.J. MAURITZEN & CO. Plaintiff

- and -

GORDON GRANT AND COMPANY LIMITED
Defendants

No. 3

Defence and 
Counterclaim.
12th February, 
1959.

DEFENCE AND COUNTERCLAIM

DEFENCE 

1. The Defendants admit paragraphs 1 and 2 of the
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In the 
Supreme Court

Ho. 3
Defence and 
Counterclaim.
12th February, 
1959
- continued.

Statement of Claim and say that the portion of 
premises let to the Plaintiff comprises a room 
approximately 19 feet by 50 feet at the northern­ 
most end of the first floor thereof and includes 
the portion of the balcony over the St.Vincent 
Street footway, immediately opposite the said room.

2. On the llth day of September 1958 the whole of 
the Defendants' premises at No. 4 St.Vincent Street 
including the portion occupied by the Plaintiff was 
severely damaged by high winds. 10

3. On the 30th day of September 1958 the Defend­ 
ants served upon the Plaintiff notice to quit and 
deliver up his said portion of the premises which 
notice expired on the 31st day of October 1958.

4. By a notice dated the 4th day of October 1958 
under section 208 (2) of the Port of Spain Corpora­ 
tion Ordinance Chapter 39 No.1 the City Engineer of 
the said Corporation required the Defendants to take 
down the roof and the parapet wall along the southern 
and western sides of the said premises and the bal- 20 
cony thereon over the footways on South Quay and St. 
Vincent Street within 30 days of the said notice. 
The matters complained of in the said notice have 
since the said llth day of September 1958 been a 
danger to the public and the occupiers of the said 
premises.

5. The Defendants admit paragraph 3 of the State­ 
ment of Claim and further state that on the 29th 
day of January 1959 another complaint was made under 
the Summary Ejectment Ordinance against the Plain- 30 
tiff for the possession of his said portion of the 
premises and the summons therefor has been served on 
the Plaintiff for hearing on the 13th day of Febru­ 
ary 1959.

6. In pursuance of the said demolition order the 
Defendants have inter alia removed the roof and the 
parapet wall of the said premises up to sixteen 
feet and twelve feet respectively south of the 
Plaintiff's said portion and a portion of the bal­ 
cony over the St. Vincent Street footway up to a 40 
point twenty-seven feet from the Northern end of 
the said premises and all the balustrade and window 
frames along the said balcony. The Defendants have 
erected a temporary balustrade along the edge of the 
said remaining portion of the balcony.

7. Save as expressly admitted herein the Defendants



deny all the allegations of fact contained in para­ 
graph 4 to 6 of the Statement of Claim as if the 
same were herein set out and traversed seriatim.

8. Further or in the alternative the Defendants 
say that the Statement of Claim discloses no cause 
of action in respect of the matters complained of 
in sub-paragraphs (c) (e) and (f) of paragraph 4.

COUNTERCLAIM

9« The Defendants repeat paragraphs 2 to 6 hereof 
10 and say that in spite of the said notice to quit

and the dangerous condition of the Plaintiff's said 
portion the Plaintiff has refused and continues to 
refuse to deliver up the same.

10. And the Defendants counterclaim for possession 
of the portion of the said premises occupied by the 
Plaintiff.

E.H. HAMEL WELLS 
Of Counsel.

DELIVERED on the 12th day of February 1959 by 
20 Messrs. J.D. Sellier and Co. of 13 St. Vincent

Street, Port of Spain, Solicitors for the Defend­ 
ants.

J.D. SELLIER & CO. 
Defendants' Solicitors.

In the 
Supreme Court

No. 3

Defence and 
Counterclaim.
12th February, 
1959
- continued.

30

No. 4 

REPLY AND DEFENCE TO COUNTERCLAIM

TRINIDAD

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO

No. 107 of 1959
BETWEEN

ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN trading as
A.J. MAURITZEN & CO. Plaintiff

- and - 

GORDON GRANT & COMPANY LIMITED Defendant

REPLY AND DEFENCE TO COUNTERCLAIM

1. The Plaintiff joins issue with the Defendant 
upon its Defence.

No. 4

Reply and 
Defence to 
Counterclaim.
19th February, 
1959.
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In the 
Supreme Court

No. 4

Reply and 
Defence to 
Counterclaim.
19th February, 
1959
- continued.

AS TO THE COUNTERCLAIM

2. The Plaintiff repeats paragraphs 1 and 2 of 
the Statement of Claim and further says that the 
Defendant is not entitled to possession of the 
premises occupied by him.

3. The Plaintiff further denies that his said 
tenancy was determined by the alleged notice of the 
30th September, 1958 or at all.

4. The Plaintiff also denies that the City Engin­ 
eer by the alleged notice of the 4th day of October, 10 
1958 or at all made any order for the demolition of 
any part of the premises comprised in the Plaintiffte 
said tenancy or that the alleged dangers referred to 
in paragraph 4 of the Defence exist. If any such do 
exist (which is denied) the same was caused by and/ 
or principally due to the acts and/or omissions of 
the Defendant itself, its servants and/or agents.

5. The Plaintiff does not admit the service of any 
complaint other than that referred to in paragraph 3 
of the Statement of Claim. 20

6. The Plaintiff will contend that none of the 
matters alleged in paragraphs 4 and 6 of the Defence 
constitutes any answer to his claim herein.

7. Save as expressly admitted herein the Plaintiff 
denies each and every allegation of fact contained 
in the counterclaim as if the same were herein 
specifically set forth and traversed.

R.P. HAMEL-SMITH 
of Counsel.

DELIVERED the 19th day of February, 1959, by Messrs. 30 
M. Hamel-Smith & Co., of No.19, St. Vincent Street, 
Port of Spain, Solicitors for the Plaintiff.

M. HAMEL-SMITH & CO. 
Plaintiff's Solicitors.
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No. 5 In the
Supreme Court

JUDGE'S NOTES OF PROCEEDINGS AND ————— 
EVIDENCE AT TRIAL No. 5

TRINIDAD Judge's Notes. 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO

No. 107 of 1959 2nd March, —————————— 1959. 
BETWEEN

ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN trading
as A.J. MAURITZEN & CO. Plaintiff

10 - and -

GORDON GRANT AND COMPANY LTD. Defendant

JUDGE'S NOTES Of EVIDENCE

Monday 2nd March, 1959

J.A. Wharton, Q.C. (R.P. Hamel-Smith with him) for 
the plaintiff

M.J. Butt, Q.C. (E.H. Wells with him) for the 
defendant. Wharton asks for amendment in para.4-(a) 
of Statement of Claim. Substitutes January 1959 
for December 1958. (No objection by Butt Q.C.) 

20 Amendment allowed.

Wharton opens:

Access to plaintiff's premises by means of 
staircase. Plaintiff in possession of room and 
gaJQery, Gallery was partitioned off on north and 
south. Plaintiff used gallery to accommodate 
persons coming to him on business.

Structure of gallery is cantilever beam 
supported by brackets. Main part of building is of 
thick masonry reinforced in part by railway rails. 

30 Main Walls of considerable mass run north and south 
sides of building. Main walls continue up to 
columns. Partitioning of first floor by wooden 
partition. Columns about 2 feet square. On top of 
that are the roof trusses. Over plaintiff's main 
office there is a ceiling - gallery close boarded.
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Roof itself is a steel truss roof. Steel girders 
and trusses with some wooden struts unceiled but 
covered with galvanized iron.

Roof a gable roof, gallery lean to. Parapet 
wall about 30 inches high at junction of main part 
of roof with gallery running all along the building 
on St. Vincent Street side. Behind the parapet wall 
guttering to take off the storm water.

The effective structure of the gallery was of 
steel beams. 10

Plaintiff a tenant at J2f44 per month rent.

On llth September 1958 there was a windstorm 
about Port of Spain around 1 p.m. a Thursday.

Defendants are owners of a continuous line of 
premises numbered 2, 4, 6 and 8 St. Vincent Street. 
Occupies entire premises of No.6 - ground floor - 
first floor. Ground floor of No.4 is also occupied 
by the defendants, They store things. Defendant 
occupied northernmost part of first floor. 
Immediately south of plaintiff was premises occu- 20 
pied by Atlantic Traders, then one Ahing - Automo­ 
bile Association - Escala and Navarro and anor.

Question of effect of windstorm will be a 
matter for consideration. Burden will be on the 
defence to show that the effect of the windstorm 
was such as to give rise to a reasonable require­ 
ment for possession. Ejectment summonses are 
issued in December 1958, January 1959.

On the afternoon of the llth September 1958 
the plaintiff and some other tenants of the defend- 30 
ant spoke to two of the Directors of the defendant 
Company, Commander Bushe and Major Howden. They 
(or one or other of them) told the plaintiff that 
they would restore the damage to the premises but 
that first things first. The defendants themselves 
occupied No.6 which is of different structure from 
No.4 No.6had slate roof, it also suffered damage.

The defendants began work of clearing and 
repairing No.6 the same day and completed the work 
within about 2 weeks - roof completely restored - 40 
changed from slate to galvanized iron. Since then 
entire building of No.6 has been re-roofed in slate. 
No repair work was done at all to any part of the 
premises owned by the defendants south of No.6.
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About 9tli and 10th December, 1959, defendants 
began demolishing the building at Nos.2 and 4 i.e. 
the first floor except for the plaintiff's premises 
and a little portion of the floor south of the 
plaintiff.

Since commencement of this action defendants 
have cut off the columns and are building a roof 
about 9 feet lower than the original roof of Nos.2 
and 4. Defendants over a week-end broke down the 

10 balustrade of the gallery and took off the windows. 
(Most of the gallery roof was blown away, glass 
louvres broken by the wind.) Defendants took away 
plaint if f s s i gn.

Removal of roof exposed plaintiff's staircase. 
Defendants put up a temporary staircase to replace 
the one they demolished. This staircase is un­ 
covered. Plaintiff continued to make requests to 
the defendant who continued to avoid the issue.

On 30th September, 1958 defendants wrote letter 
20 to plaintiff (1).

Notice to quit dated 30th September, 1958 (2).

This letter of 30th September 1958 was first 
intimation that defendants did not intend to do any 
repairs.

In the 
Supreme Court

(3)

(4)

30 (5)

Letter from defendant to plaintiff of 3/10/58 

Letter from defendant to plaintiff of 3/10/58 

Letter from defendant to plaintiff of 7/10/58

Notice from City Engineer dated 4/10/58 (6).

(a) is disputed by plaintiff.

(b) no dispute as to cracks but wall could 
easily be repaired.

(c) this is disputed.

It is for defendant to show that this was a 
proper requirement under section 208 (2).

(N.B. sec.208 (2) Consequence of sec.208(4). Failure 
to comply with notice.)

No. 5

Judge's Notes
Counsel for 
Plaintiff.
2nd March, 
1959
- continued.



14.

In the 
Supreme Court

No. 5

Judge's Notes,
Counsel for 
Plaintiff.
2nd March, 
1959
- continued.

letter by plaintiff to defendants 31/10/58 (7).

Letter by defendant's solicitors to plaintiff 
7/11/58 (8).

Letter by plaintiff to defendant's solicitors 
10/11/58 (9).

Letter by defendants to plaintiff 9/12/58 (10).

Letter by plaintiff's solicitors to defendant's 
solicitors 17/12/58 (11).

Letter by defendant's solicitors to plaintiff's 
solicitors 17/12/58 (12). 10

Letter by plaintiff's solicitors to defendant's 
solicitors 22/12/58 (13).

Letter by defendant's solicitors to plaintiff's 
solicitors 23/12/58 (14).

Letter by plaintiff to defendants 23/12/58 (15).

Letter by defendant to plaintiff 2/1/59 (16). 

Luncheon Adjournment, 

Court resumes at 1.30 p.m.

Re issues raised on pleadings. Dispute as to 
effects of the storm on the building. 20

Submit that re City Engineer's notice, onus on 
defendants to satisfy Court as to the contents of 
the notice.

By consent photos put in and marked Bl, 2 and 3.

Lavender v. Betts, (1942) 2 All E.R.72. Submit 
mere service of notice by City Engineer is no legal 
justification for a trespass. Landlord must prove 
that the premises are required by law to be demol­ 
ished.

Woodfall on Landlord and Tenant 24th Edition 30 
(1939) p.785.

637.
Cockburn v. Smith, (1926) 2 K.B.119, p.635,

Booth v. Thompson (1923) Ch. 397.
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Dooknee Harrysingh. vs. Standard Distributors 
Ltd., Judgment of Supreme Court dated 22/1/38.

Para.6 of the Defence admits facts which amount 
to a trespass unless justified "by the Defence.

Plaintiff says the storm did a certain amount 
of damage, this damage did not create a danger at 
all in respect of the plaintiff's premises - No.4 
St. Vincent Street probably not in respect of No.2.

In so far as there was any danger to the pub- 
10 lie, the remedy was simple and could have been 

carried out quite easily by the defendants.

Pacts show that defendants were intent on 
taking advantage of the storm to get the plaintiff 
out.

It may be said that landlord is under no 
liability to repair in absence of express agreement.

Where landlord is himself in occupation of a 
part of the premises, he is under liability to 
repair portion in his occupation if it is a danger 

20 to the tenant or if it constitutes a disturbance of 
the tenant's quiet enjoyment.

Submit - landlord retains possession of the 
whole of the roof of Ho.4.

In the 
Supreme Court

No. 5

Judge's Notes.
Counsel for 
Plaintiff.
2nd March, 
1959
- continued.

1232.
23 Halsbury's Laws (3rd Edition) p.562 para.

PLAINTIFF'S EVIDENCE

No. 6

EVIDENCE OP ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN 

ALBERT JAMES MAIM ITZEN sworn states;

30 I live at Ellerslie Park, Maraval. I carry on 
business at 4 St. Vincent Street as a Customs and 
Freight Forwarding Agent under the style of A.J. 
Mauritzen and Company.

I have been the tenant of the defendant company 
in respect of certain premises since 1950. I then 
occupied the premises immediately south of the

Plaintiff's 
Evidence

No. 6

Evidence of 
Albert James 
Mauritzen.
Examination.
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present premises. I became the tenant of the pres­ 
ent premises in July, 1954.

On Thursday llth September there was a wind­ 
storm - they call it a freak wind - about 1 p.m.

The defendants are the owners of the block of 
buildings between South Quay and Marine Square, 
Port of Spain. I occupy the northernmost portion 
of No. 4 St. Vincent Street which adjoins Ho.6, 
occupied by the defendants as their main place of 
business. 10

I was in San Fernando at the time of the storm. 
I heard of it on the Radio. I returned about 2.30 
p.m. I rushed straight to my office. The roof of 
the gallery has been blown away and the greater 
part of the glass louvres had been blown out. The 
place was covered with debris, and broken glass, it 
was in a pretty bad mess.

My premises consisted of a single office which 
I partitioned myself. There were a number of things 
broken, there was a hole in the gallery floor and a 20 
hole in the office floor.

A beam came down smashed my counter and made a 
hole in the office floor - the centre of the office.

The gallery on St. Vincent Street was part of 
the premises of which I was a tenant. It was used 
by a subsidiary company of mine. There was actually 
a desk in it occupied by one of my clerks. This is 
the part of the office to which the public v\rent.

Sketch of premises admitted by consent and 
marked 'C'. 30

Two offices south of mine i.e. Trinidad Auto­ 
mobile Association and Escala and Navarro were also 
affected. They also occupied a part of the gallery. 
The gallery roof was also damaged.

I occupied no part of No.2 St.Vincent Street.

I believe I saw Commander Bushe and Major 
Howden two of the defendant Company's directors on 
the Saturday 13th September, 1958. I asked them 
what was happening. I believe Commander Bushe 
replied "First things first". They were already 40 
repairing their own premises. I believe from the
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first afternoon they had people on the roof. I was 
completely under the impression that as soon as 
they had done their own they would do ours.

I spoke to Major Howden at least a couple of 
times after. I asked him what was happening about 
it. He replied nothing was decided about it "First
things first".

Nothing whatsoever was done to the premises. 
No debris was removed. Water spouts were leaking 

10 on to the gallery. The guttering behind the para­ 
pet wall was blocked with debris. The water was 
falling on the gallery. I repaired my spouting. 
The debris in the guttering was removed about the 
beginning of February, after the demolition work.

After the storm the roof had gone from the 
gallery, only the frame along the balustrade was 
left and three windows. The glass louvre windows 
were blown out, the frames were left. The balus­ 
trade is merely a retaining wall for the windows.

20 The rafters rested on the frame. They were 
gone. The balustrade v/as about 3 feet high. The 
glass louvres were put up about a couple years ago. 
I don't believe I spoke to Commander Bushe after 
the 13th September, 1958.

The rear part of the roof of the main office 
was leaking badly - the portion over the toilets
and wash basins. This fact was brought to the 
attention of the defendants.

One day when most of the other people had moved 
30 or were moving Major Howden came up and asked me 

how I was getting on; he asked me if I had found 
any place. I said "No". This must have been early 
November.

I put 2i- big sheets to keep out the rain. This 
was on the western side on St.Vincent Street. I put 
up the frontage.

This photograph B.I ?/as taken on the 7th Janu­ 
ary 1959.

In B.2 the balustrade is gone - also the 
40 remaining windows. The windows were removed one 

weekend. The following weekend the balustrade was 
taken out. I think that the windows were removed 
on the week-end of the 10th - 12th January and a

In the 
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Evidence of 
Albert James 
Mauritzen.
Examination 
- continued.
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week or two later the balustrade went out.

At no time was I asked if anyone could enter 
my premises. I came down on a Monday morning and 
found these things done. The Sheets I put up were 
of reinforced plywood.

About the 20th December, 1958, and thereafter - 
before and after Christmas demolition work was 
going on, long wooden planks were dropped from one 
end. There was bound to be noise, plenty of dust. 
At a certain stage they demolished the main pillars 1Q 
of the building with sledges, pickaxes down to 
about 3 feet from the first floor level. Dust and 
dirt entered my place and covered my papers. This 
continued for over a month, much more than a month.

I did not bring it to the knowledge of the 
defendants. I spoke to Mr. Ackelsberg he was in 
charge of the demolitions. I think I also spoke to 
Mr. Howden once.

The noise was so bad that if one was speaking 
on the telephone you would have to wait till the 20 
noise finished before the listener could hear what 
you were saying.

The dust got on your papers. If you dusted at 
8 a.m. you would be dusting again at 9 a.m. Old 
paint and old wood would be full of dust. This 
sort of disturbance continued daily.

I believe I spoke to Mr. Howden about this. I 
can't be sure about it. I spoke to Mr.Ackelsberg 
about this about 2 or 3 times at the site where the 
work was being done. 30

I never phoned Ackelsberg to complain about 
dust or dirt only as this was so obvious. I said 
to him "What are you doing about this dust", he 
said, "There is bound to be a certain amount of 
dust".

He put up a row of galvanized sheets over the 
slats on the southern side of my premises to dull 
the noise and to prevent the dust coming in. They 
remained there for about a month or so and were 
taken down. The noise and dust were very much less 40 
at that stage.

The removal of the eastern wall on the southern 
side of my premises caused the coffee husks to enter
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my premises 
worse.

This was always a nuisance but became

This was the result of the demolition of the 
main wall on the eastern side. This is still con­ 
tinuing.

Tuesday 3rd March 1959

ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN, (continuing in examination- 
In^-chief to Wharton Q.C. )

The beam I referred to as falling during the 
10 wind-storm was of wood. It was about 2" x 4" or 2" 

x 6". I think it was the centre beam holding the 
roof of the gallery. It was lengthways not a cross 
beam. It was the length of the gallery. I believe 
18 feet.

This morning 3rd March, 1959 the nuisance from 
the coffee husks was worse. I have a sample of the 
stuff blown on a desk in my office. I took this 
off a desk in my office about 9.30 a.m. after the 
dust had been removed about 8.20 a.m. by the office 

20 boy. I took this off from the exposed surface of 
the desk itself. There was a typewriter on the 
desk also a telephone. The desk is 37" x 25".

There is nothing in the office that is not 
affected. Any page you take up is covered with it. 
It goes into typewriters and everything. I had to 
put out of use an electric calculator machine 
because it was getting filled with this stuff about 
6 weeks or two months ago. There was an access 
door on the pavement to my premises and the Auto- 

30 mobile Association. There was a small hallway then 
you turned left upstairs came to the landing and 
turned left again to go to the second half of the 
stairs.

This staircase was within the building itself, 
not exposed, each side was boarded off - there were 
also handrails.

At the entrance downstairs there is now a 
warning sign re the condition of the gallery. There 
was a barricade put up which blocked the entrance 

40 to my doorway downstairs. This was sometime in 
January, 1959.

These four photos were taken on the 7th January 
1959. They show the barricade I have spoken about.
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Gross- 
examination.

Photos put in by consent and marked E.I - 4.

The first half of the staircase has not been 
touched. At the half way landing I now turn right 
instead of left and go up a new staircase - it's 
about two-thirds the size of the old one. It has 
no handrails, one side is boarded up - the side 
that was open to the floor below. The other side 
is about 4 inches from the wall, there is an open 
window space on this side approximately 1 square 
foot in area. It is completely uncovered i.e. open 
to the sky.

The storm had no effect on the structure of the 
stairway. This is a photo showing the position of 
new stairway. Photo was taken about 20th or 22nd 
of February - F.I. This is a photo taken from my 
doorway looking northwest and shows the temporary 
balustrade, F.3.

Photo F.I shows two pieces of scantling pro­ 
jecting into the well of the stairway. There are 
some large nails protruding. This photo shows the 
temporary balustrade inside of premises. Put in 
and marked P.4.

One support holds up the balustrade - the other 
holds up the original partition. When the roof blew 
off it tore up the cement off the parapet. The 
gallery part of my office could easily have been 
repaired. 
or do any repairs to it.

I had no obligation to maintain the roof

The defendants had a woman come in once a month 
to clean the staircase etc., they did repairs to the 
toilet also painting.

After the storm all the tenants were left with­ 
out electricity. We still are.

Cross-examined But t;

I pay $44 per month rent for the premises. In 
my opinion there was no reason why all the damage 
done by the storm could not have been repaired.

I am not a builder, nor an engineer. I have_ 
never built any premises under my siipervision. i 
am not in a position to estimate the cost of the 
notional repairs I have in mind. I have given it a 
thought. I am not in a position to give any compet­ 
ent answer as to the cost of repairs to the whole

10

20

30

40



21.

premises "because I am not a builder. The same 
applies in relation to the premises occupied by me.

Questions V/ould you be surprised to hear that the
cost of repairing the storm damage to the 
whole building would be about $30,000?

Answers Yes, because from what I saw with my own 
eyes and what I have been told by a Civil 
Engineer who has examined the premises on 
my behalf.

10 I got a Civil Engineer to examine my premises 
and what could be seen of the other portion from my 
premises. This was about January.

My Engineer came to examine the premises but 
required permission from the defendants to examine 
the whole premises before he could give me a report 
upon them. He did not get permission and could not 
do so.

Questions Would you be surprised to know that the 
total rent per month the defendants get 

20 for the whole building is #300?

Answer: No, the exact figure is #309 per month.

As far as the whole building is concerned I 
would not say very serious damage was done by the 
storm, the damage to the whole building (Nos.2, 4, 
St, Vincent Street) was not considerable.

Premises known as Nos..2-4 consist of one 
building. No.6 is a separate building. I believe 
that lTos.2-4 are assessed and rated as one entity.

My office was open yesterday. I employ one 
30 office boy and one clerk. Both were at work

yesterday. They are there this morning. They have 
been there all the time apart from Sundays, Public 
Holidays etc.

It might have been early in January that I 
took away the electric calculator. It could not be 
used because there was no electricity. I had 
covered it in case of rain comiJig through. The 
cover was a heavy water proofed paper. The calcu­ 
lator was in an open book case. It was covered to 

4-0 prevent rain getting on it. The cover would not 
have prevented dust getting into it.
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l should imagine it was about early January 
that I first noticed dust from the coffee huller. 
There has always been a certain amount of dust from 
the coffee huller from ever since the huller was 
put in some years ago. The huller operates off and 
on - sometimes not for 2-3 weeks. The dust comes 
through the space left by the removal of the eastern 
wall. Before that the dust was not too bad. It is 
the taking down of the wall that allowed the dust to 
come to me. 10

Witness referred to photos E.I to 4. E.3 shows 
the way in which the pavement has been barred off, 
thereby cutting off access to the bottom of my stair­ 
case. There is an opening left in the barricade 
slightly south of the entrance to the staircase. It 
is intended as a means of access to the building. 
The purpose of the barricade is to prevent people 
walking along the pavement under the gallery. I 
don't consider it dangerous. Witness referred to 
letter A (13). 20

1 don't consider the balustrade was dangerous. 
I consider the fencing off of the pavement necessary 
on account of debris, etc. falling. I don't com­ 
plain of that.

I consider the entrance over the pavement too 
small and badly placed. Anyone passing by in a car 
would think that Mauritzen's business is closed.

I put up notices "A.J. Mauritzen & Co. open 
above", also another down below "Business as usual". 
Unless someone ?/ere on foot he probably would not 30 
see it.

On arrival at first landing of stairway, in­ 
stead of going to the left you go to the right and 
come near to iny entrance.

The new staircase is not a patch on the old 
one, it has no handrails, no cover, and collects 
all the dust and debris from the roof.

Passing by the old staircase I would come out 
at the gallery further south and would have to walk 
along the roofless gallery to get to my premises. I 40 
knew that the defendants had received a notice from 
the City Engineer to pull down the gallery.

I did not complain about the boarding up of 
the pavement downstairs. I spoke to the foreman in
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charge of the work, one Bleasdell, about it. I 
asked him about it whenever I saw him for 4-5 
days. Finally I spoke to Mr. Ackelsberg who had 
the entrance changed and put immediately in front 
of the doorway. At present I have no complaint. 
The "barricade has been cleared away after I com­ 
plained to the public Health Authorities.

I complained about the staircase to Ackelsberg 
about a day or two after it was put in. I found it 

10 in on the Monday morning. He said the other stair­ 
case was no use - he was carrying out instructions 
in putting in this staircase instead. I believe he 
also told me they were pulling down the roof to a 
lower level. Prom what I saw, it was necessary to 
remove the staircase if the roof were to be lowered.

I asked Ackelsberg what's happening to my 
place. He said, "We will cut a door in your wall", 
i.e. after the gallery came down. This would have 
been a reasonable arrangement if the gallery had 

20 come down. I did not demur to it. It was the
defendants place and they could do as they liked 
with it. I did not tell him oranyone else repre­ 
senting the defendant Company that I did not con­ 
sent to it. I was not asked. Moreover, Ackelsberg 
was always saying that he was only acting on 
instructions. I spoke to Ackelsberg about early 
January a few days after the staircase was put up. 
I made no protest myself to the defendant Company. 
I reported this to my solicitors.

30 Lunch eon ad journment.

Court resumes at 1.30 p«m.

Witness referred to photo P.I.

I never complained about the two projecting 
pieces of wood nor about the two nails. Witness 
referred to P. 4. One piece of wood supports the 
partition. Witness referred to B.I. It shows the 
top gallery and my section of it before the removal 
of balustrade and windows by the defendant Company.

Question; If balustrade and windows had not been 
40 taken down, what would you have done to

prevent the rain coming in.

Answer: I put up a frontage of plywood sheets the 
Saturday after the storm. 
B.2. shows the gallery with my frontage. 
Witness referred to B.3. B.I. shows on 
the extreme left of the gallery, the 
balustrade and the windows.
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B.2. was taken after removal of the balustrade 
and windows, it does not show the frontage.

B.3 shows the frontage, which I put up a couple 
days after the storm.

The balustrade and windows were removed after I 
had put up the frontage.

This was completely open to the elements. I 
had to do something about it. I did no other con­ 
struction work after the removal of the balustrade 
and windows. No one interfered with the frontage. IQ 
All my personal effects were behind the frontage.

The balustrade and windows were removed a week­ 
end. I don't know how they took the balustrade down. 
Witness shown B.I. The balustrade is a continuous 
structure from the northern end along St.Vincent 
Street. The windows were on top of the balustrade.

Question? My instructions are that on one day during 
the week the contractor Ackelsberg, went 
through your door with the leave of some­ 
one on your premises, removed the empty 20 
window panes and took them away?

Answer s Yes.

After that the windows were removed and then 
the balustrade both at week-ends, I believe differ­ 
ent weekends. The whole balustrade was removed 
during a weekend. Every time something really 
annoying happened, it happened during a week-end. 
I don't know in what way the balustrade was removed.

The number of my premises is 2 and 4 St.Vincent 
Street. 30

I believe T saw Commander Bushe and Major 
Howden on the 13th September. I am certain I met 
them together. I vrouldn't like to be bound by the 
date. It must have been within a week. I saw them 
both together. I am sure about that.

Question: Would it surprise you to hear that Major
Howden was out of the Colony at that time?

Answer: It would surprise me.

I wouldn't like to swear to it that the persons 
to whom I spoke .were Commander Bushe and. Major 40 
Howden. I spoke to two directors and I have a
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strong feeling that I spoke to Commander Bushe in 
the presence of Major Howden.

Apart from removal of balustrade and windows, 
I am not aware that the defendant Company trespassed 
inside my premises. I believe the beam that fell 
ran lengthways and not cross-wise. This is what 
caused the hole that allowed the water to run.

4

I did not make a formal complaint to the Com­ 
pany about the removal of the balustrade. As far 

10 as I know my solicitors immediately took out an 
injunction or something. I think the balustrade 
was taken down about the week-end of the 23rd Janu­ 
ary, 1959.

I made no formal complaint to the Company 
about the dust and noise of the demolition opera­ 
tions. I did speak to Mr. Ackelsberg about the 
mess, the rubble. If he didn't hear it must have 
been on account of the noise going on. I couldn't 
say whether he heard or not.

20 The main complaint I made to Mr. Ackelsberg 
was about the barricade. The last time I spoke to 
him was in connection with the dropping of a piece 
of cement. I don't think I spoke to him about the 
removal of the balustrade.

Question: Mr. Bleasdell instructs me that you told 
him that you had no intention of giving 
up possession unless you got alternate 
accommodation?

Answer: That's quite correct.

30 I did not bring these proceedings because I 
was faced with the prospect of being ejected.

Witness referred to correspondence 'A 1 .

I know that all the other tenants gave up 
possession. The defendant Company stopped its 
operations short of my premises apart from the re­ 
moval of the balustrade and windows.

I had been asked to quit and rather than having 
a lot of inconvenience going to court and so I was 
prepared to remove if I could find another suitable 

4-0 place.
It is not 'true that later I sought to make use 

of the condition of the premises in order to resist 
an order for possession.
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Re-examined Wharton;

I had made an application for an injunction in 
interlocutory proceedings. Certain affidavits were 
filed, one by Mr. Ackelsberg.

My old letter heads are addressed 2/4 St. 
Vincent Street. I am still using them. It was 
during my occupation of former premises next door 
to the south that these letter heads v/ere printed.

I receive receipts from the defendant Company 
for payment of rent. Receipts -out in and marked J.Q 
G.I and 2.

I have been conducting my business up to now 
from 8 a.m. to 4.15 p.m. There was never any 
communication to me by the defendant of its inten­ 
tion to demolish any part of the building so far as 
it'affected my portion of the premises.

I never agreed to the defendant removing any 
part of my premises. I was never asked. I was 
never given any notice that., the stairway was going 
to be removed. 20

I and two other men shook the balustrade in my 
premises and further along. It did not budge. I, 
Mr. Escala, Mr. Wilson. We tried it at two points 
at my portion of the premises outside.

My office had a ceiling also the others, the 
ceiling was removed from the building other than my 
part, the main roof was removed south of my part. 
I wouldn't like to swear whether the balustrade is 
of wood or concrete.

My Writ was filed on the 4th February, 1959. 30 
I had given instructions to my solicitors about a 
week or 10 days before. I did so because I thought 
the limit had come. It had nothing to do with the 
ejectment proceedings.

The taking down of the balustrade is what made 
me mad, the last straw that broke the camel's back. 
This was about the week-end of the 23rd - 24th 
January 1959. That is what finally drove me to 
this action.

I swore to an affidavit in the morning and the 40 
same afternoon they started putting back the balus­ 
trade. The 'empty frames which the defendant asked
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10

permission to remove were the frames from the glass 
louvres.

I knew Commander Bushe and Major Howden before 
the incident.

I have no doubt that Mr. Ackelsberg was quite 
aware of my discomfort caused by the noise and dust,

In one of my letters I asked the defendant to 
give me accommodation in another portion of their 
premises. That had been my hope all day. The 
offices themselves had not been in use. They were 
previously tenanted by Masons Ltd.

Adjourned 4th March, 1959.
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No. 7 

EVIDENCE OF' CHRISTOPHER SEEBARAH

Wednesday 4th March, 1959 

CHRISTOPHER SEEBARAU, sworn states:

I am a Customs Clerk employed by the firm of 
Mauritzen and Company since February, 1958. I was 
so employed on the llth September 1958. On that 

20 day I returned to the office about 1.45 p.m. after 
the windstorm. The windstorm was at sometime be­ 
tween 12.30 and 1 p.m.

Witness shown 5 photographs. Put in by consent 
and marked H.I to 5. (Wharton states that these 
photos were taken on the day of the storm).

H.I shows the corner of the building at South 
Quay and St. Vincent Street.

H.2 shows more of the building on St. Vincent 
Street.

30 H.3 shows Mr. Mauritzen's Office and a portion 
of the defendant's premises at No.6 St. Vincent 
Street i.e. where the men are standing.

H.4 shows part of the premises occupied by the 
Trinidad Automobile Association looking north along 
the gallery.
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Cross- 
examination.

H.5 shows a part of the premises occupied by 
the Trinidad Automobile Association taken further 
north than H.4.

H.3 was not taken on the same afternoon of the 
storm. The broken louvres were not taken down the 
same afternoon.

H.3 shows that 2 side panels of louvres of 
Mauritzen 1 s premises were not damaged.

H.I shows that damage to glass louvres on 
south side of building was slight.

The balustrade shown in H.5 is of wood and 
concrete .

On the day of the storm I saw Major Howden and 
another short stout gentleman upstairs. They went 
right through the building. They came to the 
verandah of the office and spoke to us - i.e. myself 
and another clerk.

Mr. Mauritzen came and met them there - right 
near the entrance of our office,

Major Howden spoke to us. He asked us to 
please remove any glass hanging over the balustrade. 
There were quite a few pieces hanging over.

They left our office and went further south 
along the verandah. When they spoke to us Mr. 
Mauritzen was not there. Mr. Mauritzen arrived 
some time after 3 p.m. They had spoken to us about 
10 - 15 minutes before .

Piremen came the same day and removed a portion 
of the overhanging glass.

I am quite sure that Major Howden came to the 
premises and spoke to us.

After the day of the storm he came up to the 
office frequently. He came to the verandah on the 
day after the storm, and the day after that. He 
did not come to our office. He was alone on both 
these occasions .

I don't know Commander Bushe. 

Cross -examined Butt;

I am quite sure I know Major Howden. I am

20

30
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quite certain I saw him on the day of the storm. 
(Major Howden is called into Court). That is Major 
Howden.

I am quite sure I saw him on the llth, 12th 
and 13th September last. I have no doubt about it 
at all.

I had known him for some months before - for 
at least two months before. After that I saw him 
again regularly - I suppose during the month of 

10 September.

I don't know who the other gentleman with him 
on the llth was. He was a short, stout gentleman. 
I don't know Commander Bushe or Mr. Bushe of Gordon 
Grant.

Major Howden and the other gentleman spoke to 
Mr. Mauritzen on the day of the storm. He met them 
there when he arrived. There were other people 
along the verandah at the time he came up. He met 
Major Howden about a yard away from the entrance to 

20 the office. I was in the verandah inside our
office. The plaintiff spoke to Major Howden before 
he had spoken to any of his clerk. I left them on 
the verandah and went to our office.

Later Mr. Mauritzen came in. In the office 
were Mr. Mauritzen, another clerk and myself. He 
had a conversation. We didn't discuss Major Howden 
at all - not at that time. I can't remember exactly 
whether we spoke about Maj r Howden on that day. 
The other clerk told Mr. Mauritzen what Major Howden 

30 had said about the hanging glass. Part of the glass 
louvres was taken down by firemen from the building 
including our office.

(Witness referred to B.I - indicates spot from 
which he alleges they took away glass.)

Witness refers to H.3 - firemen took away the 
broken louvres in middle.

After the storm the other tenants left the 
premises. I can't say how long after. We were the 
only tenants upstairs. Sometimes we would shut up 

4-0 the door downstairs. After the other tenants left
we were not always the last people to leave. We had 
a key for the door downstairs. When workmen were 
there we would leave the door open. They would 
shut it. Sometimes we would shut it. In the morn­ 
ing one of us would open it. We could lock up the
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door leading to our part of the gallery. We would 
put up the frontage in place.

I know that Gordon Grant lowered the roof of 
the southern part of the "building.

I know they abandoned a portion of the stair­ 
case and built another staircase. We landed from 
the new staircase next to Mr. Mauritzen's- premises

There is always a lot of rubble about the 
staircase and the verandah also - caused by the 
breaking down of the building. I could go up and 
down the staircase with difficulty - caused by 
presence of pieces of plank and concrete.

After the storm plenty of water came into the 
premises - a lot of it through the roof. One part 
was worse than the other - the northern side. The 
roof was leaking badly. We had to soak up the 
water with bags. We pushed it out on the verandah 
and soaked it up with bags. We moved everything 
from that part of the office when it rained.

Part of the floor of the verandah, also part 
of the floor of the main office was broken. There 
was a big plank right across the office - blown in. 
I don't know from exactly where. Part of the water 
seeped through. We didn't push it through deliber­ 
ately. Whenever it rained that part of the floor 
was covered with water.

Re-examination. Re-examined Whartons

I said that after the roof on the southern 
side was lowered we could not use the old staircase 
again. Before the roof was lowered we had to use 
the old staircase, it was the only one we had.

I don't know what made the hole in the verandah 
floor. The hole in the inner floor was about 3 
inches in diameter. In the gallery a piece of 
flooring about 1 foot long and about 2\ inches wide 
was depressed.

Witness referred to F.I.
There are two bits of wood projecting over the 

well of the staircase. They are still there. The 
top one projects approximately 1 foot. Everytime 
you go up the staircase you have to walk to the 
right. The staircase is approximately 3 feet wide.

Case for plaintiff

10

20

4-0
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Butt proposes to call evidence. Wharton re­ 
quests that expert witness whom he intends to call 
Toe allowed to remain in Court. No objection by 
Butt. Leave granted.

DEFENDANT'S EVIDENCE

No. 8

EVIDENCE OF ARTHUR DUDLEY MOORE 

ARTHUR DUDLEY MOORE, sworn states?

I live at Ferndale Terrace, St. Ann's. I am a 
10 partner of Mence and Moore, a firm of Architects 

practising here. I am a L.M. of the R.I.B.A. I 
have been an Architect since 1930. The repair of 
buildings comes within my duties as an Architect.

(Buttstates that he does not wish it to be 
thought that he is conceding that Wharton is en­ 
titled to call further evidence and reserves the 
right to object to his doing so).

I remember the windstorm that took place in 
Port of Spain on the llth September last. Sometime 

20 after I went to the premises 2 - 4 St. Vincent
Street, Port of Spain, the following day. I went 
there on the 12th September at the request of the 
Managing Director of G-ordon Grant and Company Ltd.

Witness referred to H.I.

I inspected the building shown in H.I. It is 
split up into two. Its on two lots Nos.2 and 4« It 
is one building - the same method of construction 
runs throughout the building as a whole.

H.I shows the condition of the building as I 
30 saw it on the 12th September 1958. It appears to 

be exactly the same.

Witness referred to H.2, 3, 4, 5. These 
photos show the condition of the building as I saw 
it.

I made an examination of the building. 

As a result I found

(1) The perimeter beam had been fractured in 
one or two places. The perimeter beam is that
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running at the outline of the building at top of 
first floor between the columns.

(2) The wall above the perimeter beam called a 
parapet wall was also fractured in several places.

(3) The blast had lifted the main roof off. 
The whole of the gallery roof had also been lifted 
up and had been practically entirely blown away and 
the enclosing walls of the gallery containing 
louvres windows etc. had been mainly demolished by 
the blast. 10

(4) Consequently the ceilings of the main 
buildings had been affected by weather.

(5) All electrical installations had been 
affected.

The main roof is mainly of steel trusses, 
covered with galvanized roofing.

(B.I shows the trusses).

The galvanized roofing had been torn away in 
certain sections.

At the southern end the trusses had been 20 
slightly lifted off the perimeter beam by the up­ 
ward thrust.

Witness referred to H.4.

The gallery floor was of timber flooring. The 
balustrade wall was of timber uprights with a timber 
sill. The timber uprights ran from the floor to the 
ceiling.

Between the timber uprights there were glass 
louvres except for the northern end where there were 
windows shown in H.3. 30

At the northern end of balustrade, there was 
HI-RIB metal. This is a sample of it. Put in and 
marked 'I'. The plastering of the HI-RIB is contin­ 
uous on the outside as shown in H.I.

The main supports form a support for the roof 
rafters of the gallery therefore when the roof had 
been removed by the blast they were not tied back 
and were therefore standing by themselves. The up­ 
ward blast would tend to loosen the bottom end of 
these vertical pests. 40
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Witness referred to H.4 and 5.

These are views of the gallery looking towards 
the north. In H.5 I see a horizontal timber member 
facing the head of the window and louvre openings. 
This horizontal member and vertical member had 
moved away from the cross partition.

When I saw this building on the 12th September 
I thought it was dangerous.

The fact that the roof had been lifted and 
10 that September was the season for further squalls, 

I thought that this roof should be removed.

The gallery enclosing balustrade wall was also 
unsafe, I thought that the balustrade should be 
demolished.

Some of the flooring of the gallery had been 
perforated by falling debris. The sections where 
the holes were should be taken out.

Exposure to the weather was detrimental to the 
timber flooring.

20 The cracked beams of the parapet wall and the 
parapet walls should have been demolished.

I communicated with the City Engineer as a 
result of my inspection. The City Engineer inspect­ 
ed. I don't know whether he did it himself. Later 
I saw this notice - Exhibit A.6. I have read it. 
I agree with it.

Witness referred to B.I (photo). B.I more or 
less represents the present condition of the build­ 
ing. Witness referred to photo B.3. B.3 represents 

30 the present condition of the building.

B.3 shows the roofing covering two bays at the 
northern end of the building. It is not entirely 
safe. The enclosing wall at the end is not safe 
owing to the fact that there is a vast area exposed 
to any future wind.

A sudden squall could have the effect of blow­ 
ing down the partition and lifting the roof. It 
would probably be blown away.

The parapet wall beams were fractured in one
4-0 of the bays. When I saw the building on the 12th

September 1958 I estimated the approximate amount
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it would take to repair the building at approxi­ 
mately #25,000 _ £35,000.

I would not recommend that the building should 
be repaired. I saw Mr. Howden later on - after he 
arrived from London. I can't remember the date. I 
went to meet him on the ship, one of the Elders and 
Pyffes boats. I think the Camito. Major Howden is 
in charge of the building business of the defendant 
Company. I made a report of the storm damage to him.

Cross-examined Wharton; 10

I first visited the building the day following 
the blast. The second time v/as two days later, then 
I inspected again with the City Engineer's repre­ 
sentative and again with Mr. Parrell, the City 
Engineer. I think sometime in December. The date 
of the third inspection was between the 17th and 
20th September, 1958.

I wrote to the City Engineer on the 15th 
September, 1958. I reported verbally first - as to 
when they were coming around to inspect. They were 20 
making a general inspection of premises damaged by 
the storm in Port of Spain. I had telephoned and I 
confirmed it in writing.

I also examined premises at No. 6 St.Vincent 
Street. I was in Port of Spain at the time of the 
windstorm. It took place between 12.30 p.m. and 
1.30 p.m. It lasted about 15 minutes all told.

At the time of the storm I was standing on the 
balcony of the Union Club on Marine Square. I saw 
the flying debris above Marine Square. Quite heavy 30 
pieces of timber were taken aloft - also smaller 
scantlings and boards.

I observed the Planning and Housing Building 
on Edward Street west of G-ordon Grant building 
opposite the Treasury building. It's a wooden 
frame building with a galvanized iron roof.

Witness shown a photograph. This is a view 
taken from the Treasury building showing some of 
the damage to the Planning and Housing Building. 
This is another view of the same building. Photos 4-0 
put in by consent and marked J.I and 2.

The condition of the upper floor of this bui^d- 
ing (Planning and Housing) was definitely dangerous.
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I made an inspection of the damaged area. From my 
personal observations I could say that the upper 
part of this building was definitely dangerous. It 
appears to have been repaired - i.e. the upper 
floors. I had a general professional interest.

There was storm damage to Sandbach & Eckel's 
building at corner of Queen and Richmond Streets 
also Gordon Grant's yard at the back. There was no 
structural damage to the Sandbach & Eckel building. 

10 I don't know of any other damaged building in
respect of which a demolition order was made by the 
City Engineer.

Witness referred to photo H.5.

I observe the balustrade. It consists of a 
sill and timber supports at regular intervals. 
That sill is a solid piece of timber. The supports 
are structurally solid supports. The main supports 
are probably 9 feet apart and the intermediate 
supports about 18 inches apart. Every nine feet 

20 there would be a stouter member. Immediately above 
the sill there is a strip of wood - not continuous, 
it is a weathering strip at the bottom of the glass 
louvre. The framework of the glass louvres was im­ 
posed on the sill. Some of the vents go through 
the sills.

In H.5. some of the uprights that were blown 
downvsere below sill level. Witness refers to spot 
on H.5. where such a post had been.

I don't agree that there was no damage to any 
30 north-south partition embedded in the wall. There 

was such a partition damaged in the office next 
door to Mr. Mauritzen going south.

Between Mauritzen and the Trinidad Automobile 
Association there was no office in the gallery, 
there was no structure, save one partition.

It may be that there was only one lateral 
partition in the gallery blown down and that is the 
one shown in H.5. The notch in the balustrade might 
have been to support the partition.

40 In photo H.I second bay from end - one or two 
of the main structural posts supporting the roof 
are seen leaning out. These go from the floor 
level.
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I made an examination of the structural members
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of the gallery on my first visit the day after the 
storm.

In H.5 there appears to be only one notch.

'The main posts would be fixed in place before 
the sill was put into it. The gallery roof is a 
lean-to roof. It appears to have had rafters. The 
rafters were anchored to a wooden plate on the wall 
and run over a plate. In photo 5 the complete plate 
is missing.

Photo 1 shows a flashing from the main building 10 
to prevent water getting in. The rafters are sit­ 
ting on top of the perimeter beam.

The parapet wall is built on the perimeter 
beam. It is about 4-5 inches thick. Behind the 
parapet is a box gutter formed by the parapet wall 
on one side. The bottom of the gutter would be a 
wooden structure.

I would call the parapet wall part of the 
structure. I saw the panels of the parapet wall 
fractured. There were also fractures in the peri- 20 
meter beams below.

Adjourned to 5th March, 1959.

Thursday 5th March, 1959

ARTHUR DUDLEY MOOSE, (Continuing under cross- 
examination by Wharton) i

On the day of my inspection I went right around 
the building. I went into the roof by ladder 
through the'office of the Trinidad Automobile 
Association. I was accompanied by Mr. Gormandy, a 
member of the City Engineer's staff. I went into 30 
the roof twice, once immediately after the storm 
and the next occasion with Mr. G-ormandy. On the 
first occasion I went up to the roof through the 
Trinidad Automobile Association premises also from 
the outside by ladder.

I think the perimeter beam must be of rein­ 
forced concrete. I didn't take a section through 
it. I don't know the nature of the reinforcement. 
It's a well constructed building.

Modern reinforcement is done by the placing of 40 
mild steel rods. In the older types of building
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you sometimes find railway rails. I don't know 
when the use of steel rods come into existence. I 
don't know the age of this building. It might be 
about 40 years old. The building may be approxi­ 
mately 150 feet long. The width may be approxi­ 
mately 49 feet. The blast had lifted the main roof 
up at the southern end. I cannot say that the roof 
design is in two parts. I didn't examine it for 
that detail.

In the 
Supreme Court

10 Question: I suggest that from the northern end of a 
certain point it is a steel construction 
of gable shape with trusses, and it 
becomes a hip roof for about the last 20
feet?

Answer; I accept this description, but it is
designed as one roof. Up to the point 
where it becomes a hip the roof is com­ 
pletely of steel construction. The hip 
portion is composed of wooden purlins, 

20 not rafters.

Witness referred to H.I.

The steel structure stops at the apex coming 
from north, wooden, members go off from that point. 
The hip is a wooden structure.

Ho distortion of the roof could be seen from 
the outside. There was damage of the roof - at the 
line of the southernmost truss where it had frac­ 
tured a beam and the parapet wall.

This was the start of the damage to the steel 
30 roof. It probably went back to the northern end. 

It appeared to be about 2-3 inches at the start. 
It showed signs in the offices of the ceiling 
being torn up with it. It was not possible to see 
how the steel trusses were anchored. They would be 
anchored to the perimeter beam or the columns - 
wherever the trusses occur. In this case they 
appear to go to the column.

Questions Would you dispute that each truss was
attached to a metal base plate by means 

40 of 6 bolts, and each, base plate was
anchored in the column by 2 bolts of -f" 
diameter?

Answer: No.

The lifting of the roof would tear up the whole
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attachment. It must have done so. I didn't 
actually see the "bolts torn up. It couldn't have 
lifted otherwise.

The perimeter beam was fractured in a few 
places, a serious one on the southern end and two 
on the western side about 2 or 3 bays back. The 
perimeter beam runs flush with the outside of the 
columns and the thickness goes through in the 
column. The perimeter beam may be 15" deep x 9" 
wide. 10

In my opinion the perimeter beam could not be 
repaired. You can replace a perimeter beam by 
demolishing the whole of the roof and the existing 
perimeter beams - demolishing the heads of the 
columns down to 3 - 4 feet below the perimeter beam.

In my opinion and experience there is no other 
way. You can replace the beam in sections, this 
would be a patch work. This would not be effective 
structurally in my opinion.

The mere fact that the beam is fractxired does 20 
not necessarily mean that the reinforcement is 
fractured. In my experience of reinforced concrete 
building I cannot agree that the "patch work" method 
would be of the same strength as the other way. I 
don't agree that it would have been necessary to 
remove only the hip portion of the roof.

Re the gallery - at first floor level the 
building has going across it steel eye beams of 15" 
x 6". The gallery also has eye beams 8" x 4", 
supported by iron brackets. The beams were anchored 30 
in the main walls and columns of the building. One 
or two of the gallery beams on the southern end had 
been slightly lifted up.

The main steel structure of the gallery was 
sound. The floor was composed of floor boards and 
floor joists. Apart from perforations, the boards 
and joists were fairly sound. To repair the gallery 
floor I would have to re-set the brackets on the 
southern side.

I don't agree that substantially the flooring 40 
of the gallery was sound. The main perforations in 
the gallery floor were down by Mr. Mauritsen's end, 
not in his office. There was a big hole about 2* x 
I 1 . I can't remember how far from his office. I 
later saw a perforation which appeared to have been
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made to let water out inside Ms main office.- 
about 2 inches. I did not see this hole on the 
first occasion. I didn't see any hole in the 
gallery portion of Mauritzen's office. I must have 
gone there about 3 times at intervals of some days. 
The debris had been cleared up after some time.

I know that south of Mr. -Mauritzen's office 
there was another office with a gallery portion. I 
only noticed the debris on the gallery on my first 

10 visit. As far as I remember the hole in the gall­ 
ery floor was south of the partition shown in H.5. 
The hole may have been in the office of the Trinidad 
Automobile Association.

I made a report to Commander Bushe, the 
Managing Director of the Company, on the 12th Sep­ 
tember, 1958. I told him that the building was 
dangerous and had to come down. That's the only 
advice I have given him.

The trap door through which I entered the roof 
20 was in the office of the Trinidad Automobile Associ­ 

ation. I remember seeing Mr. Wilson the Secretary, 
a short elderly gentleman.

Mr. G-ormandy went up the ledder. I can't 
remember whether I went up on this occasion. There 
was only one occasion that I went into this office 
with Gormandy. I probably did mount the ladder. I 
can't remember in detail. I can't remember whether 
G-ormandy did go up the ladder. I went only up to 
the point where my head and shoulders were above the 

30 ceiling level. This was between the 17th - 20th 
September, 1958.

I can't remember whether I passed any informa­ 
tion to G-ormandy while I was on the ladder. 
G-ormandy might have made notes from what I told him. 
I don't know about any plans in connection with the 
work now being done. I am not dealing with this 
project. I did not take any detailed measurements 
on any of my visits of inspection.

My report to Commander Bushe was verbal. That 
was my report to the Company. The estimate I gave 

40 re the repairs was given verbally to Commander Bushe 
possibly a week after the 12th September.

Re-examined Wells;

Re the conversation with Commander Bushe on the 
12th September, 1958, apart from my opinion re the 
dangerous condition of the premises Nos.2 - 4. I 
had no other conversation.
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Mr. Parrell, the City Engineer, visited the 
building with me in December, for the purpose of an 
inspection. This visit did not alter my opinion in 
any way.

I said the roof was lifted 2-3 inches, it 
lifted the ceiling with it in the offices. You saw 
it principally from below.

The bottom plate was fixed on top the floor 
;joists and flooring. The pushing out of the main 
structural members affected the plate by loosening 10 
the complete balustrade at intervals of approximate­ 
ly 9 feet.

I would not be surprised to hear that the whole 
of the balustrade came down by merely being pushed.

The wind cut across the southern width of the 
building and passed on a line with the western end 
of the Treasury building over Gordon Grant's Hard­ 
ware yard across McEnearney's showrooms at Charles 
and Richmond Streets. That is the extent of my 
knowledge of it. The general direction was from 20 
south-east to north-west.

The Planning and Housing Commission Building 
was completely timber frame, a typical building 
designed during the war for temporary use. I actu­ 
ally saw the damage done to it. To replace that to 
its former condition would not be a too expensive 
job for the same type of construction. During my 
years of experience I have had experience of repair­ 
ing buildings of the type of Nos . 2-4- St.Vincent 
Street - considerable experience. I am the senior 30 
partner of Mence and Moore.

No. 9

Evidence of 
George Charles 
Howden.
Examination.

No. 9

EVIDENCE OF GEORGE CHARLES HOWDEN 

GEORGE CHARLES HOWDEN, sworn states;

I am a Director of Gordon Grant and Company 
Ltd., in charge of the Lumber and Hardware Depart­ 
ment. My'work causes me to deal with building 
contractors. I am not an expert but have some 
personal knowledge of building construction.

On the llth September, 1958 I was at sea 40
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returning from the United Kingdom. I arrived back 
on Friday the 19th September. I was met on board 
by Mr. Moore and his wife.

He made a report to me about the storm damage 
on the llth. I got first to know of the storm dam­ 
age when I got my passport stamped on the 19th. I 
have my passport.

Rates and taxes are paid for the premises in 
which Mr. Mauritzen has an office. They are 

10 assessed as Nos. 2-4 St. Vincent Street as one 
entity.

I have in my possession the assessment notice 
for the year 1958. I also have a receipt for pay­ 
ment. The plaintiff pays ^44 per month rent. The 
total amount of rent for the premises 2 - 4 St. 
Vincent Street is about £f304 per month.

After the storm damage all the tenants left 
the premises except the plaintiff. They left 
gradually. They were probably all out towards the 

20 end of October or first week in November.

I first saw the storm damage on Saturday 20th 
September in the morning. I noticed the condition 
of the roof, the overhanging balcony. The balus­ 
trade was still there. I noticed the general 
condition of the building in relation to the damage 
done. I formed the personal opinion that the 
building was dangerous.

On the 6th October I received a letter from 
the City Engineer giving me notice to do the things 

30 therein specified, A.6, including the removal of
the roof and the balcony over the footway of South 
Quay and St. Vincent Street.

I had letter A.5 circularised to all the ten­ 
ants including the plaintiff. I wrote to the Oity 
Council a letter on the 7th October and a subsequent 
one on the 17th October. (Letter of the 7th October 
put in by consent and marked K.I. Letter of the 
17th put in by consent and marked K.2.) I wrote a 
further letter to the City Council dated the 3rd 

40 November, 1959 - K.3.

The plaintiff did not leave and we eventually 
took out ejectment proceedings against him. These 
proceedings were eventually filed by the plaintiff 
and we have counterclaimed for possession.
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After the 22nd September 1958 I went to the 
premises from time to time. Instructions were given 
to Mr. Ackelsberg to supervise the work, also not to 
take down the roof over Mr. Mauritzen's premises. I 
instructed him to cause as little nuisance as poss­ 
ible to the plaintiff.

Photos B.2 and 3 show the present condition of 
the premises.

If the premises are not recovered, it would 
not interfere seriously with the business of the 
Company. It would interfere seriously with the 
plans of the Company.

At the moment our produce kept on the ground 
floor is getting wet and we want to have a proper 
cover. The roof over the plaintiff's place is 
extremely dangerous, as it remains at the moment. 
Without getting possession we cannot complete any 
plans for reconstruction of the building.

The demolition work was commenced on approxi­ 
mately the 10th December. The City Engineer and my 
architect, Mr. Moore, visited the premises on the 
8th December. The City Engineer gave me advice to 
proceed with the work, accordingly the work was 
commenced on the 10th December.

From the 19th September to the time the Writ 
was filed I saw the plaintiff at intervals. He never 
made ahy complaint to me with regard to dust, dirt 
or noise nor with regard to the manner in which the 
demolition work was being carried on. He must have 
known that I was the responsible director, as I 
signed the majority of the letters.

He made no complaint about the projection of 
boards or nails on the stairway, nor of the presence 
of concrete plaster on the steps or bits of board, 
nor about the staircase or balustrade. He never 
made any complaint to me personally.

He made no complaint to me when the contractor 
cordoned off the pavement at the entrance. That 
was a safety measure. I had warning notices put up 
on the first floor and the ground floor.

Demolition work of this kind would create a 
certain amount of dust and cause some noise. I was 
present a number of times when the demolition work 
was in progress. It was done in my opinion in a 
proper fashion.

20

30

40
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I did not notice any unnecessary dust or noise. 
There must nave been a certain amount of plaster 
etc. lying about from time to time. I followed the 
advice of my technical advisers.

The roof at the present has been brought down 
to the level just above the ceiling of the first 
floor. .. After the storm the balcony was open to the 
weather and was in part damaged. It was not safe 
for people to pass on it in that condition.

10 The construction of the new staircase had the
effect of making the outlet closer to the plaintiffs 
premises.

The staircase is commodious enough for ordinary 
use. I knew of the complaint in the letter to the 
plaintiff that he had dug a hole in the floor to let 
the water down.

Sometime in Novenber defendant Company's 
Customs Clerk spoke to me. Accompanied by my car­ 
penter I inspected the office immediately below the 

20 plaintiff's office i.e. our Customs Department in 
charge of one de Silva and found that water had in 
fact run through the top ceiling into the office. 
This was towards the St. Vincent Street side of the 
plaintiff's premises. It would be about the middle 
of the office. It was a considerable amount of 
water. Between the time of my return and early 
November it rained most days - quite heavily at 
times.

Luncheon adjournment; 

30 Court resumes at 1.30 p.m. 

Cross-examined Wharton;

Sometime towards the end of November I went to 
the plaintiff's office and spoke to him. I have no 
recollection of his telling me that he had seen his 
solicitors and that they were going to apply for 
permission for inspection of the building on his 
behalf. I have no recollection of having turned 
away with a gesture denoting anger. Had he made 
such a request I would have referred to my Board of 

40 Directors and my Architect, Mr. Moore.

I do know that the plaintiff's solicitors wrote 
our solicitors on the 17th December 1958 in that 
sense. The request was refused.
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(Refer to letters A.11 and A.12. Witness 
referred to letter A.13. The letter refers to the 
first ejectment proceedings of the 13th November, 
1958. I did not regard the request contained in 
A.13 to Toe a serious request. The notice from the 
City Engineer was dated the 6th October, 1958. I 
considered it a very serious matter indeed. If it 
were a genuine request it would have been \vritten 
sooner. (Witness referred to A.10 - sentence read­ 
ing "We have now been advised that certain parts of 10 
the building are in imminent danger of falling,.."). 
I still say that the plaintiff's request was not a 
genuine one.

Re letter A.13, in view of the letter I think 
the plaintiff's statement of his willingness to 
reimburse us for any damage done etc. was a genuine 
proposal.

Questions Do you think that in ordinary fairness 
this request should have been granted?

Butt objects to the question on the ground of 20 
irrelevancy.

Objection overruled.

Answer s No.
1 suggested no reason why the request was
refused.
Witness referred to photos 7.1 - 4.

Up to after the roof was pulled down there was a 
considerable amount of builders debris all over the 
place. Up to the time that the gallery was actually 
demolished there was a considerable amount of debris 30 
on the first floor. To the best of my recollection 
there was a path leading to the plaintiff's office 
with debris on each side.

The reason for the refusal was not that the 
defendant Company had anything to hide.

I produce the Assessment for 1958 dated the 8th 
March, 1958. Put in and marked L.

The total rent for the first floor of the 
premises Nos.2/4 was $f304 per month. The whole of 
the ground floor is occupied by my firm. 40

At one time Masons Ltd. occupied the southern 
half of the ground floor. Masons was at one time a 
subsidiary of the defendant Company.
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The plaintiff's business requires his constant 
attendance at Steamships Offices, Wharves, Customs 
area etc. He does a general freight forwarding 
business. His clientele is composed of the public.
1 don't know whether Escala and Navarro do a great 
deal of business with the defendant Company. Since 
leaving Escala and Navarro became lodged by Archer 
Coaling Company at premises leased to them by the 
defendant Company. We promised out tenants we 

10 would do our best for them. It's not to my know­ 
ledge that we played any part in accommodating 
Escala and Navarro. The Archer Coaling Company 
premises are next door - there is a roadway between.

Y/itness referred to A.10. No.90 Frederick 
Street is away from the shipping area. It would do 
for the business of a freight forwarding agent but 
it is not convenient. A person setting up such a 
business at 90 Frederick Street would be setting up 
at a disadvantage.

20 There was no place available on our ground
floor. We were in desperate need of storage space. 
The place would normally be packed with goods right 
up to the ceilingi Just before Christmas most of 
the goods might have gone out, i.e. foodstuffs and 
beer. I would be surprised to hear that up to only
2 or 3 weeks ago there were only a few things stored 
in this place.

The Company's business is to move out of No,6 
shortly - to move to the corner of Marine Square and 

30 St. Vincent Street.

Half of the premises No.6 has already been 
leased as a block and there are negotiations on hand 
for the taking over of the rest.

It was not a matter of policy that we should 
not offer any part of the premises we control to the 
plaintiff or any of the other tenants. We were 
willing to do all we could to assist the plaintiff 
in his difficulties.

Witness referred to letters, K.I to 3. There 
40 were no replies to any of them. The City Engineer 

accepted the position set out in K.I - letter of 
7th October, 1958. There were no plans made for 
the reconstruction of the premises. Up to now 
there are no plans. Witness referred to photo F.I.

The new staircase is about 3 feet wide. There 
is a projection of about one foot of the upper piece
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of timber. As far as I know it is still in that 
condition. I would say it's a source of danger 
("but nobody has ever complained about it slightly.

With the roof dropped as shown in P.I, dropped 
about 9 feet - exposure of the plaintiff's office 
to the winds might be very dangerous. The new roof 
is composed of the same material as the old roof, 
i 0 e. trusses, galvanized iron sheets etc.

I was occasionally present when the workmen 
were knocking off the tops of the columns. There 10 
were four reinforcing bars in each column approxi­ 
mately •§• inch in diameter. I did not see the con­ 
struction of the beams.

I myself did not give the plaintiff notice 
that we were doing to demolish the balustrade. I 
don't know that any such notice was given to him. 
H.3 and B.2.

I had had a report from the foreman. I don't 
know of any notice being given to the plaintiff for 
demolition. 20

Witness referred to photos ]P,2 - 4.

Questions I suggest that the barricade put up to 
replace the balustrade was put up after 
the 5th February when the plaintiff filed 
his affidavit?

Answers It may have been.
I cannot say when the balcony was actually
demolished.
I am not in charge of the demolition work.
The work was done by a contractor. This 30
work is in my particular assignment as a
Director of the Defendant Company.

Question; Can you state what was the amount spent 
on the work so far?

Answer; It was a contract price - $6000 in round 
figures.

The contract was to lower the entire roof, 
demolish the parapet wall, the perimenter beam, 
columns and balcony as set out in the letter from 
the City Council. I know there will be extras as a 40 
result of the work being held up.
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10

Witness is handed a cadastral sheet of the City 
of Port of Spain containing the site of the premises 
in question. Put in and marked "M". The figure of 
#304 per month with the value of land today makes it 
quite uneconomical. I would say the value of land 
today is #20 per sq. ft. The building appears to be 
a substantial building. There was nothing required 
to be done to. the lower part of the building.

Re-examined Butte

If Mauritzen remained there as the only tenant 
and we had to repair the building it would be even 
more uneconomical to us.

Until I got possession of the building I could 
formulate no plans for proceeding with the construe 
tion. The projections and nails at the top of the 
staircase never formed any impediment to me.

Even up to now when a ship comes in the ground 
floor space would be found to be full of good';;.
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- Re-examination.

No. 10

20 EVIDENCE OF SAGE DE SILVA. 

SAGE DE SILVA, sworn states:

I am employed in the Customs Department of the 
defendant Company. I know the plaintiff's premises 
upstairs at St. Vincent Street. Around the llth 
September 1958 the premises were damaged by a wind­ 
storm.

On the 22nd September something occurred. We 
had heavy rains that day. Sometime after the heavy 
rains had ceased I heard noises like pounding of the 

30 floor above me. Shortly after that a lot of water 
started to fall on the celotex ceiling of my office. 
Before the pounding that I heard on the floor no 
water fell on the ceiling.

Between the date of the s torm and the 22nd
September it had rained on other days. No water
had come through on those days. Quite a lot of
water came in. The ceiling started to sag. I

No. 10

Evidence of 
Sage De Silva.
Examination.
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20

phoned our Lumber Yard. I got a carpenter to come 
over - Mr. Shepherd. He punched holes in the cel- 
tex to allow the water to flow freely. The water 
came through the holes in the celotex. While the 
water was coming down on the celotex I heard sounds 
of sweeping above. This was reported to Major 
Howden. The following morning he came to me. We 
went upstairs to the gallery outside the plaintiff's 
office. I did not go through the plaintiff's door. 
From there I could see into his office. I saw a 10 
hole on the flooring. That hole was at>ove the spot 
where the water came through ray ceiling.

Cross-examined Wharton;

This was after lunch - about 2 p.m. It was a 
working day, I don't remember what day of the week. 
If the date had not been put to me I would not have 
remembered it. Shortly after the pounding I heard 
and saw water coming on to the celotex ceiling - 
shortly after the pounding - less than •§• hour after.

My office is directly under the plaintiff's 
office. My office is about -f- the size of this room, 
(4th Court room).

After the storm I don't believe there was any 
roof to the gallery.

During September it rained heavily. I can't 
say whether rain blew into the inner offices up­ 
stairs or not.

I used the original staircase. I walked quite 
a distance from the head of the staircase. I got 
about 4 to 6 feet from Mr. Mauritzen's door. I saw 30 
the door leading to his private office. I don't 
remember whether it was open or shut.

I believe this took place around 9 a.m. I saw 
the plaintiff in the office. I didn't notice any­ 
one else. I believe he was standing. I should 
imagine he saw me too. He was about 10 - 15 feet 
away. I did not speak to him nor did'Major Howden. 
We have not repaired the celotex ceiling. It's 
condition can still be seen. I heard the sound of 
several blows. I don't know what was making the 40 
noise, I connected the pounding with the falling 
of water on the ceiling.

I did not speak to Mr. Mauritzen because it was
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not my "business in the first place. A director was 
with me. I can only speak for myself. Ho re'pairs 
have Toe en done to the celotex ceiling. I had to put 
galvanized iron "between the floor and the ceiling 
to draw off the water.

Adjourned Friday^6th March, 1959•

In the 
Supreme Court

Friday 6th March, 1959.

Wo. 11 
EVIDENCE OF DANIEL BLEASDELL

10 DANIEL BI^ASDELL, sworn states:
I live at Simeon Road, Petit Valley, Diego 

Martin. I am a carpenter foreman employed by Mr. 
William Ackelsberg, building contractor. I have 
been working on the job at Wos.2 and 4 St.Vincent 
Street, Gordon Grant's premises.

On the St. Vincent Street side there was a 
balcony over the street. Witness referred to H.2.

When I began working on the premises the bal­ 
cony was more or less in the condition shown in 

20 H.2. When I first went there, there were very few 
panes of glass i.e. louvres.

I know the plaintiff's office. His office is 
at the northern end of the building. I had to do 
with the removal of the balcony and balustrade. 
There was one window in Mr. Mauritzen's section. 
Witness referred to photo B.I. This shows the 
plaintiff's premises. This photograph shows more 
than what I saw when I first began to work on the 
premises. The amount of Waco louvre glass that I 

30 saw when I went was less than that shown in this 
photograph.

I had something to do with the removal of the 
windows and louvres. I removed them. I took out 
the louvres with the plaintiff's consent. I told 
the plaintiff I had to take down the balustrade and 
I would be taking down the louvres and the windows. 
He told me it was alright with him.

I can't remember what day of the week it was. 
It was around midweek when I took out the louvres 

40 and windows. I did so the same week that I had the 
conversation with Mr. Mauritzen.
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The balustrade is made of plaster on top of 
HI-RIB attached to some 2" x 4" scantling. I 
supervised the removal of that. This was done on a 
Sunday - one or two Sundays after I had spoken to 
Mr. Mauritzen. I did this on a Sunday on account 
of the traffic in the street during week-days.

The balustrade on the St. Vincent Street side 
wal all removed on the same day ~ a Sunday. It was 
merely "tapped" with a sledge at the top and bottom 
and it kept falling. I started at the south end of 
the balustrade.

A little before one reached plaintiff's office, 
the weight of the plaster and HI-RIB nailed on to 
the upright pilled everything over back towards the 
plaintiff's office, into the street. All the HI-RIB 
fell in the street.

The balustrade didn't give very much trouble to 
remove. It had already started to loosen. We did 
not go into the plaintiff's office that Sunday. -His 
door was locked.

Part of the work I did was to lower the roof 
also to break down certain cement work. I had no 
discussion with the plaintiff with regard to this. 
The only thing he asked me was to keep the debris 
from where his customers had to pass. One of the 
clerks in the plaintiff's office complained that 
dust was coming in on them.

There was a portion of this partition through 
which dust could pass and enter his office. I took 
some galvanize and barred it off to prevent the 
dust entering. This was later removed. It remained 
up about 2 weeks.

By Court; I put up the galvanize the very said week 
that the complaint was made. I took down the gal-
vanize after there was no more dust, 
galvanize to use.

I wanted the

I never had any conversation with the plaintiff 
about the galvanize.

Cross-examined Wharton;

I had no talk with the plaintiff about the re­ 
moval of the galvanize.

10

20

30

4-0

Mr. Ackelsberg was my employer and the
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contractor on this job. I have not seen him in the 
precincts of the court. I last saw him about 3-4 
days ago. I worked on the Sandbach Eckel job when 
it first started. I first started to work on the 
premises about a week before Christmas. I was the 
person who started the work. It could have been 
around the 10th December that we started.

The removal of the balcony was not the first 
thing we did. The first thing we did was to remove 

10 the undamaged louvres, including the frames - not
including Mr. Mauritzen's office. I did not remove 
them from Mr. Mauritzen's because the plaintiff was 
occupying up there. We had sufficient work at the 
southern end - we started at the southern end. We 
then went back to the southern end and began drop­ 
ping the roof. We were the only people who did 
demolition work on the premises as far as I know. 
Witness referred to B.I.

Panes were missing from the Eaco glass louvres. 
20 I remember that there was a glass window there. I 

don't remember if there were two windows. I don't 
know the date on which B.I was taken. I removed the 
balustrade a week or two before Carnival, the latter 
part of January. When I removed the balustrade the 
plaintiff was still occupying his office.

In the beginning Mr. Ackelsberg had given me 
general instructions that the balustrade was to come 
down; he gave me no specific instructions as to 
when to take it down. The general instructions re- 

30 lated to the whole of the balustrade. The balus­ 
trade also ran along South Quay. I think I removed 
the balustrade on the South Quay side about a week 
before Carnival.

It took us about 3 hours to demolish the St. 
Vincent Street balustrade and remove the stuff 
(i.e. debris) and everything. It took us about 1-g- 
hours to remove the South Quay balustrade. We used 
14 lb. and 10 Ib. sledges.

Knowing that the balustrade was loose we had 
40 to be careful of the safety of the men using the

sledge hammers - that's why we had to tap the balus­ 
trade. It was easy to remove the balustrade up to 
the plaintiff's office.

I did not of my own volition remove the louvres 
and windows from the plaintiff's office - because he
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was occupying the office. It was not because he 
had asked me not to do it.

I removed the undamaged louvres and frames 
from Mr. Mauritzen's office. I personally removed 
the Naco .louvres and frames. It was a working day, 
a week day at sometime towards the latter part of 
January - a little before - a day or two before we 
broke down the balustrade.

Witness refers to louvres nearer northern end 
and states, "There are the louvres that I removed". 10

I am familiar with Demerara windows. I remember 
seeing one Demerara window. The photograph shows a 
Demerara window on each side of the glass louvres I 
have referred to. A demerara window is of the type 
of wooden window in this Court hinged horizontally. 
It can be made of glass. Witness referred to H.3.

This photograph looks like a photo of the 
plaintiff's office. The windows I referred to as 
Demerara windows are made of glass. They are shown 
in Photo H.3. The window shown between these two 20 
is made of wood. I see in this photo two panels of 
Naco glass louvres.

I remember seeing the plaintiff's sign board. 
I took it down before I broke down the balustrade.
1 took down the sign on a Saturday evening. We 
broke down the balustrade the next day. I put it 
upstairs against the partition of his office. I 
didn't tell him it was there.

I put up the barrier shown in B.2 and 3. I 
didn't put back the sign because I didn't have the 30 
chance to put it back. I told Mr. Mauritzen about 
it when I was going to take it down. I told him I 
am removing the sign because I have to take down 
the balustrade wall and then I would replace it 
back for him whenever he wants it. He said "It's 
up to you, you can go ahead," and I went ahead.

Afterwards they came and stopped the work. Mr. 
Ackelsberg asked me to stop working. That's the 
reason why I didn't put back the sign.

By Court; I stopped working on the premises about 40
2 - 2-g- weeks after I took down the sign. I put up 
temporary bars the Saturday before Carnival (i.e. 
7th February).
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It is not true that I broke down the "balustrade 
and sign board together. The sign was taken down on 
the Saturday evening. Prom the day the work stopped 
I never went back to the building. When I placed 
the signboard against the wall the name was facing 
outside. All the signs I saw there I took down on 
different occasions.

Witness referred to photo F.I.

It shows a portion of the roof lowered down to 
10 the first floor. I don't know what became of the 

sign board afterwards.

By Courts Up to the last day I worked I saw the 
sign board there intact. I took care of the signs. 
The other persons took their signs away.

It is true that the plaintiff gave me permiss­ 
ion to remove things other than the louvre frames 
and broken louvres.

I saw the state of the gallery on the 10th 
December. When I reached there the uprights were 

20 there the roof was entirely blown away. If I were 
asked hj the owner to repair the gallery, I would 
not have taken the job - on account of the danger 
the place was in - except to take it down and re­ 
build it.

The balustrade wall was already shaking and 
leaning towards St, Vincent Street - not every up­ 
right but certain parts. It was leaning to the 
extent of perhaps 2 inches or 3 inches. Starting 
from South Quay it was leaning at about the second 

30 or third space between the uprights also the space 
between the plaintiff's office and the other office 
to the south. The first space was not leaning nor 
the fourth space. I think the length of the gallery 
on St. Vincent Street may be about 160 - 170 feet. 
It was leaning at a spot about 7-8 feet from the 
plaintiff's partition for about a length of about 
10 feet. For those two reasons I would not repair 
the verandah.

Re the roof, the greater part of the roof was 
40 taken down and lowered to a level of about 3 feet 

above the first floor. The roof we lowered is a 
big structure about 100 feet long. The roof is of 
steel truss structure. A certain part of it is of 
wood, the hip part to the south.
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I started lowering the roof from the southern 
end where the hip roof was. The hip part of the 
roof was about 30 feet long. It was of wood. All 
the rest was of steel truss structure. The covering 
of the roof was galvanized iron sheets. Wooden pur­ 
lins held the galvanize to the steel trusses. The 
purlins were "bolts to the trusses. The roof was 
lowered in sections. The trusses were taken away 
singly. When each truss was dropped we unbolted 
the purlins from the steel. Some of the purlins 10 
were rotten. This was to be expected. We used the 
good purlins. The purlins were 3" x 6" or 3" x 8". 
The purlins are put up on edge and anchored by a 
bolt to the steel truss. In the case of the hip 
roof the purlins would be nailed to the wooden 
truss. It is not possible to bolt a wooden purlin 
to a wooden truss unless the wooden truss is thick 
enough.

We moved the hip roof from where it was piece 
by piece and placed it on the floor in one day. It 20 
was put back in about 2-g- - 3 days. I didn't work 
on the hip roof steadily, other work was going on. 
The hip roof was cast into concrete. I had to 
break the cast to remove it.

Luncheon ad3ournment. 

Court resumes at 1.30 p.m.

Witness referred to photos B.I, 2 and 3.

I put up the barricade along the pavement on 
St.Vincent Street and South Quay. B.I shows the 
northern end of the barricade. It doesn't go along 30 
the complete length of the building.

Cars used to go into the large gateway and 
park. I could have blocked the whole pavement 
along the whole length of the building. I had per­ 
mission for that purpose. I didn't do so because I 
had no intention to break down the plaintiff's por­ 
tion - so I would have had no debris falling down­ 
stairs.

I see a window with blinds behind the sign 
"Cocoa, etc." The way to go into that office was 40 
through that same open gateway.

Witness referred to photos E.I - 4.

In E.3 I see the plaintiff's entrance - the 
first one south of the big gateway.
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E.I shows the plaintiff's entrance and the 
"barricade we put across it. At first we had an 
opening 3'6" wide - not immediately in front of his 
entrance. The plaintiff only asked me to make it a 
little- wider.

It is only accidentally that the piece of wall 
in the plaintiff's office i.e. the balustrade, 
collapsed. I had never intended to break down that

In the 
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portion of in tapping, that part of it collaps­
ed. I didn't want it to happen. I was surprised 

10 when it happened. This was on a Sunday.

I moved all the signs as I knew that accidents 
could occur. The plaintiff's sign was screwed in 
to the base of the balcony itself. I thought some­ 
thing might have flown from one of the workmen. If 
the sign board were still on the balcony at that 
time and fell from that height to the ground, I 
would expect it to be broken up. I built the barri­ 
cade to protect the public . The pavement is about 
8 feet wide. I left about 3 feet of the pavement 

20 free. This is shown in photo E.3.

I knew that portions of the balustrade would 
fall in the street.

Witness referred to H.2.

Before I took it down I went up on the roof. 
One or two sheets had flown away - one or two had 
been bent - on both the eastern and western sides.

There were two ventilators on the roof, two 
dormers. In this photo there is no sign of any 
whole sheet of galvanized iron removed. The corner 

30 of a sheet of galvanize appears to have been curled 
up. There seems to be another piece of galvanized 
iron pushing up at the edge of the roof. The owners 
could easily replace a piece or two of galvanize if 
they wanted to do it. I had to knock out the nails 
from the hip portion of the roof.

Re-examined Wells;

Witness referred to B.I.

Prom the time I began working I always used to 
go to the plaintiff's office to use his telephone. 

40 I ?/ent there from quite early in the work.
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Re-examination.

There were missing louvre glass panes. I can't
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say whether those that remained were all whole or 
not. The first time I had anything to do with the 
louvres was just before I "broke down the "balustrade,

Witness referred to H.2.

I see signs on the balustrade. I took down a 
sign for someone, the first person at the corner, I
took down some letters for them.

There was a lintel right around and a crack in 
it on left at both ends of the truss.

There is a beam running right around at the 
top of the columns. The truss then conies and rests 
on top of the concrete. The lighter concrete is 
then cast to hold up the spouting. This comes over 
the truss. When I. came there the truss had moved 
from where it had been bedded. There were cracks 
in the concrete. I put up not only barricade, but 
warning notices at the doors. 1 also had up red 
flags.

Close of case for the defendant Company.

10

No. 12

Notes of 
Proceedings.
6th & 9th 
March, 1959.

No. 12 

NOTES Off PROCEEDINGS

Wharton Q.C. states he desires to call evidence in 
rebuttal as well as in relation to the Defence and 
Counterclaim - in rebuttal of the evidence of Moore 
and Bleasdell.

Refers to Phipson on Evidence, (8th Edition 
P.37).

Wells submits that right from the beginning, the 
condition of the premises was in issue as regards 
the plaintiff's claim - that although the plain­ 
tiff's counsel did not elect openly, he did certain 
things which amount to an election to call all his 
evidence at once e.g. in his opening counsel for 
plaintiff referred to condition of the premises - 
reference to Lavender v. Betts etc. Woodfall v. 
Landlord and Tenant.

Statement that "the storm did a certain amount 
of damage but created no danger at all with regard 
to No.4 St. Vincent Street probably none with 
respect to No. 2. Remedy was a simple one it could 
have been repaired".

20

30

40
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Shaw v. Beck. (1853) 8th Ench. 393.

Submit that there was an implied election by 
plaintiff's counsel to call evidence re condition 
of the premises.

Court refers counsel to Bucld v. Davison,(1880) 
W.R. 192. Wells submits that the element of sur- 
prise was present in that case.

Wharton in reply;

Opening and evidence called by the plaintiff 
10 i.e. that of the plaintiff and his clerk dealt

substantially only with the plaintiff's case, i,e. 
case of trespass and nuisance.

3.10 p.m. adjourned to 9th March, 1959- 

Monday 9th March, 1959.

Court rules that evidence in rebuttal is ad­ 
missible .

Wharton states he proposes to call the evidence 
of Mr. Wilson, Secretary of the Trinidad Automobile 
Association and that of Mr. R.D. Archibald, Civil 

20 Engineer.
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PLAINTIFF'S EVIDENCE IN REBUTTAL

No. 13

EVI33ENCEJOJL FRANC IS HUGH WILSON 

FRANCIS HUGH WILSON, sworn states;

I live at 55, St. Vincent Street, Port of Spain. 
I have been the Secretary of the Trinidad Automobile 
Association since October, 1953. I still am the 
Secretary.

The offices of the Association were at 2 and 4 
St. Vincent Street, Port of Spain. The Association 
retained these offices till the end of October last. 
The offices were immediately north of these occupied 
by Escala and Navarro. Escala and Navarro first 
occupied their offices in 1954 • They were previous­ 
ly in the offices now occupied by the plaintiff. 
There was no means of access between the two offices.

Plaintiff's 
Evidence in 
Rebuttal

No. 13

Evidence of 
Francis Hugh 
Wilson.
Examination.
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There was a partition between them extending right 
across the gallery.

There was a windstorm on the llth September 
last. We made an inspection of the premises - not 
only our own premises, but also the other offices. 
I went round inspecting the different offices with 
one or two of the other tenants, the same afternoon 
of the storm as well as the next day.

I saw no cracks 
wall in my office to 
shifted. I observed 
and Navarro. On the 
office of Escala and 
Mr. Navarre was with

between the ceiling and the 
indicate that the ceiling had 
none in the office of Escala 
occasion when I went into the 
Navarro on the following day, 
me.

10

20

The gallery roof was taken off after the storm. 
After the llth September, rain came from the gallery 
through my two doors.

Witness shown H.5. This photograph shows the 
gallery outside my office. My office did not in­ 
clude the gallery. I appear in the photograph. H.4 
was taken from a point further back than H.5. The 
partition shown in H.4 divides the office of Escala 
and Navarro from the rest of the office.

We put up a light wooden screen with a glass 
door across the gallery - attached where the notch 
is in H.5. H.5 shows the screen lying on the floor.

Question: Was either of your longitudinal partitions 
affected by the storm i.e. damaged by the 
storm?

Wells objects to the question. 

Objection overruled.

Answers The partition we put up with the glass
door was damaged by the storm, no other.

There were no perforations made by the storm in 
the gallery floor. Sometime after the storm damage 
I and others tested the verandah. We held it to see 
whether it was steady or not. It was steady. This 
was about the following day. I didn't see any 
bulge in the balustrade.

Sometime later I received a notice to quit. I 4-0 
have it with me. The notice was enclosed in a letter

30
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dated the 30th September, 1958. Subsequently I got 
a letter enclosing a notice from the City Engineer. 
After this I went round again with other tenants on 
several occasions. On these occasions I saw nothing 
to alter my view as to what I had previously seen. 
I shook the balustrade only once. I did not test 
it again. I remember an occasion when Mr. Moore, 
the Architect, came to my office.

Gross-examined Wells;

10 I am not an engineer, nor an architect, nor 
have I any such experience.

My premises received a fair amount of damage 
in the storm. I was naturally concerned to see 
what that damage was and how I could prevent further 
damage from the weather. Every time it rained, the 
rain came into the office.

I held the balustrade with my hands and tried 
to shake it. I can't say what wood the balustrade 
was made of because it was painted. It was made 

20 entirely of wood. I shook hard enough for it to 
shake if it were loose. I felt no looseness or 
vibration at all.

By Court; I made this test at one spot opposite my 
office. I shook it somewhere near where the up­ 
right member is shown in H.4.

Question; I suggest that H.4 shows a gap of 5 or 6 
inches between the balustrade and the 
wall?

Answer; It appears so, but it could have been 
30 that way too.

It appears that the upper portion of the gallery 
structure has moved away from the partition. This 
also appears to be the case with the further parti­ 
tion.

There was nothing after the storm holding the 
top of the uprights to the main wall. Yet I felt 
no vibration. That wouldn't affect the strength of 
the balustrade. I didn't shake the uprights. I 
didn't inspect the ceiling by climbing up on a 

40 ladder. The ceiling is about 15 - 18 feet high.
The ceiling was of wood. I didn't use a ladder at 
any time. We were all interested in the whole place.
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Re-examined Whartons

The damage I referred to as "being done to my 
offices was the damage to the gallery outside my 
offices that the roof had "been blown away the glass 
louvres broken. Rain would blow through the open 
doors.

No. 14

Evidence of 
Rupert Douglas
Archibald.
Examination

No. 14

EVIDENCE OF RUPERT DOUGLAS ARCHIBALD 

RUPERT DOUGLAS ARCHIBALD, sworn states;

I am a Civil Engineer in practice in Trinidad. 10 
I received the Bachelor of Engineering degree from 
McGill University. I am a member of the Engineer­ 
ing Institute of Canada.

I did my apprenticeship with the Trinidad 
Government Railway commencing from 1935-1941. I 
was then a draughtsman surveyor and general assist­ 
ant to the Engineers.

In 1941 I went to Canada and entered McGill 
University, graduating in May, 1946. I worked each, 
of the 4 summers for approximately 3-fr months each 20 
summer. You were required by the University to do 
9 months practical work apart from the academic 
training. The first 2 summers I was employed in 
the Design Department of the Aluminium Company of 
Canada in Montreal. The last 2 summers I spent in 
Quebec, employed by the same Company in the Time 
Study and Efficiency Department.

While still in Canada in 1946 I received an 
appointment in the Maintenance Department of the 
Trinidad Government Railway. I was Assistant Main- 30 
tenance Engineer of the Trinidad Government Railway 
from June, 1946 to the end of January, 1949.

'I was responsible for the maintenance of all 
structures, buildings, bridges, the physical side 
of the signalling arrangements, the tracks and all 
works and drains.
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In 1949 I went into private practice and 
engaged in "building construction and a certain 
amount of consulting work - until early 1953. Prom 
1953 to date I have been practising as a consulting 
civil engineer. Half of my practice is in collab­ 
oration with architects, the other half directly 
with owners. I do the structural design for archi­ 
tects. The architect presents to me his sketches 
and requirements and I do the structural side of 

10 the plans i.e. those dealing with the strength of 
the building.

I know the building owned by the defendant 
Company at the corner of South Quay and St.Vincent 
Streets, Port of Spain. I was engaged by the 
plaintiff to make a report on the premises, ly 
first visit to the plaintiff's office was on the 
27th November, 1958. The plaintiff showed me his 
office and we walked along the balcony as far as 
the Trinidad Automobile Association premises. I 

20 then made an examination only of the plaintiff's 
office. I advised the plaintiff that I required 
permission to survey the building as a whole.

With regard to the balcony, the roof had been 
blown off entirely. The glass louvres, jalousies 
on western side from balustrade level to roof level 
was missing in several sections.

Most of the glass in the remaining sections 
was shattered and there was a lot of glass and 
debris on the balcony floor. The glass and debris 

30 had been swept to the two sides so that there was 
a path approximately down the middle about 3 feet 
wide.

The plaintiff drew my attention to the balus­ 
trade near to the entrance of the Trinidad Automo­ 
bile Association office and spoke to me about it. I 
made a test by putting my weight against the 
balustrade and shaking it. The balustrade did not 
vibrate, At that moment I didn't come to any con­ 
clusion. It vras my first visit. We returned to 

40 the plaintiff's office and we both made similar
tests at the plaintiff's section of the office, by 
leaning against it and shaking it, not at the same 
time. Again the balustrade did not vibrate. On 
this occasion I also kicked against the HI-RIB 
sheet enclosing the balustrade. I wanted to know 
whether the HI-RIB was loose on the frame of the 
balustrade. I made no impression on it. The 
plaintiff showed me a hole in his balcony floor
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which was on the south west corner of the counter 
where apparently a large piece of timber had fallen 
on its end and smashed the wood making a hole. The 
piece of board affected was about 10 x 4-J" inches.

I then went downstairs to the pavement on St. 
Vincent Street and walked from the northern end of 
the building along St. Vincent Street around the 
corner on South Quay to the eastern end of the 
building. I did that deliberately to examine the 
supports of the balcony and the condition of the 10 
floor and floor joists from underneath.

On the St. Vincent Street .side the building 
from north almost to the south end is divided into 
8 equal bays - the span of each bay being about 16 
feet 9 inches - centre to centre of the main columns
of the buildings. The columns are concrete and 

are 2 feet square from pavement to first floor; 
from first floor level to truss height, the east 
west dimension is 20 inches and the north south 24 
inches. I eventually made a plan. 20

On this first visit (27/11/58) I came away 
from the premises with the impression that the 
floor of the balcony and the balustrade could be 
retained if it was desired to rebuild the balcony 
similar to its former state.

I stepped over into the car park on the west­ 
ern side and looked on the roof and then went into 
the island dividing the 2 lanes of South Quay and 
observed the roof.

The greater part of the galvanized roof cover- 30 
ing was intact. I didn't see any missing. The roof 
had two ventilators on the St. Vincent Street side. 
Photo H.2 shows the ventilators I refer to. I saw 
damage around the galvanized covering of both of 
these vents i.e. the galvanize was twisted up, half 
ripped off and by the northern ventilator and on the 
western side of the roof there was a dent on the 
ridge and by the side - as though some heavy piece 
of debris had landed on the roof.

luncheon adjournment. 40 

Court resumes at 1.30 P*m«

On the St. Vincent Street side starting from 
the northern end there were 8 equal bays - the 
average span was 16«9". Embedded in the column
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there is 4" x 8" x -J-" steel eye beam which comes out 
horizontally. It projects 8 feet from the column 
over the pavement. That eye "beam is supported by an 
iron bracket.

The vertical arm of the iron bracket is bolted 
into the column. The bottom flange of the eye beam 
rests on the horizontal arm of the iron bracket and 
is bolted to it. The horizontal arm of the bracket 
extends from the face of the wall about 4 feet over 

10 the pavement.

The cantilever ends of the eye "beams are joined 
to each other by a similar eye beam bolted at the 
end. This was a sound construction.

On the South Quay side the bays are smaller. 
There are 4 of these cantilever beams, there are 3 
bays on the South Quay side, the span there is 
around 14 feet. The construction on this side is 
similar to that on the St. Vincent Street side.

The whole gallery was tied to the end of the 
20 eye beams, from the north on St. Vincent Street side 

to the east end on the southern side. Running 
across the span of the bay at right angles to the 
eye beams were 2" x 12", wooden floor joists spaced 
at about 20" - on top of that were nailed floor 
boards running across the width of the balcony. In 
this sort of construction the floor joists would 
not be attached to the beams.
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I visited the premises yesterday afternoon. I saw 
the southern side of the premises. I saw the floor,

30 the wooden floor joists, the eye beams, the iron 
brackets and the tie beams. I saw them yesterday 
afternoon (8th March 1958). They were sound and in 
place. I stood underneath it. The floor joists 
were in line and the flooring was in place and in­ 
tact.

There are 4 steel cantilever beams on the south 
side. The cantilever eye beam goes into the column. 
The normal practice it would be about 6" to 8" 
inside. The vertical end of the bracket is bolted 

40 into the face of the column. The 4 cantilever eye 
beams with their brackets on the south face of the 
building had not moved and were sound. The only 
parts of the structure on the south that I would 
call beams now are the cantilever frames and their 
beams. Those are the only gallery beams on the 
southern end.
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Witness referred to H.I. They can be seen in 
this photo. These beams show no sign of having 
been raised at all. They were perfectly sound and 
intact.

If these beams had moved at all, the effect 
would have been seen by cracking of the concrete 
plaster, the wooden floor 3cists would probably have 
showed signs of shifting and the steel beam itself 
would probably have been bent out of its horizontal 
position at some point of its length. I saw no such 10 
sign to indicate a shifting of any beam.

The whole of the floor of the southern gallery 
is intact apart from 2 broken floor boards. The 
condition of the gallery in the 2 bays at the north­ 
ern end of the building on St. Vincent Street is 
perfectly sound in relation to floor boards, floor 
joists, steel beams and iron brackets. The balus­ 
trade has been demolished.

The cantilever steel beam and the iron bracket 
to each column in the other bays along the western 
side of the building are still there and are sound. 20 
They are all intact. I see no signs of cracking 
anywhere. This was the condition they were in as 
regards strength on the 27th November, 1958.

Prom my visit of the 27th November, 1958 the 
general impression I formed from my view from the 
plaintiff's premises and the streets and the pave­ 
ment was that the main damage had been done to the 
balcony and the parapet wall, and that the main 
building as a whole had suffered minor damage.

H.I gives a general impression of what I saw 30 
on my visit of the 27th November.

Witness referred to H.3. This more or less 
represents the condition I saw on my first visit on 
the 27th November, 1958.

I paid two subsequent visits to the premises 
on the 19th December, 1958, one in the morning the 
other in the afternoon.

The upper storey of the building was then in 
the process of demolition. They were engaged in 
removing the internal partition of the various 40 
offices. The ceiling of the offices was composed 
of 2" x 4 " wooden ceiling joists - at about 2'6" 
centres placed across the spans on the bottom leg of 
the bottom chord of each truss. I made a plan of
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one of these bays as an illustration. Plan admitt­ 
ed into evidence without objection and marked 'IT'. 
I made it from notes and measurements taken on 
various visits to the premises. The bottom chord 
is composed of two 3»x 3".?^" Hfceel angles. It is the 
3" legs that take the ceiling.

Question; When they removed the ceiling joists and 
some of the ceiling itself, what did you 
see?

In the 
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10 Answer i Subsequent to the 19th December, I paid 
regular visits at the request of the 
plaintiff.

I saw more and more of the steel trusses as 
time went on. During these visits it became appar­ 
ent that the trusses were in their true alignment. 
As time went on I could observe them better.

The only damage I saw was to the 4th truss 
from the northern end - at the end of the 3rd bay - 
towards the apex of the truss at the top chord on 

20 the west side. The top chord was bent about ffi way 
down from the apex.

I connected this bend in this top chord to 
what I had seen on my first visit, via., what 
appeared to have been a blow caused by flying debris. 
This member of the truss could be replaced or left 
in. It is still in use in the new roof, i.e. the 
lowered roof. As long as there is no distortion of 
the various joints and there is no sign of fracture 
there is no reason why it cannot be used.

30 The wooden purlins appeared to be in place.
They didn't seem to be displayed. The condition of 
the galvanize was as I had seen it on my previous 
visit, good. Prom what I could see the damage to 
the roof was negligible. I made visits to the 
premises on the 16th February, 1959 in the morning 
and afternoon.

The demolition had been completed. The roof 
had been lowered except for the 3 northern bays. 
In the original roof the bottom chord was approxi- 

40 mately 14 feet above first floor level. The bottom 
chord of the new roof is 2'9" above first floor 
level so that the roof has been lowered approximate­ 
ly 11'3",

There is now a parapet wall along the western
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and southern side. On my visits prior to the 16th 
February 1959 the staircase was generally sound.

On the last flight towards the top some of the 
kick boards showed signs of rot. I didn't make a 
detailed inspection. The staircase .showed no sign 
of damage by the wind. Between my visits of the 
19th December and the visit of the llth February, a 
new upper flight of stairs had been built. Except 
for the 2 northern bays the entire floor and balus­ 
trade had been removed. The original balustrade 10 
was stronger than the present temporary one.

Structurally the condition of the structure 
surrounding the area of the plaintiff's office is 
sound - but there is a further bay - the one next 
going south - where the original roof has been 
maintained. There is a face open which makes it 
dangerous. If a strong wind occurred that portion 
of the roof including the plaintiff's might be 
lifted. This condition was caused by not complet­ 
ing the lowering of the roof. If they hadn't 20 
lowered the roof this wouldn't have come about.

By Court; I do not consider the lowering of the 
roof was necessary.

It is possible to enclose the exposed portion 
so as to remove the danger from wind.

The main part of the building is approximately 
50 feet wide and 150 feet long. At the south west­ 
ern corner the corner is sliced off. The floor 
space is approximately 7000 sq.ft. each, the gallery 
is about 200 feet long x 8 feet wide approximately JO 
1550 sq.ft.

The main steel beams supporting the first floor 
are 15" x 6" x §" steel eye beams. The span is 
approximately 24' 9" •

I would describe the building as of strong 
construction i.e. the main building. On the days I 
inspected it, it was sound. The hip portion of the 
roof is composed of main timbers with similar pur­ 
lins as in the other part of the roof.

I would describe the description given by the 40 
witness Bleasdell as normal construction when he 
said that the hip roof was cast into concrete.

My estimate of cost of -repairs to the whole



67.

including demolition and clearing of debris, re­ 
pairs to roof, to eave-gutters and down pipes, 
removal of former parapet wall and replacement by 
a hollow clay tile wall, repairs to any perimeter 
beams if necessary the rebuilding of the balcony to 
a similar condition as before storm and any paint­ 
ing of new wood required, is 14,200. This does not 
include repairs to electrical or telephone installa­ 
tions .

10 I have seen a crack in the perimeter beam in 
second bay from north on west side. That beam is 
9" thict x 15" deep. The top of the beam is at the 
top of the columns at level of the bottom chord and 
its position is generally central in 20" width of 
the column. The beam is composed of one second 
hand railway rail placed in the centre of the width 
of the beam and about 2 inches from the bottom - 
surrounded by concrete. I have examined this beam.

There are cracks on the beam about 4 feet from 
20 the northern column face. This crack continues

across the width of the beam underneath and on the 
inside face "it's also cracked at the side of the 
beam. These cracks are on the concrete. The beam 
has maintained its normal shape. This beam could 
be repaired.

The construction of the perimeter beam is one 
that existed around and prior to the first World 
War. Those beams have a prime function to support 
the parapet wall and to assist in the ceiling off 

30 of the roof, and forming of the eave-gutters.

In a building of this type it is not a prime 
function of the perimeter beam to stiffen the 
columns although they do in fact do so.

In this particular instance the existing 
columns are strong enough to carry out the functions 
expected of them i.e. to bear the weight of the 
roof. It is good practice to finish off with the 
perimeter beam. The crack in the beam could have 
been repaired.

40 By Court; Prom my experience I would be very sur­ 
prised if the rail reinforcement was cracked. If 
it cracked it would have lost its shape.

The load it was carrying - mainly the parapet 
wall - was a continuous load and not an exception­ 
ally heavy load for a beam of that construction. A
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whole beam between 2 uprights could have been re­ 
moved at a cost of approximately #200. These beams 
could be repaired and replaced without taking down 
the whole roof.

I don't agree with. Mr. Moore's opinion that 
the replacement of these beams would be patchwork 
and would not be effective structurally. I con­ 
sider as minor the damage to the particular beam I 
examined. I would have the damage cleaned out and 
grouted. The load on the beam did not amount to 
more than about 200 Ib per foot. That is the simp­ 
lest form of load on a beam supported on either end. 
This crack was about 4 feet from one end - the span 
is about 14'9" - roughly around the middle third 
point.

The concrete in a joint subjected to simple 
bending is primarily concerned with counteracting 
the shear force. The greatest shear force acts 
just where the beam enters the column. The shear 
force at either end of the parapet wall is not more 
than 3000 Ibs. That is not a very great shear force 
for a beam of that dimension. The shear force at 
the point of the crack would probably be only 1000 
Ibs.

A beam in simple tension is not affected in 
any major way by the cracking of the concrete so 
long as the steel reinforcement itself is undamaged. 
At two junctions at the end of the beam where it 
enters the columns there is no indication of crack­ 
ing - the plaster is not cracked, it's smooth and 
clean.

10th March, 1959.

Question; Could you give us your break down as to 
how you arrive at your estimate of cost 
of repairs?

Butt objects. Objection upheld.

I have a breakdown of the estimate, 
referred to plan - Ex. 'N' .

Witness

From my examination and the nature of the 
construction I found, I don't accept We. Moore's 
statement that the roof had risen 2 or 3 inches 
from its anchorage.

10

20

40

The anchorage going into the main columns
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consists of 2 bolts of f-" diameter. If the part of 
the roof supported "by the steel trusses had risen 2 
- 3 inches I would expect any one or all of these 
3 conditions after the shock was over;-

(1) The nuts on the anchor would have been 
wrung off, which would permit movement of the base 
plate of the truss or the bending or shearing of 
the anchor bolts above the concrete.

(2) Distortion in the trusses - the main and 
10 secondary members bent or twisted out of their 

original shape and shearing of their connections 
which are gusset plates with bolts.

(3) That the 6" x 3" wooden purlins anchored 
to the top chord members of the trusses by means of 
an angle and 4 bolts - 2 going into the purlin and 
2 into the top chord - I would expect that these 
purlins at their connection would have been ripped 
by the movement and as a result after the shock was 
over the galvanized sheet covering would have been 

20 disturbed so that it would not have presented the 
uniform appearance that I saw on my first visit on 
the 2?th November.

With regard to the hip portion of the roof, in 
this type of construction it is customary to connect 
the main wooden timbers to each other by bolts and 
the wooden purlins would probably be connected by 
means of large nails.

I accept that the hip roof was struck by the 
wind, that that was where the main impact of the 

30 wind occurred and that with an old timber structure 
like that there would be vibration.

(Butt objects to this evidence on the ground 
that it was not put to the defendants' expert wit­ 
ness, Mr. Moore, and submits that the witness should 
not be allowed to give evidence of matters not put 
to Mr. Moore.)

(Objection overruled)

I did not see any evidence to support this 
rise of 2" to 3" of which Mr. Moore spoke.

40 By Court; I had no opportunity of examining columns 
and base plates other than those in the plaintiff's 
area.
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Cross- 
examination.

After the roof had "been lowered as I came up 
the stairs I looked at the trusses themselves and 
saw that their alignment to each other was regular. 
I was looking at the trusses during the process of 
lowering over a period of time and again after they 
had been lowered and put into the new position.

I made an examination of the truss anchorage 
of tv/o of the columns in the plaintiff's area. 
There is one in his premises and one between his 
premises and the head of the stairs. Towards the 10 
north end I would expect evidence of distortion in 
the trusses rather than in the anchorage. I saw no 
such distortion.

When I inspected the building the gallery roof 
was off. I saw sections of the window framing on 
the top of the balustrade up to plate level. The 
framing was generally of flimsy construction. I did 
not see all the uprights but those I saw were notch­ 
ed into the balustrade sill.

My general opinion with regard to the main 20 
building was that it was sound. I recommended that 
the parapet wall should be demolished and rebuilt. 
It is a simple operation. The balustrade, flooring 
and main steel frame of the balcony I consider to 
be of sound and strong construction. Prom balus­ 
trade level up to the roof I consider to be of light 
construction. The former could be retained but the 
latter would have to be newly constructed. It vrould 
be sound construction to replace it.

G ro s s-exam ine d Wells; 30

I paid three main visits for the purpose of 
inspection of the building;

(1) 27/11/58

(2) 19/12/58

(3) 16/2/59.

Between the second and third visits I paid 
several short visits, Between the 19/12/58 and the 
16/2/59 the staircase was altered. I did notice 
the staircase between those dates. The new stair­ 
case was probably constructed early in the new year. 40

I went 'there on the 27/11/58 at the Plaintiff's
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request and not for the purpose of preparing evi­ 
dence to be given in a Rent Restriction matter. I 
knew nothing about this.

The plaintiff asked me if I could make a sur­ 
vey of the building for him. I asked him if he 
would get the necessary permission for me. My sur­ 
vey did not depend on my getting the necessary 
permission. I told him I could survey from his 
premises. I could not make a proper and complete 

10 survey unless I had access to all parts of the
building because I would be at a disadvantage. I 
inspected all it was possible for me to inspect. 
I observed the demolition and the various parts of 
the building that were lowered and reassembled.

On the 2?th November, 1958 although I could 
not get access to all the premises, I nevertheless 
made a general inspection on that date of the parts 
to which I had access and from the outside of the 
building. I made notes of this first inspection. I 

20 believe I have them.

Witness refers to a file. I have got the 
notes in my possession. I did make some notes of 
the general condition of the building. I did not 
get a ladder and examine the ceiling of the plain­ 
tiff's office on that day.

On the 2?th November, 1958 I had walked with 
the plaintiff as far as the offices of the Trinidad 
Automobile Association. On returning we discussed 
the question of my getting permission to survey the 

30 premises. We discussed the question of repairs to 
the plaintiff's portion of the premises among other 
things.

Question; What repairs did you discuss with regard 
to his portion?

Answer: The plaintiff was concerned about the fact 
that his portion of the balcony and offices 
was now uncovered and exposed to the 
weather. He wanted to know whether it was 
a simple thing to repair the balcony, so 

40 that his portion would get covered. On
that date I don't remember seeing the 
movable plywood partition.

We did discuss the question of rain. He told 
me that he was affected by rain blowing in.

In the 
Supreme Court

Plaintiff's 
Evidence in 
Rebuttal

No. 14

Evidence of 
Rupert Douglas 
Archibald.
Gross- 
examination 
- continued.



72.

In the 
Supreme Court

Plaintiff's 
Evidence in 
Rebuttal

No. 14

Evidence of 
Hubert Douglas 
Archibald.
Cross- 
examination 
- continued.

He made no mention of rain coming through the roof. 
He was complaining about an eave-gutter and down 
pipe at the north western corner causing water to 
fall on his gallery near the counter.

On the 19th December I went back. I hod 
observed that demolition. I believe I got in touch 
with the plaintiff's legal advisers.

I was first shown the City Engineer's notice 
just prior to the 27th November 1958. On the 19th 
December, 1958 I confined myself to the stairway, 10 
the portion of the balcony leading to the plaintiff's 
office, the plaintiff's offices including the bal­ 
cony. I also walked around on the streets outside 
and surveyed.

If I made any notes on that visit, they were 
very general. I have not got them.

Between the 19th December, 1958 and 16th 
February 1959 I might have paid 6-8 short visits.

Between the 27th November, 1958 and the 19th 
December 1958, I paid about three short visits. On 20 
these short visits I always confined myself to the 
stairway, the hallway, the access to the plaintiff's 
office and the plaintiff's office.

The 16th February was ray third main visit. The 
purpose of it was to finalise the writing of my re­ 
port.

On that day I knew that there was something 
like an injunction being prepared. I was asked to 
submit a proper report. As a result I made this 
visit on the 16th to finalise my report. I went 30 
back to take specific measurements where possible 
and to check up on everything.

I have in my possession written notes relating 
to this matter prior to the 16th February, 1959- 
These are my rough notes. Probably, I began to make 
these notes just prior to the 16th, or the 16th and 
thereafter. I started to make these notes after I 
heard of the injunction. The majority of the notes 
are reflected in the plan I drew, exhibit 'N'.

I never submitted interim reports in writing 40 
before I started making these notes I have produced.

I have seen the City Engineer's notice A.6. I
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have seen similar notices "before. This .notice refers 
to No. 2 St.Vincent Street. I asked for clarifica­ 
tion of it and was advised to report on the whole 
premises Nos.2 and 4 St. Vincent Street.

I say that from the top portion of balustrade 
to roof level was of flimsy construction. I never 
saw the roof. One of the theories 1 have is that 
it was at first an open balcony and that the win­ 
dows and roof were added later, another one is this, 

10 that there may have been a roof and balustrade but 
no windows at all. I didn't see any upright run - 
ning through from the floor to the roof.

The portion of the balustrade and windows 
remaining that I can say I examined as such rather 
than looked at was the portion in the plaintiff's 
premises. I looked to see what the form of con­ 
struction was.

Witness referred to H.3. I see the upright in 
the centre between the glass window and the glass 

20 louvres. I must have looked at it. It did not go 
down to the floor. I don't recall particularly 
examining the upright on the right.

My opinion is that this upright did not go down 
to the floor. My conclusion was that all the up­ 
rights were notched into the balustrade. As shown 
in the picture, the portions of the balcony above 
the balustrade were very loosely tied and could come 
down quite easily - could also be blown down quite 
easily by another strong wind.

30 On the 27th November 1958 I tested the balus­ 
trade in the way I have described. That was about 
my main examination. I also examined the framing 
of it and also the distance_apart of the uprights. 
I didn't make any more physical examinations.

By Court; If I were told that there were one or two 
uprights going down to floor level along the whole 
length of the balcony, I could not deny that. I 
was concerned with the construction of it as a whole.

I heard Bleasdell give evidence about bringing 
40 down the balustrade by tapping. Bleasdell's evi­ 

dence would not be consistent with the balustrade 
being firmly constructed. I never heard of tapping 
with a 10 or 14 pound sledge. The HI-RIB plaster 
would stiffen the balustrade frame. The balustrade
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in cross-section is of quite heavy weight. Once 
you get it moving, it would become easier to move 
as you go along.

I said that the columns in themselves were 
strong enough to stand the loads and stresses on 
them. At the same time the perimeter beams did 
afford additional strength.

I have heard evidence given that there were 3 
cracks in the perimeter beam. I saw one of them, 
not the other two. 10

Question: Can you explain how they came to be 
cracked?

Answer; The three beams may have been cracked 
prior to the storm.

I am willing .to accept that the crack I saw 
was a recent one, that it could have been caused by 
the storm.

Question; If there were 3 beams cracked how might 
this have happened?

Answers Perhaps a heavy piece of debris, e.g. 20 
timber struck there.

The perimeter beam is covered by either the 
parapet wall, the guttering or the edge of the gal­ 
vanize, and one of these should show the impact if 
a heavy object cracked it.

When I first saw the crack the parapet wall 
was there. I examined it only from underneath and 
the front in the first instance. The roof was then 
on.

Luncheon adjournment. 30 

Court resumes at 1.30 p.m.

What I saw showed no indication of anything 
heavy having hit the perimeter beam.

By Court; I don't think that the structure was 
damaged by the storm - thus giving rise to these 
cracks.

I have done no special work in connection with
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damage to buildings by storm or bombs. The only 
work I have done on that is that I have seen fac­ 
tory structures in Canada designed to withstand 
bombing blasts, etc.

In late 1954 we had a severe earthquake shock, 
I interested myself in one or two places I was told 
had been affected and then I read a report written 
by one of my brother engineers. My other knowledge 
comes from the reading of journals etc. I have not 

10 had to do with actual repair work as a result of 
hurricane or bomb damage.

The strength of a structure like this lies in 
the fact that it is all connected up. It would be 
described as a monolithic structure.

A storm of this type would change direction. 
You could get a whirlwind effect. This freak wind 
(Eould be described as in the nature of a small 
hurricane. This type of changing force would tend 
to -cause vibrations. There is also a possibility 

20 of shearing stresses in the horizontal plane.

Questions Did you think that vibrations or shearing 
stresses if they got strong enough could 
produce cracks in the perimeter beams?

Answer: I would say that if we had a full fledged 
hurricane over a longer period of time the 
roof might have lifted in part or in whole 
or be damaged or twisted.

A force of sufficient strength could produce 
the cracks in the perimeter beam that have been 

30 spoken of. A wind of sufficient violence might tear 
the whole roof off, it could shear the angle bolts 
and tear the trusses away. Another type of wind 
might take the covering away and tear the framework 
up, all types of freak effects might take place.

Part of the trouble is caused by the differ­ 
ence in pressure above and under the roof. On the 
16th September, 1958 I walked around the damaged 
area in Port of Spain. The damage was over a 
narrow twisting area.

40 All the parapet walls were damaged in the storm 
with the possible exception of one. My opinion was 
that the whole parapet wall should be removed. The 
loosening of the parapet wall was probably due to
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the loosening and shaking of the roof rafters, i.e. 
the balcony roof rafters.

There was a rut right round the parapet wall 
which had reduced its effective thickness to per­ 
haps half what it had been. There were vertical 
cracks in the parapet wall in most of the panels. 
I don't accept that the cracking of the .parapet 
wall was not merely the result of what was going on 
in the balcony roof but what was going on in the 
main structure of the building.

I have seen only one perimeter beam cracked 
about 4 feet from the face of its support. I can't 
speak about the other beams. I have seen on my 
inspections that one or two balcony rafters - I 
feel that if those balcony rafters went out there 
would be sufficient force to cause the vertical 
cracks in the parapet wall. If the roof had risen 
to some extent, then I would, not deny that cracks 
could be produced in the parapet wall - especially 
at ends on the panels.

By Gourt; My view is that the wind was not of suffi­ 
cient strength to produce those effects. 
I have studied and analysed the after 
effects of the storm.

Re-examination. Re-examined Wharton;

Re-cross- 
examination.

If the storm had been sufficiently strong to 
cause the effects described, I wouldn't have been 
surprised if the gallery had gone to the extent 
that only the steel frame would be left. The only 
part of the balcony that I would have expected to be 
left would be the steel frame.

The dead weight of the roof trusses, purlins 
and galvanize would be approximately 40 tons.

The parapet wall was probably cast with the 
perimeter beam when they were casting it. The 
wooden plate at the base of the parapet wall was 
about If-" thick x 4 inches deep - plate would be 
put on edge - made of pitch pine. The building was 
designed to withstand a wind at speed of 80 miles 
per hour.

Gross-examined Wells with leave of Court;

I said yesterday that there are buildings with

10

20

30

40
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roofs of different levels, 
photos B.I and P.I.

Witness referred to

You could bring the lowered roof up to the 
vertical line of the old roof. You would have to go 
into the matter and design it carefully. There 
would have to "be a steel frame of some type to rise 
up and meet- the other roof. It would have to be a 
proper design, it would cost a certain amount of 
money. You would have to investigate the fact that 

10 you are designing a roof with two levels. You might 
have to strengthen each portion of the roof.

Re -exam• ined___ jl/harton;

That work would be in the ordinary course of 
engineering practice - nothing extraordinary about 
it.
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DEFENDANT'S EVIDENCE IS REPLY TO REBUTTAL

No. 15 

EVIDENCE OF ARTHUR DUDLEY MOORE

Wednesday llth March, 1959

20 Defendant's witness ARTHUR DUDLEY MOORE is re-called 
by the Court,sworn states;

In Escala and Navarre's office I saw the lift­ 
ing of the ceiling running "back to the entrance - 
also in the next bay back - North of Escala and 
Navarro's immediately next to escala and Navarre's - 
I think it is the Automobile Association. I didn't 
notice it in any other ceiling. The other evidence 
of lifting of the main roof was the cracks in the 
parapet walls and perimeter beam. When one looks 

30 at the roof void, on entering the trap door you could 
see the back of the box guttering had been disturbed.

I adhere to my previous statement that the 
first truss from the southern end must have been 
torn from its bearings.

Defendant's 
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Rebuttal

No. 15

Evidence of 
Arthur Dudley 
Moore.
Examination by 
Court.

It's very difficult with the eye to measure 
distortion over the whole of the roof.
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With regard to Mr. Archibald's opinion re the 
way in which damage took place to the fourth truss 
from the northern end I can't express an opinion 
because I didn't see which way it was bent.

(Re condition 3) - the rafters on the southern 
hip were torn by the blast, thus moving the whole 
of the southern hip in an upward direction. The 
galvanized roofing was disturbed on the southern end 
and over the main roof and vent, in reality both of 
them.

I am not certain how far back the lifting of 
the roof went. I would say the whole of the roof 
must have been disturbed. The parapet gutter was 
disturbed right back. The only way the parapet 
gutter could be disturbed would be by roof suction 
the members on which it was built causing the move­ 
ment of the gutter. It could also be disturbed if 
material fell vertically into the width of the para­ 
pet gutter.

1.30 p.m. resumed.

Butt addresses.

Thursday 12th March, 1959.

Butt continues.

10.45 a.m. Wharton replies.

Luncheon adjournment.

G our t resumes at 1.30 p.m.

C.A.V.

10

20
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OP TRINIDAD Phillips J.
AND TOBAGO ^Oth September

No.107 of 1959

BETWEEN

ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN 
trading as A.J.MAURITZEN & CO.

Plaintiff

10 and

GORDON GRANT AND COMPANY LIMITED
Defendant

JUDGMENT

The Plaintiff is a monthly tenant of the 
Defendant Company in respect of a portion of the 
first floor of premises known and assessed as 
Nos.2 and 4 St.Vincent Street, Port of Spain. 
The premises occupied by the Plaintiff (herein­ 
after called "the demised premises") consist of 

20 a large room and a portion of a balcony which
runs along the whole length of the western side 
of the building, and are used by the Plaintiff 
for the purposes of the business of a Customs 
and freight forwarding agent, which he carries 
on under the style of A.J. Mauritzen & Co. The 
tenancy of the demised premises falls within-the 
provisions of the Rent Restriction Ordinance, 
Ch.27 No.18.

On the llth September, 1958, there was a 
30 windstorm which caused severe damage to several 

buildings in Port of Spain, including the 
premises known as Nos.2 and 4 St.Vincent Street, 
as well as the building known as No.6 St.Vincent 
Street, which immediately adjoins these premises
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on their northern side, and is occupied by the 
Defendant Company for the purposes of its 
business.

The Defendant Company'had the damage in­ 
spected by their architect, Mr. A.D. Moore, who 
held the view that it would not be an economic 
proposition to have repairs done to the build­ 
ing, and stated at the trial that, in his opin­ 
ion, necessary repairs would cost between 
#25,000 - #35,000. By letter dated the 30th 10 
September, 1958, the Defendant Company informed 
the Plaintiff of their intention not to repair 
the building and forwarded to him a formal 
notice to quit the demised premises.

The Plaintiff, however, who appears to 
have been disappointed by the failure of the 
Defendant Company to commence repairs to the 
demised-premises, in a letter dated the 2nd 
October, 1958, wrote to the Defendant Company 
(inter alia) as follows: 20

"Meanwhile, as you are aware, we are 
suffering very serious inconvenience and 
damage from rain not only from the dam­ 
aged gallery, but from the leaking roof 
and gutter spout. These must be repaired 
immediately, if only temporarily, other­ 
wise we will find ourselves forced to 
have them done ourselves on your account.

It was noticed by your tenants in 2/4 
St. Vincent Street, naturally with great 30 
interest, that repairs to your main build­ 
ing which houses your own offices, were 
effected in record time. We understood 
your explanation of 'First things first 1 , 
but did not understand that, as far as we 
are concerned, this meant 'Never 1 . We 
very much regret the tone of this letter, 
but find it impossible to express our­ 
selves in any other way."

Consequent upon an inspection of the premises 40 
made by a representative'of the City Engineer 
a demolition notice dated the 4th October, 1958 
was served upon the Defendant Company in rela­ 
tion to-the premises. This notice, a copy of 
which was'forwarded to the Plaintiff as an
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enclosure to a letter from the Defendant Company, 
dated the 7th October, 1958, is in the follow­ 
ing termss

NOTICE

"Your attention is directed to the condi­ 
tion of the building on premises assessed 
as No.2 St. Vincent Street, Port of Spain, 
which, as a result of damage done by the 
high winds some time ago, is as under:-

10 (a) There is sufficient evidence that the
anchorage of the roof of the main part 
of the building has been affected to 
such an extent that its resistance to 
wind can no lon'ger be considered satis- 
f act ory.

(b) The parapet wall along the southern 
and western sides of the building is 
cracked horizontally where it was 
bonded to the main walls of the build- 

20 ing

(c) The balcony over the footways of South 
Quay and St. Vincent Street is without 
a roof and is not tied to the main 
building which causes the wall enclos­ 
ing it to be unstable.

(d) There are cracks in the concrete
columns and beams on the first floor.

You are therefore required under section 
208 (2) of the Port of Spain Corporation 

30 Ordinance, Chap.39 No.l, to take down the 
roof, the parapet wall along the southern 
and western sides of the building, and the 
balcony over the footways on South Quay 
and St. Vincent Street within thirty (30) 
days of the date of this notice".

All the tenants of the Defendant Company in 
occupation of portions of the first floor left 
the premises with the exception of the Plaintiff, 
who, however, expressed his willingness to leave 

40 as soon as he could find suitable alternative
accommodation. By letter dated the 9th December, 
1958, the Defendant Company wrote to the

In the 
Supreme C ourt

No.16

Judgment of 
Phillips J. 
30th September
1959 
continued



82.

In the Plaintiff as follows? 
Supreme Court
————— "We would refer to our letter of October 

JT -,g enclosing copy of notice which we received 
* from the City Council directing us to do 

Judgment of certain demolition work on the premises, 
Philli j which you are now occupying as our tenant. 
30th September W® have now been advised that certain parts 
1959 ^ of the building are in imminent danger of 
continued falling. Immediate steps, therefore, are

being taken to remove the worst of these 10 
dangers. Warning notices are being put up 
to this effect and (sic) wish to draw these 
dangers to your attention, staff and 
customers.

In keeping with our promise that should we
hear of any alternative accommodation we
would advise you, we understand that Mr.
Assee of Hotel Miramar, 52 South Quay,
(sic) whom we understand has an office for
rent at 90 Frederick Street". 20

The Plaintiff, however, continued in occu­ 
pation of the demised premises and on or about 
the 13th December, 1958, the Defendant Company, 
in compliance with the requirements of the 
notice served on them by the City Engineer, 
began certain demolition work which continued 
up to about the 4th day of February, 1959, when 
the Plaintiff issued the Writ of Summons in this 
action.

By his Statement of Claim the Plaintiff 30 
makes certain complaints in connection with this 
demolition work and claims (inter alia) damages 
for trespass and/or breach of an implied coven­ 
ant for quiet enjoyment and/or nuisance arising 
therefrom.

The principal matters of complaint may be 
summarised as follows :-•

(a) Nuisance from dust, dirt and noise
resulting from the demolition work done
on portions of the premises not occu- 40
pied by the Plaintiff.

(b) Removal of the roof over the stairway 
used by the Plaintiff as a means of
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access to the demised premises, and the In the
erection of a roofless stairway alleged Supreme Court
to be not as convenient as the original —————
stairway. No>16

(c) Removal of windows and of the balus- Judgment of
trade supporting the windows of the Phillips J
portion of the balcony on the western 30th September
side of the demised premises. 1959

_,_.„,,-. j -j. j - j. • continued The Defendant Company admits doing certain
10 demolition work on portions of the building not 

tenanted by the Plaintiff, admits the removal 
of the balustrade and window frames from the 
portion of the balcony occupied by him, but 
claims that this action was justified~by"the 
fact that since the date of the windstorm the 
balcony had become dangerous to the occupiers 
of the premises as well as to members of the 
public, and that they acted in compliance with 
the requirements of the City Engineer's demoli-

20 tion notice. The Defendant Company also counter­ 
claims against the Plaintiff for possession of 
the demised premises on the ground that the same 
is required by law to be demolished.

With regard to the Plaintiff's claim for 
damages for nuisance, it was submitted by 
counsel for the Defendant Company that while 
there is evidence of some inconvenience from 
dust and noise resulting from the demolition 
work undertaken by the Defendant Company, there

30 was no proof that the inconvenience was such as 
to amount to an actionable nuisance. According 
to the evidence of the Plaintiff which has not 
been seriously challenged and which I accept in 
relation to this matter, for a period of some­ 
what more than one month after commencement of 
the demolition work there was a considerable 
amount of dust and noise resulting therefrom 
which caused a great deal of inconvenience and 
discomfort. The Plaintiff described this state

40 of affairs in the following wordsJ-

"About the 20th December, 1958 and there­ 
after - before and after Christmas -"demo­ 
lition work was going' on - long wooden 
planks were dropped from one end. There 
was bound to be noise - plenty of dust. 
At a certain stage they demolished the
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main pillars of the "building with sledges 
and pickaxes - down to about three feet 
from the first floor level. Dust and dirt 
entered my place and covered my papers. 
This continued for over a month - much 
more than a month.

The noise was so bad that if you were 
speaking on the telephone you would have 
to wait till the noise finished before 
the listener could hear what you were 
saying.

The dust got on to your papers. If you 
dusted at 8 a.m. you would be dusting 
again at 9 a.m. Old paint and old wood 
would be full of dust. This sort of dis­ 
turbance continued daily."

There is also to be considered the Plain­ 
tiff's evidence in relation to the operation of 
the Defendant Company's coffee hulling machine, 
which had always resulted in a certain quantity 
of coffee husks entering-the demised premises, 
a state of affairs which, however, was aggra­ 
vated by the demolition of the eastern wall of 
the building south of the demised premises. 
This aggravated situation was continuing up to 
the date of trial of this action.

It is important to bear in mind that cer­ 
tain steps were taken by the Defendant Company 
to reduce the inconvenience from noise and dust 
suffered by the Plaintiff. ?or this purpose 
the Defendant Company put up a row of" galvaniz­ 
ed sheets over the slats on the southern side 
of the demised premises. These sheets were 
removed after a period of about a month, at 
which time the noise and dust resulting from 
the demolition work were very much less than 
before.

In Bedford v. Leeds Corporation (1913) 77 
J.P. 430, Sargant, J. during the course of his 
judgment says, at p.433s-

10

20

30

40

"In considering whether the noises so 
described, even after allowing for some
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natural exaggeration on the part of the 
witnesses, constitutes a nuisance, I 
have had regard not only to the well- 
known definition of a nuisance by KNIG-HT- 
BP.UC3, V.C., IN Walter v. Selfe, (1851) 4 
De G-&S 315 as an "inconvenience materially 
interfering with the ordinary comfort phy­ 
sically of human existence", but to the two 
following apposite passages from the judg­ 
ments of POLLOCK, C.B., in Bamford v. 
Turnley, (1862) 3 B.& S. 79, an* EARLE, 
C.J., in Cavey v. Ledbetter (1863), 13 O.B. 
(M.S.) 476.

The learned CHIEF BARON said this, viz:

'I do not think that the nuisance for 
which an action will lie is capable of 
any legal definition which will be 
applicable to all actions and useful 
in deciding them. The question so en­ 
tirely depends on the surrounding cir­ 
cumstances - the place where - the time 
when - the alleged nuisance, what - the 
mode of committing it, how - and the 
duration of it, whether temporary or 
permanent, occasional or continued - as 
to make it impossible to lay down any 
rule of law applicable to every case, 
and which will be also useful in assist­ 
ing a jury to come to a satisfactory 
conclusion. It must at all times be a 
question of fact with reference to all 
the circumstances of the case. 1

The learned CHIEF JUSTICE says this:

'The affairs of life in a dense neigh­ 
bourhood cannot be- carried on without 
mutual sacrifices of comfort, and in all 
actions for discomfort the law must re-- 
gard the principle of mutual"adjustment, 
and the notion that the degree of dis­ 
comfort which might sustain an action 
under some circumstances must therefore 
do so under all circumstances is as un­ 
tenable as the notion that, if the act 
complained of was. done in a convenient 
time and place, it must therefore be 
justified whatever was the degree of
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In the annoyance that was occasioned thereby 1 . 
Supreme Court
————— Counsel for the Defendant Company placed 
Wn ifi great reliance on Harrison v. Southark and

Vauxhall Water Co., (1891J 2 Oh* 409, which was 
Judgment of an action for nuisance arising from certain 
Philli-Ds J operations of the Defendant Water Company carri- 
30th September e ^ ou"^ in P^3"-9*106 of statutory powers. It is 
^qcn p clear from the judgment that the same principle 
continued would have been applied to the case of a private

owner of property acting in pursuance of the 10 
ordinary legal rights attaching to his owner­ 
ship .

Vaughan Williams, J. says at pp.413-414s-

"In the first place, it seems to me 
that if the Defendants had without 
statutory authority sunk this shaft 
and done this pumping for any lawful 
and ordinary purpose in the exercise 
of their powers as private owners of 
the land they would not have been 20 
responsible as for a nuisance. It 
frequently happens that the owners or 
occupiers of land cause, in the 
execution of lawful works in the 
ordinary user of land, a considerable 
amount of temporary annoyance to 
their neighbours; but they are not 
necessarily on that account held to 
be guilty of causing an unlawful nuis­ 
ance . The business of life could not 30 
be carried on if it were so. """For 
instance, a man who pulls down his 
house, for the purpose of building a 
new one no doubt causes considerable 
inconvenience to his next door neigh­ 
bours during the process of demoli­ 
tion; but he is not responsible as 
for a nuisance if he uses all reason­ 
able skill and care to avoid annoyance 
to his neighbour by the works of 40 
demolition. Nor is he liable to an 
action, even though the noise and dust 
and the consequent annoyance be such 
as would constitute a nuisance if the 
same, instead of being created for the 
purpose of the demolition of the house, 
had been created in sheer wantonness,
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or in the execution of works for a 
purpose involving a permanent contin­ 
uance of the noise and dust. For the 
law, in judging what constitutes a 
nuisance, does take into consideration 
both the object and duration of that 
which is said to constitute the nuis­ 
ance; Ball v. Ray Law Rep. 8 Ch.467- 
It seems to me, therefore, that the

10 Defendants are, to say the least,
placed by their statute in the same 
position as private persons. The 
statute, by making the sinking of the 
shaft intra vires, and therefore law­ 
ful, has enabled the Defendant company 
lawfully to do bhat which private per­ 
sons may do without any statutory 
authority. That being so, it seems to 
me that the obligations of the Defen-

20 dant Company in respect of the sinking
of the shaft are neither greater nor 
less than those of a private person, 
and that a private person would not in 
similar circumstances be held to have 
created a legal nuisance by reason of 
the annoyance caused to his neighbours 
in the pumping for the purpose of sink­ 
ing the shaft, unless it"could Be ~ " 
shevm that he had neglected to take all

30 reasonable precautions for mitigating
the annoyance to his neighbours."

Reference may also usefully be made to the 
judgment of the Court of Appeal in Andreae v. 
Selfridge & Co. Ltd.. (1937) 3 A.E.R. 255, where- 
in at p7264, Sir Wilfred Greene, M.R. stated the 
law relating to nuisance from temporary opera­ 
tions as follows;

"But it was said that, when one is 
dealing with temporary operations, such 

40 as demolition and building, everybody
has to put-up with a certain amount of 
discomfort, because operations of that 
kind cannot be carried on at all with­ 
out a certain amount of noise and a 
certain amount of dust. Therefore, the 
rule with regard to interference must be 
read subject to this qualification, and 
there can be no dispute about it, that,
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in respect of operations of this 
character, such as demolition and build­ 
ing, if they are reasonably carried on, 
and all proper and reasonable steps are 
taken to ensure that no undue inconven­ 
ience is caused to neighbours, whether 
from noise, dust, or other reasons, the 
neighbours must put up with it."

In the light of the above-mentioned princi­ 
ples it seems to me that the allegations of the 10 
Plaintiff in respect of discomfort and inconven­ 
ience arising from dust and noise caused by the 
Defendant Company's demolition operations are not 
such as to give rise to an actionable nuisance, 
and the Plaintiff accordingly fails on this part 
of his claim.

I turn now to consider the Plaintiff's claim 
against the Defendant Company in relation to 
their alleged interference with the stairway by 
which the Plaintiff gained access to the demised 20 
premises. The original staircase giving access 
from the ground floor to the first floor of the 
premises was completely within the building and 
not exposed to the weather. It was boarded up on 
each side and had handrails. It was in two 
sections. On entering the ground floor from St. 
Vincent Street one turned left and mounted the 
first section of the staircase. One then turned 
left again and ascended the second section.

As a result of the removal of the greater 30 
portion of the roof, and its being lowered to a 
height slightly above the level of the first floor, 
it became necessary to remove the second section 
of the staircase and replace it by an uncovered 
stairway which turns to the right from its"junc­ 
tion with the first section of the original stair­ 
case. The result is that the new stairway leads 
to a point on the first floor nearer to the 
demised premises then was the case with the old 
stairway, and it is to be noted that, had the 40 
second section of the old stairway been still in 
use, any person going to the demised premises 
would have been exposed to the weather for some 
distance on account of the fact that the roof of 
the balcony on the western side of the building 
was completely destroyed by the windstorm of the 
llth September, 1958.
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Additional matters of complaint are that 
the new stairway has no handrails, that Its" 
width is approximately two-thirds "of "that"of 
the old one, and that at the top of the stair­ 
way there are two projections of pieces of 
board which, render it unsafe or at least in­ 
convenient.

It was submitted by counsel for the 
Plaintiff that a landlord's implied covenant 

10 for quiet enjoyment operates so as to protect 
the tenant not only in relation to his enjoy­ 
ment of the actual subject-matter of the ten­ 
ancy, but also of all ancillary rights con­ 
nected therewith, one of which is the right of 
access| and it was contended that the acts in 
question constitute a "breach of the covenant 
and/or an actionable nuisance.

Counsel referred to the case of Allport v. 
Securities Corporation, (1895) 64 L.J. Oh.491, 

20 in which the Court made a mandatory order for 
the reinstatement by a landlord of a staircase 
which he had, in a high-handed manner and with­ 
out any semblance of justification, removed and 
replaced by another staircase which was a cir­ 
cuitous and less convenient route. In my opin­ 
ion, the circumstances of that case are quite 
different from those under consideration, and I 
consider the decision therein inapplicable to 
the present case.

30 Counsel for the Defendant Company," ori'the 
other hand, while admitting that the taking 
away from a tenant of his means of access to de­ 
mised premises would be a breach of the land­ 
lord's implied covenant for quiet enjoyment, 
submitted that the Plaintiff in this case was 
never deprived of access to his premises that he 
had no legal right to access by a stairway 
covered by a roof, that the new staircase pro­ 
vided a less circuitous means of access to the

40 demised premises and that the alleged interfer­ 
ence with the same does not amount either to a 
breach of the implied covenant for quiet enjoy­ 
ment or to an actionable nuisance.

In this connection counsel relied on Phelps 
v. London Corporation; (1916) 2 Ch. 255? in 
which the principles referred to in Harrison v. 
Southwark and Vauxhall Water Go., (ubi supra)
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and Manchester, Sheffield and Lincolnshire 
Rly.""So": v. Anderson, (1898) 2 Cli. 394, ?01 t 
were applied." In the last mentioned case, 
Lindley, M.R., during the course-of his judg­ 
ment in the Court of Appeal said, at pp.401, 
402 ;

"I will only add a few words about the 
covenant for quiet enjoyment because 
counsel for the Defendant urged us to 
go to an extent rather alarming to 10 
real property lawyers. I take it 
that a mere temporary inconvenience 
caused by a lessor, not in depriving 
his tenant of a right of way, but in 
rendering his access less convenient 
than it was, is not a" breach "of 
covenant for quiet enjoyment. A tem­ 
porary inconvenience which does not 
interfere with the estate or title or 
possession is not, to my mind, a 20 
breach of covenant, nor is there any 
case that goes anything like the 
length required to shew that it is. 
Even the judgment of Pry L.J., in the 
case that carried it farthest, 
Sanderson v. Berwick-upon-Tweed Cor­ 
poration 13 Q.B.D. 547,551, in which 
he says that anything which substan­ 
tially interferes with the enjoyment 
by the tenant is a breach of that 30 
covenant, must be taken with refer­ 
ence to the facts then before the 
Court, which were that water was pour­ 
ed on the land demised so as to inter­ 
fere with the enjoyment of the demised 
property."

In my judgment, the circumstances under 
consideration are not such as to found a claim 
either for breach of covenant for quiet enjoy­ 
ment or for nuisance, and the plaintiff accord- 40 
ingly fails on this branch of his claim.

The next issue that arises for considera­ 
tion is that relating to the Defendant Company's 
admitted removal of the balustrade and windows" 
from the portion of the balcony forming "part of 
the demised premises. It is to be observed 
that this is the only operation of the Defendant



91.

Company alleged to be done actually on the demis­ 
ed premises. Evidence was given on behalf of 
the Defendant Company by a witness called 
Daniel Bleasdell, a foreman carpenter, who was 
engaged in the demolition operations, to the 
effect that he obtained the permission of the 
Plaintiff to demolish the balustrade and win­ 
dows. I do not, however, believe this evidence 
and accept the Plaintiff's testimony that all 

10 he consented to v/as the removal of the frames
of some windows which had been damaged by the 
windstorm.

It was contended on behalf of the Defend­ 
ant Company that they had a legal right to 
enter the demised premises and do the acts in 
question, the foundation for this right being 
alleged to be the fact that the dangerous condi­ 
tion in which the windstorm had left the balcony, 
which overhangs the public highway, imposed on 

20 the Defendant Company the obligation of taking 
steps to prevent harm accruing to persons using 
the said highway.

A considerable amount of evidence was ad­ 
duced by each party in this case with regard to 
the question as to the extent to which the 
balustrade of the balcony on the western side 
of the building as a whole and particularly the 
portion of it within the demised premises was 
rendered dangerous by the effects of the wind-

30 storm. I consider that no useful purpose would 
be served by analysing that evidence in detail, 
and that it is sufficient to state that I accept 
the evidence on behalf of the Defendant Company 
in connection with this matter, and find as a 
fact that the condition of the balustrade and 
windows of the balcony within the demised prem­ 
ises after the occurrence of the windstorm did 
constitute a danger to passers-by, as well as 
to persons entering the demised premises. In

40 this connection it must be borne in mind that
the public had free access to the portion of the 
balcony within the demised premises,"which" the 
Plaintiff uses for the purposes of his business.

Counsel relied on Mint v. Good (1950) 2 
_A.E..R, 1159? the head note of which reads (in 
part) as foilows ;
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"A wall separating from a public high­ 
way the forecourt of two houses with­ 
in the Rent Restriction Acts collapsed 
on the public footpath and injured the 
infant Plaintiff who was thereon. The 
defective condition of the wall, which 
was due to lack of repair could have 
been ascertained by inspection. The 
houses were let on weekly tenancies 
under oral agreements to different 10 
tenants. No express provision was 
made in the agreements with regard to 
the liability for repairs and the land­ 
lord reserved no right of entry to 
effect repairs, but he had from time 
to time carried out repairs. In an 
action for damages against the land­ 
lord, HELD: in the absence of evid­ 
ence or of express stipulation to the 
contrary it was to be implied in an 20 
agreement for a weekly tenancy which 
was silent on the matter a term that 
the premises let would be kept in a 
reasonable and habitable condition by 
the landlord and that he would have 
the right to enter and effect neces­ 
sary repairs; the duty of the land­ 
lord in the present case was to see 
that the wall was as safe as reason­ 
able care could make it, and it was 30 
immaterial whether or" not he Had know­ 
ledge of the danger of its collapsing; 
and, therefore, he was liable to the 
infant Plaintiff in damages."

It seems to me that Mint v. Good is direct­ 
ly applicable to the circumstance's under consid­ 
eration, and not the less so because it deals 
with the case of a weekly tenancy. In that case 
Sommervell, L.J. (as he then was; said at p.1162:

"Counsel for the Defendant referred to 40 
those words, "the landlord has express­ 
ly reserved to himself." It seems to 
me that the same principle must apply 
if a landlord has reserved to himself 
the right, whether he has done so im- 
pliedly or expressly. I cannot, envis­ 
age any principle by which a landlord 
should be in one position in the case
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of an express reservation and in a 
different position in the case of an 
implied reservation. The question, 
therefore, here is whether, in the 
circumstances, a right to enter on and 
view the premises and do necessary re­ 
pairs is to be implied. I would have 
said that there is no term which would 
be more easily and more necessarily 
implied "by law in a tenancy of this 
kind than a right in the landlord to 
enter, to examine the premises, and to 
do necessary repairs. It must be in 
the contemplation of both parties to a 
weekly tenancy that the tenant will 
not be called upon to do repairs, al­ 
though the Rent Restriction Acts have 
rather altered the position. Both 
sides must contemplate as the basis of 
the contract that the house will be 
kept in a reasonable and habitable con­ 
dition by the landlord and not by the 
tenant, and, although the landlord 
does not bind himself to do so, bcth 
sides contemplate that he will have the 
right to enter and look after his pro- 
pert3?- by doing repairs."

And Denning, L.J. (as he then was) said at 
pp.1165-1166 ;

"The law of England has always taken 
particular care to protect those who 
use a highwrv. It puts on the occu­ 
pier of adjoining premises a special 
responsibility for the structures which 
he keeps beside the highway. If those 
structures fall into disrepair so as to 
be a potential danger to passers-by 
they become a nuisance, and, what is 
more, a public nuisance, and the occu­ 
pier is liable to anyone using the 
highway who is injured by reason of the 
disrepair. It is no answer for him to 
say that he and-his servants took 
reasonable care, for, even if he has 
employed a competent independent con­ 
tractor to repair the structure, and 
has every reason for supposing it to be 
safe, the occupier is still liable if
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the independent contractor did the 
work badlys see Tarry v. Ashton 
(1876), 1 Q.B.D.314. The occupier's 
duty to passers-by is to see that the 
structure is as safe as reasonable 
care can make it - a duty which is as 
high as the duty which an occupier 
owes to people who pay to come on his 
premises. He is not liable for latent 
defects which could not be discovered 10 
by reasonable care on the part of any­ 
one, nor for acts of trespassers of 
which he neither knew nor ought to 
have known; see Barker v. Herbert 
(1911) 2 K.B.633; but he is liable 
when structures fall into dangerous 
disrepair, because there must be some 
fault on the part of someone for that 
to happen and he is responsible'for it 
to persons using the highway, even 20 
though lie was not actually at fault 
himself. That principle was laid down 
in this court in Wringe v. Gohen (1939) 
4 All E.R. 243, where it is to be noted 
that the principle is confined to 
"premises on a highway".

The question in this case is whether
the owner, as well as the occupier,
is undez- a like duty to passers-by.
I think he is. The law has shown a 30
remarkable development on this point
during the last sixteen years. The
three cases of Wilchick v. Marks &
Silverstone (1934) 2 K.B.56; Wringe
v. Cohen (1939) 4 All E.R. 241; and
Heap v. Ind Coope & Allsopp, Ltd.(1940)
3 All 3.R. 634; show that the courts
are now taking a realistic view of
these matters."

For the reasons indicated I agree with the 40 
submission of counsel for the Defendant Company. 
It was urged on behalf of the Plaintiff that, 
assuming that the balustrade and windows were in 
a dangerous condition, the Defendant Company were 
under a liability to the Plaintiff to replace 
them and were not justified in merely removing 
them. I am unable to accept this submission for 
which, in my view, there is no supporting 
authority.
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Accordingly, in my judgment, the Plaintiff 
also fails on this part of his claim.

I have now to consider the Defendant Company's 
counterclaim for possession of the demised 
premises.

The contractual tenancy-having been duly 
terminated by notice to quit, were it not for 
the operation of the Rent Restriction Ordin­ 
ance, Gh.2? No.18, the Defendant Company would 

10 be entitled to possession.

The Defendant Company claims that the case 
falls within the provisions of section 14- (1) 
(L) of the Ordinance in accordance with which 
the Court may make an order for possession if 
the demised premises are required by law to be 
demolished, and bases its claim on'the demoli­ 
tion notice, dated the 4th October, 1958, 
served on them by the City Engineer, under the 
provisions of section 208(2) of the Port of 

20 Spain Corporation Ordinance.

Reference was made to a judgment of the 
Full Court of this territory dated the 21st 
October, 1958, in the appeal of- -Lalchan Pooran 
vs. Kuar Singh and others, No,164 "of 1958", 
which was an appeal against the refusal of a 
magistrate to make an ejectment order against 
the tenants of certain premises, the landlord 
of which had been served by the Town Engineer 
of San Fernando with a demolition notice, in 

30 accordance with the pro risions of sub-section 
(1) of section 201 of the San Fernando Corpor­ 
ation Ordinance, Ch.39 No.7, which is in 
identical terms (mutatis Mutandis) with those 
of section 208 of the Port of Spain Corpora­ 
tion Ordinance.

Section 208 (2) of the Port of Spain Cor­ 
poration Ordinance is as follows:

"Where any structure within the City
shall be deemed by the City Engineer 

40 to be ruinous or so far dilapidated
as thereby to have become and to be 
unfit for use of occupation, or to be 
from any cause whatever in a structur­ 
al condition dangerous or prejudicial
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to'the property in, or the inhabitants 
of, the neighbourhood, the City Engineer 
may give notice in writing to the owner 
of such structure'requiring him forth­ 
with to take down, secure, repair, or 
rebuild the same, or any part thereof, 
or to fence in the ground on which such 
structure stands, or otherwise to put 
the same in a state of good repair, as 
the case may require, to the satisfac- 10 
tion of the City Engineer, within a 
time to be specified in such notice."

In Pooran 1 s case it was maintained by the 
tenants at the hearing before the magistrate that 
the building in question was not in a dangerous 
state of repair, and was not required by law to be 
demolished. The magistrate, after hearing"evid­ 
ence on both sides as to the condition of the 
building, held that it was not in a dangerous con­ 
dition and was not required by law to be demolish- 20 
ed, and accordingly refused to make an ejectment 
order in favour of the landlord.

The Pull Court, however, reversed this de­ 
cision, and held that (a) the issue as to whether 
or not the building was in fact in a dangerous 
condition was not one upon which it was open to 
the magistrate to adjudicate and (b) the mere 
service on the landlord of the demolition notice 
constituted a requirement by law for demolition of 
the building within the meaning of section (14) 30 
(1) (l) of the Rent Restriction Ordinance.

It was conceded by counsel for the Plaintiff 
that the decision in Pooran v. Kuarsingh and ors.. 
is binding on this Court; and this being so, it 
seems clear that the City Engineer's notice of 
the 4th October, 1958 constitutes a requirement 
by law for demolition of the building for the pur­ 
poses of section (14) (l) (l) of the Rent Restric­ 
tion Ordinance.

The following considerations were, however, 40 
also urged on behalf of the Plaintiff;-

(1) That the demolition notice cannot-be held 
to relate to the demised premises, and,

(2) That tha notice itself is defective and 
does not satisfy the requirements of 
section 208 (2) of the Port of Spain
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Corporation Ordinance.

In support of submission (1) counsel re­ 
lied on the fact that whilst the notice pur­ 
ports to relate to the building on premises as­ 
sessed as No.2 St.Vincent Street, Port of Spain, 
the demised premises are in reality the northern­ 
most part of a building known as No.4 St. Vin­ 
cent Street, which adjoins on its nortne'rn'side 
a building known as No.2 St. Vincent Street.

10 The true position, however, is that the
premises known as No. 2 and 4 St. Vincent Street 
are structurally one building and are assessed 
as a single entity for rating purposes, and it 
is to be observed that under cross-examination 
the Plaintiff stated that the number of the de­ 
mised premises is 2 and 4 St. Vincent Street, 
and that throughout the correspondence between 
the parties the demised premises are regarded as 
being part of the premises situate at Nos.2 and

20 4 St. Vincent Street, Port of Spain.

In these circumstances it seems to me that 
it is clear that the building described in the 
demolition notice as being' on premises assessed 
as No.2 St. Vincent Street, Port of Spain, is 
the same building ?/hich is on premises in fact 
assessed as Nos.2 and 4 St. Vincent Street, and 
that this slight mis-description cannot be held 
to vitiate the notice in relation to its applica­ 
tion to the demised premises.

30 In support of submission (2) it was argued 
that there is nothing on the face of the notice 
to show that the building in question was 
"deemed" by the City Engineer to be dangerous, 
which is the prerequisite for issue of the notice 
as stipulated by section 208 (2) of the Port of 
Spain Corporation Ordinance.

It seems to me that on a fair construction 
of this sub-section there is no necessity for 
the notice specifically to state that the build- 

40 ing was deemed dangerous by the City Engineer. 
From the terms of the notice it is, in my judg­ 
ment, manifest that the City Engineer considered 
the condition of the building as a whole, came to 
the conclusion that certain parts of it had been 
rendered dangerous by the windstorm of the llth 
September, 1958, and as a result served upon 
Defendant Company the notice in question. I,
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accordingly hold that there has "been sufficient 
compliance with the terms of section 208 (2) of 
the Ordinance.

It was further submitted that the require­ 
ment by the City Engineer that the Defendant 
Company should "take down" certain parts of the 
building was not a requirement that the build­ 
ing should be demolished within the meaning of 
section 14 (l) (l) of the Rent Restriction 
Ordinance. 10

/

I am unable to accept this submission, as 
it seems to me that the intention of the Legis­ 
lature in creating this relaxation of the 
restrictions on a landlord's right to obtain 
possession of demised premises, as created by 
this provision of the Ordinance, would be 
rendered nugatory unless such relaxation is 
held to apply to cases where only a portion of 
such premises is required by lav/ to be de­ 
molished. 20

In cases of this nature before making an 
order for possession the Court must be satis­ 
fied not only that the condition stipulated by 
section 14 (1) (l) is fulfilled, but in addi­ 
tion that it is reasonable in the circumstances 
to make the order. There may conceivably be 
cases in which, where only part of demised 
premises is required by lay; to be demolished 
the Court may refuse to make an order for 
possession; for example, on the ground that 30 
the portion of the premises in question may be 
demolished without the necessity of the tenant 
giving up possession.

This, however, in my judgment, is clearly 
not such a case. The circumstances here are 
that the Defendant Company as they were legal­ 
ly entitled to do, and acting in obedience to' 
the requirement of the City Engineer's notice, 
under pain in default of compliance of exposure 
to the consequences provided for by subsections 40 
(4) and (5) of section 208 of the Port of Spain 
Corporation Ordinance, have (inter alia) 
already removed the greater part of the main 
roof of the building, with the result that the 
remaining portion thereof, including the roof 
of the demised premises, has become peculiarly
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liable to be affected by the force of a heavy 
wind. To use the words of Mr. A.D. Moore, an 
architect of considerable experience who gave 
evidence on behalf of the Defendant Companys-

11 It is not entirely safe. The enclosing 
wall at the end is not safe - owing""to 
the fact that there is a vast area expos­ 
ed to any future wind. A sudden squall 
could have the effect of blowing down the 

10 partition and lifting the roof. It would 
probably be blown away".

It is to be noted that the opinion of this 
witness is shared by Mr. A.D. Archibald, a civil 
engineer, who was called on the Plaintiff's be­ 
half, and in relation to this matter expressed 
himself as follows;

"Structurally the condition of the struc­ 
ture surrounding the area of the Plain­ 
tiff's office is sound; but there is a 

20 further bay - the one next going south -
where the original roof has been maintain­ 
ed. There is a face open which makes it 
dangerous. If a strong wind occurred, that 
portion of the roof, including the Plain­ 
tiff's, might be lifted. This condition 
was caused by not completing the lowering 
of the roof. If they hadn't lowered the 
roof this wouldn't have come about."

On the question of whether it is reasonable 
30 to make an order for possession, a further rele­ 

vant though perhaps minor consideration is the 
fact that the Plaintiff flatly refused to consid­ 
er the possibility of obtaining the alternative 
accommodation about which he had been informed by 
the Defendant Company in their letter of the 9th 
December, 1959> on the ground that it was un­ 
suitable for his business. In all circumstances 
of this case it seems to me that not only is it 
reasonable to make an order for possession, but 

40 that it would be most unreasonable to refuse an 
order.

It is now necessary to consider the effect 
of section 14 (3) of the Rent Restriction Ordin­ 
ance, which provides as follows:

In the 
Supreme Court

No.16

Judgment of 
Phillips J. 
30th September
1959 
continued



100.

In the 
Supreme Court

No .16

Judgment of 
Phillips J. 
30th September 
1959 
continued

"Nothing in this Ordinance shall prevent 
the making of an order for the eject­ 
ment of any person where, in the opin­ 
ion of the Court asked to make the' 
order, the ejectment is expedient" in"~~" 
the interest of public health or public 
safety".

The object of this very important section 
is to nullify, in cases where it is applicable, 
all the restrictions imposed by the Ordinance on 10 
a landlord's right of obtaining possession of 
demised premises. The legal position, in my 
judgment, therefore, is that whether or not the 
Defendant Company has satisfactorily established 
the condition laid down by section 14 (l) (1) of 
the Ordinance, viz., that the demised premises 
are required by law to be demolished, this Court 
is empowered to and obviously should make an 
order if it considers it expedient in the inter­ 
est of public safety so to do. 20

A considerable mass of evidence was adduced 
by the parties to this action in relation to the 
effects on the building of the windstorm of the 
llth September 1958, and I consider it suffici­ 
ent to state that I accept the evidence given on 
behalf of the Defendant Company that the build­ 
ing (and particularly the roof and balcony) was 
rendered dangerous as a result of the windstorm, 
and I hold that it is necessary in the interest 
of public safety for the Defendant Company to 30 
carry out the demolition work required by the 
City Engineer's notice of the 4th October, 1958.

The question as to whether a particular 
structure is or is not dangerous may be, of 
course, largely a matter of opinion, but in so 
far as there is any conflict on matters of fact 
between the evidence given on behalf of the 
parties in relation to this matter, I accept 
substantially the evidence adduced on behalf of 
the Defendant Company and reject that adduced 40 
on behalf of the Plaintiff. With regard to the 
testimony of the expert witnesses which in each 
case appeared to be'given fairly and imparti­ 
ally, it is to be observed that whereas the 
Defendant Company's architect spoke as to the 
condition in which he found the building-short­ 
ly after the occurrence of the windstorm, the
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10

evidence of the Plaintiff's expert witness, Mr- 
R.D. Archibald, on the other hand, v/as largely 
a matter of inferences "based upon what he saw a 
considerable time after the windstorm, when the 
removal of the greater portion of the main roof 
of the building had already been completed.

It seems to me that, having regard to the 
dangerous situation that now exists in connec­ 
tion with the portion of the roof (including 
the roof-of the demised premises) that remains 
standing, and bearing in mind the location of 
the building, situated as it is in a densely 
populated part of the business area of Port of 
Spain and adjoining the public highway, it is 
expedient in the interest of public safety 
that an order for possession should be made.
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For the foregoing reasons I am of opinion 
that the Defendant Company is entitled to 
judgment on both the claim and the counterclaim, 

20 The Plaintiff's claim is accordingly dismissed; 
and on the counterclaim I make an order in 
favour of the Defendant-Company for possession 
of the demised premises, with a stay of execu­ 
tion thereof for two months. The Plaintiff 
will pay the costs of the action.

Clement E. Phillips 

PUISNE JUDGE.

30th September, 1959.
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ORDER ON JUDGMENT

TRINIDAD '.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF TRINIDAD AND' TOBAGO 

No.107 Of 1959.

BETWEEN

AIBERT JAMES MAURITZEN
trading as 

A. J. MAURITZEN & CO.

and

GORDON GRANT & COMPANY 
LIMITED

Plaintiff 10

Defendant

Entered the 30th day of September, 1959. 

On the 30th day of September, 1959.

Before the Honourable Mr. Justice Clement 
Phillips.

This action-having on the 2nd, 3rd, 4-th, 
5th, 6th, 9th, 10th, llth and 12th days of 
March, 1959, been tried before the Honourable 
Mr. Justice Clement Phillips in the presence 
of Counsel for the Plaintiff and the Defendant 
and the said Judge upon reading the pleadings 
filed herein and the exhibits put in evidence 
at the said trial and marked A.I - A.16 inclu­ 
sive, B.I - B.3 inclusive, C., D., E.I - E.4, 
P.I. - P.4. inclusive, G.I., G.2., H.I. - H.5. 
inclusive, I., J.I., J.2., S.I. - K.3. inclu­ 
sive, L., M. and N. respectively, and upon 
hearing the evidence of Albert James Mauritzen, 
Christopher Seebaran, Arthur Dudley Moore, 
George Charles Howden, Sage De Silva, Daniel 
Bleasdell, Francis Hugh Wilson and Rupert

20

30
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Douglas Archibald taken upon their oral examina­ 
tion at the said trial and what was alleged by 
Counsel for the Plaintiff and the Defendant, and 
having on the said 12th day of March, 1959, 
ordered that this action should stand for judg­ 
ment and the said action standing for judgment 
this day in the paper and the said Judge having 
ordered that Judgment be entered for the Defen­ 
dant Company on the claim for its costs of 

10 defence and on the counterclaim for the recovery 
of the possession of the demised premises and 
its costs of the said counterclaim and having 
directed that execution be stayed on the judg­ 
ment for the costs for six weeks and on the 
judgment for possession for two months and if 
within the said period of six weeks the"Plain4 
tiff give notice of appeal and enter the same, 
execution be further stayed until the determina­ 
tion of such appeal

20 THEREFORE IT IS THIS DAY ADJUDGED

That the Plaintiff recover nothing against 
the Defendant Company and that the Defendant 
Company recover possession of the premises in 
the statement of claim and defence herein men­ 
tioned and described as a portion of the first 
floor of the premises known as No.4 St. Vincent 
Street, in the City of Port of Spain in the 
Island of Trinidad comprising a room approxi­ 
mately 19 feet by 50 feet at the northernmost 

30 end of the first floor thereof and including 
the portion of the balcony over St. Vincent 
Street footway immediately opposite the said 
room which the Plaintiff held and'occupied of 
the Defendant Company as a tenant, and its costs 
of defence and counterclaim to be taxed.

AND IT IS FURTHER ORDERED

That execution be stayed on the judgment 
for the aforesaid costs for six weeks and on the 
judgment for possession for two months from the 

40 date hereof and if within the said period of six 
weeks the Plaintiff give notice of appeal and 
enter the same, execution on the judgment for 
the costs as well as on the judgment for posses­ 
sion of the demised premises be further stayed 
until the determination of such appeal.

P.S. Ruiz 
De put y-Re gi st rar.
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No. 18. 

NOTICE OF APPEAL

IN THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT

APPELLATE JURISDICTION

NOTICE OF APPEAL

Civil Appeal 
No.19 of 1959-

BETWEEN

ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN 
trading as A.J.MAURITZEN & CO.

Plaintiff Appellant

and

GORDON GRANT AND COMPANY LIMITED
Defendant Respondent

10

TAKE NOTICE that the Plaintiff Appellant 
being dissatisfied with the whole decision more 
particularly stated in paragraph 2 hereof of 
the Supreme Court of Trinidad and To'bago con­ 
tained in the judgment of The Honourable Mr. 
Justice Clement Phillips dated the 30th day of 
September, 1959 doth hereby appeal to the 
Federal Supreme Court upon the grounds set out 
in Paragraph 3 and will at the hearing ~d?~"the' 
appeal seek the relief set out in paragraph 4.

And the Appellant further states that the 
names and addresses including his own of the 
persons directly affected by the appeal are 
those set out in paragraph 5•

2. That Judgment entered for the Respondent 
with costs to be taxed; and that Judgment 
be also entered for the Respondent on its 
Counterclaim with costs to be taxed.

20

30
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3. Grounds of Appeal.

(1) The learned Judge erred in holding:

(a) That the City Engineer's Notice 
of the 4th October, 1958 related 
and/or referred to-the demised 
premises or, if so, satisfied the 
requirements of section 208 of 
the Port of Spain Corporation 
Ordinance.

10 (b) that the said Notice was subsist­ 
ing at the material time .

(c) that the said Notice to "take
down" certain parts of the""Build­ 
ing at No.2 St.Vincent Street was 
a requirement that the walls and 
appurtenances of the upper part of 
the entire premises should be 
demolished.

(d) that the mere service of the said 
20 Notice on the Respondent constitut­ 

ed a requirement by law for demoli­ 
tion of the said demised premises 
within the meaning of Section 14 of 
the Rent Restriction Ordinance.

(2) The learned judge erred in holding:

(a) That the Respondent was entitled to 
enter and/or carry out any demoli­ 
tion of or upon the demised prem­ 
ises in alleged compliance with the 

30 requirement of the said City
Engineer's Notice or at all.

(b) that the Respondent's unauthorised 
removal of the balustrade and win­ 
dows forming part of the demised 
premises was lawful.

(c) that the Respondent's removal of 
the roof and of the-upper section 
of the staircase leading to Appell­ 
ant's premises and its replacement ' 

40 by an uncovered stairway was lawful.
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(3) That the learned judge failed to have 
due regard or give effect to

(a.) The evidence of the Engineer,
Rupert Douglas Archibald, called 
by the Appellant.

(b) the fact that if the demised prem­ 
ises were at any material time in 
a dangerous condition the same was 
caused by the acts of the Respond­ 
ent itself.

(4) The learned judge was wrong in law in 
holding that none of the acts of the 
Respondent (including the removal and 
destruction of the Appellant's busi­ 
ness sign board) constituted a tres­ 
pass or nuisance or breach of the 
covenant for quiet enjoyment.

(5) The order for possession was wrongly 
made.

(6) That the decision of the learned trial 
judge is unreasonable and/or against 
the weight of evidence and/or cannot 
be supported having regard to the 
evidence and accordingly should be 
reversed.

4. (l) That the Judgment of the learned trial 
Judge be set aside and that Judgment 
be entered for the Appellant with 
costs here and in the Court below.

(2) Such further or other relief as to the 
Court may seem just.

Persons directly affected by the appeal. 

Name Address

5.

(1) Gordon Grant & 
Company Limited

(2) Albert James 
Mauritzen trad­ 
ing as A.J. 
Mauritzen & Co.

6 St.Vincent Street,
Port of Spain,
Trinidad.
4 St.Vincent Street,
Port of Spain.
Trinidad.

Dated this 10th day of November, 1959.
H. Hamel-Smith & Co. 

Solicitors for the Appellant.

10

20

30

40
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No.19

JUDGMENT OP CHIEF JUSTICE HALLINAN 
MR. JUSTICE LEWIS and MR. JUSTICE 
MARNAN.

IN THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT 

APPELLATE JURISDICTION

CIVIL

Territory? TRINIDAD & TOBAGO,

In the Federal 
Supreme C ourt

No.19

Judgment of 
Chief Justice 
Hallinan, Mr. 
Justice Lewis 
and Mr.Justice 
Marnan 
2nd November 
I960

10

ON AP_PgAL PROM THE SUPREME COURT OF 

TRINIDAD & TOBAGO

CIVIL APPEAL NO.19 OF 1959.

BETWEEN 

ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN

AND

GORDON GRANT & COMPANY 
LIMITED

Plaintiff- 
Appellant.

Defendant- 
Respondent

20

30

BEFORE
The' Honourable The Chief Justice 

" " Mr- Justice Lewis 
" " Mr. Justice Marnan

llth, 12th, 13th, 14th, October, I960.

Mr.Algernon Wharton Q.C., and Mr.Raymond Hamel-
Smith for the Plaintiff-Appellant. 

Mr.Malcolm Butt Q.C., with Mr.E.H.Wells for the 
Defendant-Respondent.

JUDGMENT 
Mr. Justice Lewis:

On the llth September, 1958, a wind-storm
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occurred in the city of Port-of-Spain and caused 
damage to a number of buildings, amongst them a 
building belonging to the Respondents, situated 
at the corner of St. Vincent Street and South 
Quay and assessed as flos.2 and 4 St. Vincent 
Street. This building was constructed of stone 
with a galvanized iron roof, consisted of a 
ground floor and an upper storey, and had an 
enclosed wooden balcony over the footway, with a 
lean-to roof, along the whole length of its 
western and southern sides. The ground floor 
was occupied by the Respondents for their own 
purposes which included the hulling of coffee. 
The upper floor was rented as offices to various 
persons and the Appellant occupied as~a~mdnthly 
tenant the most northerly office consisting of a 
room and the portion of the balcony immediately 
in front of it. The premises were rent controll­ 
ed. The most obvious damage to the building 
resulting from the storm was that the roof of the 
balcony was completely blown away, a number of 
windows in the balustrade were broken, the para­ 
pet was cracked, and the roof over the main 
building was affected.

it was
The Respondents, after inspection of the 

storm damage by an architect, decided that 
uneconomic for them to repair the building and on 
the 30th September, 1958, served a notice upon 
the Appellant requiring him to give up possession 
of the premises on the. 31st October, 1958. 
Similar notices were served on the other tenants. 
The building was also inspected by officials of 
the City Engineer's Department and on the 4th 
October, the City Engineer, having formed the 
opinion that certain parts of it had been render­ 
ed dangerous by the wind-storm, served a notice 
upon the Respondents under S.208(2) of the Port- 
of-Spain Corporation Ordinance, Cap.39 No.l, re­ 
quiring them "to take down the roof, the parapet 
wall along the western and southern sides of the 
building and the balcony over the footways of 
South Quay and St. Vincent Street within thirty 
(30) days of the date of this notice." The 
Respondents forwarded a copy of this notice to 
the Appellant on the 7th October, 1958. The 
Appellant promised to leave as soon as he could 
obtain suitable alternative accommodation, and 
after 31st October became a statutory tenant of 
the Respondents. On the 9th December the

10

20

30

40
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Respondents by letter informed the Appellant 
that they had been advised that certain parts 
of the building were in imminent danger of 
falling and that they proposed to take immed­ 
iate steps to remove the worst 'of these"""" ' 
dangers. Accordingly, on the 13th December, 
they commenced certain demolition work in the 
course of which they inter alia removed 
portions of the roof and parapet wall and the 

10 balcony to the south of the Plaintiff's
office and the whole of the balustrade includ­ 
ing the windows which formed part of the bal­ 
ustrade . That portion of the roof was then 
replaced at a level 3 feet above the first 
floor level, the main walls having been cut 
for this purpose. The stairway by which the 
Appellant had previously gained access to his 
office was altered, and it was left uncovered.

The effect of the lowering of a portion 
20 of the roof was to leave an exposed face to the 

south of the Plaintiff's premises and this, it 
was agreed, rendered the remainder of the roof 
vulnerable to high wind and therefore dangerous. 
It also provided an opening through which dust 
and dirt from the demolition work penetrated 
freely into the Appellant's off ice j galvanized 
iron sheets were put up to reduce this nuisance 
but were removed when the noise and dust had 
substantially reduced. The effect of the low- 

30 ering of the main eastern wall was that husks
from the Respondents' coffee hulling operations 
entered freely into the Appellant's office. 
The Appellant had always suffered to some ex­ 
tent from this but complained that the incon­ 
venience was now greatly aggravated.

On 4th February, 1959, the Appellant 
brought the present action claiming an injunc­ 
tion and damages in respect of

(a) nuisance from dust and dirt (including 
40 coffee husks) and noise resulting from

the demolition work;

(b) breach of an implied covenant for 
quiet enjoyment and/or trespass re­ 
sulting from the alteration to the 
staircase and the removal of the bal­ 
ustrade and windows.
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In the Federal By their Defence the Respondents admitted
Supreme Court the acts of demolition and alleged that they

————— were justified "by the dangerous condition of the
N -jq building and that the work was carried out pur-

* suant to the City Engineer's demolition notice.
Judgment of They contended that the Appellant had no cause
Chief Justice °^ ac^i°n ^n respect of the alterations to the
Hallinan Mr stairway or for trespass or nuisance. "They
Justice Lewis counterclaimed for possession; basing tlieir
and Mr Justice c-La:i-m upon the notice to quit, the dangerous 10
Marnan* condition of the premises, and the City Engineer's
2nd November notice. The trial judge dismissed the Appellant's
-JQ/TQ claim and gave, judgment for the Respondents on
continued their counterclaim.. Against this order the

	Appellant has appealed.

In this Court the appeal was argued upon 
five main grounds vizs-

(1) that the City Engineer's notice of the 
4th October, 1958, did not relate to 
the demised premises; 20

(2) that the City Engineer had abandoned his 
notice before the demolition work com­ 
menced and the notice was therefore not 
subsisting at the material time;

(3) that the removal of the balustrade en­ 
closing the balcony and the windows 
therein constituted a trespass and/or a 
breach of the covenant for quiet enjoy­ 
ment .

(4) that the disturbance caused by the entry 30 
of coffee husks into the Plaintiff's 
office resulting from the removal of the 
eastern wall constituted an actionable 
nuisance; and

(5) that the order for possession was wrong­ 
ly made because

(a) the City Engineer's notice did not 
fall within the meaning of the 
expression "required by law" and 
s.14 (1) (l) of the Rent Restric- 40 
tion Ordinance and

(b) the dangerous condition of the
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remaining portion of the" building 
which existed at the time that 
the trial judge made his order was 
due to the wrongful acts of the 
Respondents in lowering the roof 
of the building.

The first two grounds may be easily dis­ 
posed of. The City Engineer's notice was ad­ 
dressed to "The owner, 2 St. Vincent Street"

10 and referred to "the condition of the building 
on premises assessed as No.2 St.Vincent Street", 
In fact, the building is assessed as Nos.2 and 
4 St. Vincent Street and is one building erect­ 
ed upon two lots of land. The correspondence 
which passed between the parties clearly shows 
that they understood the notice to refer to 
the whole building and not merely to such por­ 
tion of it as actually rests on lot No.2 and I 
agree with the trial judge that this "slight

20 misdescription" cannot be held to vitiate the 
notice.

The submission that the City Engineer had 
abandoned the req.uirem.ents of his notice before 
the demolition commenced, is based upon the 
evidence of Major Howden, that the Respondents 
informed the City Engineer by letter that they 
had given their tenants notice to quit and pro­ 
posed to proceed with the demolition work as 
outlined in the notice as soon as the tenants

30 left the building, and that the ~City~!Engineer
on subsequently being notified that legal steps 
were being taken to eject the Appellant accept­ 
ed the position and took no further steps. I 
do not agree with counsel's submission. In 
view of the fact that the Respondents at all 
times signified to the City Engineer their in­ 
tention to comply with the requirements of the 
notice, it is not a fair inference from the 
fact that he allowed them time to obtain pos-

40 session from their tenants that he had abandon­ 
ed the notice.

As to the third ground of appeal, the 
learned trial judge found that the balustrade 
was in a dangerous condition having regard to 
the fact that the supports which had joined it 
to the roof of the balcony were out of plumb 
and leaning outwards as a result of the roof
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having been blown away in the storm. On this 
question he had before him the evidence of the 
Respondents' architect, Mr. Moore, and their 
contractor, Mr- Bleasdell, on the one hand, and 
that of the Appellant and his engineer, Archi­ 
bald, on the other hand. He accepted the evid­ 
ence on behalf of the Respondents in reference 
to that on behalf of the Appellant, and found 
as a fact that the condition of the balustrade 
and windows constituted a danger to the public. 10 
I see no reason for disturbing this finding of 
fact.

Counsel for the Appellant submitted"that" 
even if the condition of the balustrade consti­ 
tuted a public nuisance the Appellant was 
nevertheless not entitled to enter the demised 
premises and remove it. He said that in the 
absence of an express or implied right of entry 
under the contract of tenancy, such an entry by 
a landlord was a trespass and a breach of the 20 
implied covenant for quiet enjoyment. In this 
case, he submitted, the Respondents had no 
right express or implied to enter the premises; 
and further, even if the Respondents were en­ 
titled to enter, they could do so only in order 
to repair and not to demolish the balustrade. 
He referred to Halsbury's Laws of England, 3rd 
Ed. Vol. 23 p.564, para. 1237 and Trotter et 
Anor v. Louth et Anor (1931) 47 T.L.R. 335- 
For the Respondents it was submitted that the 30 
condition of the balustrade constituted a 
public nuisance for which they, as owners, • 
would be held liable in the event of damage, 
and that they were entitled to enter the 
premises for the purpose of abating it; and 
that in the circumstances of the present case 
their removal of the balustrade and erection of 
temporary wooden bars in its place was justi­ 
fied and lawful. They relied upon Mint v. Good 
(1950) 2 All E.R. 1159. 40

It is well established that in the absence 
of a stipulation reserving to a landlord""the 
right to enter, or in the absence of a right 
given by statute, the landlord cannot enter the 
premises without the permission of the tenant, 
even to do repairs. It is equally well estab­ 
lished that where the landlord is bound to re­ 
pair the house he is liable to an action for
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injury sustained "by a stranger on the adjoin­ 
ing highway due to the want of repair. (See 
Payne v. Rogers (1794) 2 H.B1.350). In 
Wiloneck y. Marks (1934) 2 K.B.56, it was de­ 
cided that where there was no agreement be­ 
tween landlords and tenants as to repairs, but 
the landlords knew that there was adjoining 
the street a defective shutter on premises 
over which they had reserved the right to en­ 
ter and do repairs if they thought fit, they 
were liable to a passer-by who was injured by 
the defective shutter. G-oddard, J., as he 
then was, placed the liability of the Land­ 
lords on the ground that they had expressly 
"reserved to themselves the right of doing re­ 
pairs to the premises and to that extent, at 
any rate, exercised a measure of control over 
them for this purpose" (p.63). In Heap v. Ind 
Goope & Allsopp Ltd. (1940) 2 K.B.476, it was 
held that in order that a person injured while 
proceeding along a highway by the defective 
condition of premises alongside it may be 
entitled to sue the landlord instead of the 
occupying tenant for personal injuries,"'it~is 
not necessary that the landlord should have 
covenanted with the tenant to do the external 
repairs; it is sufficient that he has reserv­ 
ed the right to enter on and view the premises 
and to do all necessary repairs. MacKinnon, 
L.J., held on the principle laid down by 
Goddard, J., that the proximity being estab­ 
lished the landlord had the right to enter and 
remedy a known danger. The principle was fur­ 
ther extended in Mint v. Good. There, the 
Plaintiff was injured when a wall, adjoining 
the highway on which he was walking, collapsed, 
The wall was on premises which the Defendant 
landlord had let on weekly tenancies under 
oral agreements to different occupiers who 
were not sued in the action. The defective 
condition of the wall, which was due to lack 
of repair, could have been ascertained by in­ 
spection. No express provision was made in 
the agreements with regard to the liability 
for repairs and the landlord reserved no right 
of entry to effect repairs, but he had from 
time to time carried out repairs. The Court 
of Appeal, reversing the decision of the 
trial judge, held that in the absence of evid­ 
ence or of express stipulation to the contrary

In the Federal 
Supreme Court

No.19

Judgment of
Chief Justice
Hallinan, Mr.
Justice Lewis
and Mr.Justice
Marnan
2nd November
I960
continued



114.

In the Federal 
Supreme C ourt

No.19

Judgment of
Chief Justice
Hallinan, Mr.
Justice Lewis
and Mr.Justice
Marnan
2nd November
I960
continued

there was to be implied in an agreement for a 
weekly tenancy which was silent on the matter, 
a term that the premises let would be kept in 
a reasonable and habitable condition by the 
landlord and that he would have the right to 
enter and effect necessary repairs; and, there­ 
fore, he was liable to the plaintiff in damages. 
Somervell, L.J. thought that this term should 
be implied on the ground of business efficacy. 
After saying that in his view the landlord would 10 
be liable to be sued if he had reserved to him­ 
self the right to enter and view the premises 
and do repairs "whether he has done so express­ 
ly or implicitly," he referred to the statement 
of Lord Porter with regard to weekly tenancies 
in McCarrick v. Liverpool Corporation (1946) 2 
All E.R. 646 at p.647:-

"My Lords, in construing this statute its 
exact terms must be considered. It does 
not impose extraneously a duty on the land- 20 
lord. It merely inserts a term into the 
tenancy agreement, and this terfiTthSn be­ 
comes part of the contract between the 
parties, whether they wish it or not. In 
such a tenancy there is no reason why any 
term should not be implied provided it is 
necessary to secure the business efficacy 
of the contract and it is not contrary to 
the provisions of the Act."

Counsel for the Appellant submitted that 30 
Mint'v. Good was inapplicable to the present 
case, since that case dealt solely with weekly 
tenancies. Somervell, L.J. expressly excluded 
"tenancies longer than weekly tenancies or 
where there are written documents expressly 
dealing with repair and re-entry (p.1163); 
though Denning L.J., at p.1166, ventured "to 
doubt in these days whether a landlord can 
exempt himself from liability to passers-by by 
taking a covenant from a tenant to repair the 40 
structure adjoining the highway". We were 
informed by counsel for the Respondents that the 
Courts of this Territory treat monthly tenancies 
on a similar footing to weekly tenancies in 
England, but the Appellant's Counsel did not 
accept this. In the absence of any precedent I 
am not prepared to decide the question on this 
basis, though I would not be greatly surprised
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to find that in the case of parol monthly ten­ 
ancies in this Territory landlords in practice 
assume the responsibility for structural re­ 
pairs. I think, however, that on the facts of 
this case a right of entry to repair on the 
part of the Respondents can reasonably be im­ 
plied.

The Appellant stated in evidence that he 
was not responsible for repairs and that the

10 Respondents had previously done some repairs 
and painting. Further, in his letter of the 
2nd October, 1958, he called upon the Respon­ 
dents to repair the leaking roof and gutter 
spout, stating that in default he would him­ 
self repair them for the account of the Respon­ 
dents. The Respondents in their turn seem to 
have considered themselves responsible for the 
repairs, for their letter of the 30th Septem­ 
ber informed the Respondents that they had been

20 advised that repairing the damage done by the 
recent storm would be quite uneconomical and' 
that consequently they did not propose to re­ 
pair the building; and in their reply to the 
Plaintiff's letter of October 2nd they forbade 
him to do the repairs for which he was asking. 
Both parties therefore assumed that the respon­ 
sibility for repairs lay with the landlord. 
This is not surprising when it is remembered 
that there was a common entrance and stairway

30 leading from the ground floor to the upper
storey, and that this upper storey was rented 
by rooms to a number of monthly tenants. 
Clearly, portions of the building were under 
the control of the landlords, who would be ex­ 
pected to reserve the right of entry to inspect 
the remaining portions and to do the necessary 
repairs. No one tenant could be expected to 
undertake responsibility for the roof or the 
balcony or the balustrade which were common to

40 the whole building. I have therefore no diffi­ 
culty in holding that a term should be implied 
in this tenancy that the landlords were to be 
responsible for keeping the premises in a habit­ 
able condition and that they had a right of 
entry for the purpose of effecting repairs. 
That being so, it is clear that the landlords 
would have been liable to passers-by for any 
injury which might result from the dangerous 
condition of the balustrade and were under a

50 duty to abate it.
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In my opinion the case of Trotter et Anor. 
v. Louth et Anor. (1931) 47 T.L.R.335, is clear­ 
ly distinguishable from the present case. In 
that case, the Defendants purporting to act 
under a dangerous structure notice, served on 
them by the London County Council, entered on 
premises demised to the first plaintiff to carry 
out the work necessitated by the notice without 
having first served notice of intention to enter 
under s.192 of the London Building Act, 1894. 10 
In an action in which the plaintiffs claimed 
damages for breach of the covenant of quiet en­ 
joyment and trespass, the defendants pleaded 
that they had to comply with the dangerous 
structure notice and that the entry and acts of 
which the plaintiffs complained were occasioned 
in complying with the notice. The first plain­ 
tiff occupied under a written lease of the 
premises which contained no express stipulation 
by the lessor to repair but the lessee had to 20 
do the internal repairs. The second plaintiff 
was a sub-lessee of the first. It was held that 
the defendants had no right of entry without 
complying with s.192 and that both plaintiffs 
were entitled to damages. This case, in my view, 
is distinguishable on the ground that there was 
a written lease and that as the~defendants~clid 
not reserve to themselves the right to enter and 
do necessary repairs, they had no authority for 
so doing and could not rely upon the dangerous 30 
structure notice. In the present case, as I 
have already stated, I consider that a term 
ought to be implied reserving such a right to the 
respondents.

Counsel for the Appellant, however, contend­ 
ed that all that the Respondents could do was to 
repair the balustrade and not remove it. I do 
not think that this is so. The dangerous condi­ 
tion of the balustrade was due to the fact that 
the roof of the balcony had been blown away. It 40 
could not be repaired without replacing the roof. 
But in the circumstances of the case it would be 
unreasonable to expect the landlords to replace 
the roof. They were in process of complying with 
the City Engineer's notice to demolish. • The 
other tenants had already left the building, and 
the Appellant had promised to vacate as soon as 
they could find suitable alternative accommoda­ 
tion. What the Respondents did was to remove the
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defective "balustrade and to replace it by tem­ 
porary wooden bars. I am of opinion that they 
were entitled to do this, and that this ground 
of appeal fails.

I pass now to consideration of the fourth 
ground of appeal which concerns the alleged 
nuisance from the entry of coffee husks into 
the Appellant's office. The substance of the 
Appellant's evidence about this was as

10 follows :- The Respondents have for some
years operated on their premises on the ground 
floor of the building a coffee hulling machine 
the waste husks from which were expelled 
through a flue behind the eastern wall of the 
building. This machine was operated off and 
on. A certain quantity of husks had always 
found their way into the Appellant's office 
but had not caused any serious inconvenience. 
When, however, the portion of the eastern wall

20 to the south of Respondents' office was re­ 
moved, the quantity of husks blown into the 
Plaintiff's office increased to such an extent 
as to cause serious annoyance. The Appellant 
complained generally of the dust and dirt re­ 
sulting from the demolition work but not 
specifically of the coffee husks, and at the 
end of December the Respondents erected gal­ 
vanized iron sheets .to the south of his office 
which considerably reduced the entry of dust,

30 dirt and husks. These were removed on or
about January 29th, 1959, and the husks and 
dust once more flowed freely into his office, 
though by this time the quantity of dust was 
much less than previously. The Appellant 
said that everything in his office was affect­ 
ed by the husks - his papers and typewriters; 
a desk dusted at 8.00 a.m. was covered with 
husks by 9.30 a.m. This situation continued 
up to the time of the trial.

40 It was not seriously disputed that the
degree of inconvenience and annoyance suffered 
by the Appellant was sufficient to amount to a 
nuisance. Counsel for the Respondents con­ 
tended that the nuisance was of a temporary 
nature, a result of the demolition work, and 
that in any event the Appellant being under 
notice to quit, the Respondents were justified 
in thinking that he would not long be affected
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by it. The trial judge, he said, directed him­ 
self correctly on the law of nuisance, applied 
that law to all the facts before him - dirt, 
dust and coffee husks - and came to the conclu­ 
sion that it was not an actionable nuisance. 
The trial judge seems to have made no clear 
finding about the coffee husks, which he ap­ 
pears to have lumped with the dirt and dust 
resulting from the demolition work. In my view 
the coffee husks cannot properly be treated on 10 
the same basis as the dust from the demolition 
work, for while the latter was clearly tempor­ 
ary and such as a neighbour in a busy section 
of the city must expect to put up with occa­ 
sionally, the coffee husks came from" the" 
Respondents' business operations on their prem­ 
ises, from a machine installed by them as part 
of their normal business activities, and the 
aggravation in the inconvenience was due to 
their act in removing the wall which had previ- 20 
ously served as a screen. With regard to the 
appellant's being under notice to quit, I do 
not think that this is at all relevant to the 
question of liability, though it may affect the 
question of damages. It was also suggested 
that the Appellant cannot complain of the 
nuisance for it was his act in suing for an in­ 
junction which caused the stopping of the demo­ 
lition work. There is, however, no evidence 
that the Respondents intended to abate the 30 
nuisance - in fact, when the writ was issued on 
4th February, they had just removed the galvan­ 
ized iron sheets which had served to reduce it - 
and, in any event, I do not think that this is 
a relevant consideration on the question of 
liability. I should add that this Court was 
informed by Appellant's counsel that since the 
conclusion of the trial the Respondents have 
abated this nuisance.

In Metropolitan Properties Ltd, v. Jones 40 
(1939) 2 All E.R. 202 Plaintiffs as the land­ 
lords of certain premises had installed in the 
flat above that occupied by the defendant a 
central heating system, the circulation"of the 
water in which was maintained by a small 
electric motor. The defendant complained of the 
noise caused thereby and certain alterations to 
the apparatus were thereupon made. In an action 
against the defendant for rent, the defendant
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counterclaimed for damages for nuisance, the 
nuisance "being the noise due to the running 
of this motor. It was found as a fact that 
there was no appreciable disturbance of the 
defendant's comfort after the alterations to 
the apparatus had been made. The plaintiff 
argued that the nuisance was of a merely tem­ 
porary character. It was held that an 
actionable nuisance had "been proved. Goddard, 

10 L.J., as he then was said (at p. 205)?-

"He" (the Plaintiff) "relies on the class 
of case which shows that, where one ad­ 
joining owner is doing necessary repairs 
to his "building in the ordinary course of 
affairs - the sort of thing any owner has 
to do, such as emptying a cess-pit in the 
ordinary course of sanitary requirements, 
or using a drill, or doing something of 
that nature, such as we all know owners

20 have to put up with - that gives no cause 
of action. It is a mere temporary opera­ 
tion which is "being carried on. If my 
neighbour is going to put up some book­ 
cases in his house, or put in a new fire­ 
place , for a day or two I shall be expos­ 
ed, no doubt, to a considerable disturb­ 
ance and knocking, which may be an intol­ 
erable thing, but the law does not regard 
that as a nuisance. A man may be doing

30 that which is necessary for his house or
his own comfort, just as I may do the same 
thing in my house the following month. It 
is one of those things which one has to 
put up with. I do not think that those 
cases apply to such a case as this, where- 
the motor is so installed on the premises, 
and runs in such a way, as to cause a 
nuisance. I think that, as soon as that 
is done, the plaintiffs gets a cause of

40 action, and the fact that it can be stopp­ 
ed by reconstruction means only that the 
person on whose land the nuisance is" need 
never have had it there. I think that the 
cause of action is none the less complete".

I consider that in this case the Appellant has 
proved an actionable nuisance and ought to suc­ 
ceed on this part of his appeal. I would assess
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the damages at $100.00.

Finally, the Appellant contended that the 
learned judge was wrong in allowing the Respon­ 
dents' counterclaim for possession of the 
demised premises. In doing so, the "judge'pur­ 
ported to act under s.14 (l) (I) of~the Rent 
Restriction Ordinance - that the building "is 
required by law to be demolished" - as well as 
under s.14 (3) of the same Ordinance - that the 
ejectment is expedient in the interest of public 10 
safety. With respect to s.14 (l) (L), counsel 
submitted that mere service by the City Engineer 
of a notice to demolish under s.208 (2) of the 
Port-of-Spain Corporation Ordinance is not suf­ 
ficient to bring the case within the meaning of 
the phrase "required by law". "Required", he 
said meant "compelled", and until an Order was 
made by a magistrate under subsection (4) of 
that section enforcing the requirements of the 
City Engineer's notice the owner of the building 20 
was not "compelled", by law to obey it. Further, 
until such an order was made it was competent to 
challenge the validity of the notice by proving 
that the building was not, in fact, in a danger­ 
ous condition.

It is convenient at this stage to set out 
the relevant statutory provisions.

Section 208 (2) of the Port-of-Spain Corpor­ 
ation Ordinance is as followss-

"Where any structure within the City 30 
shall be deemed by the City Engineer to be 
ruinous or so far dilapidated as thereby 
to have become and to be unfit~f or" use^or 
occupation, or to be from any cause whatever 
in a structural condition dangerous or pre­ 
judicial to the property in, or the inhabi­ 
tants of, the neighbourhood, the City 
Engineer may give notice in writing to the 
owner of such structure requiring him forth­ 
with to take down, secure, repair, or re- 40 
build the same, or any part thereof, or to 
fence in the ground on which such structure 
stands, or otherwise to put the same in a 
state of good repair, as the case may re­ 
quire, to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer, within a time to be specified in 
such notice".
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Subsection (4) provides that in default of com­ 
pliance with the notice within the time speci­ 
fied the Corporation "may make complaint there­ 
of "before the Magistrate, and it shall "be law­ 
ful for such Magistrate to order the owner to 
carry out the requirements of such notice with­ 
in a time to be fixed by him in such order". 
Subsection (5) provides a penalty for non-com­ 
pliance with the Magistrate's order and author- 

10 ises the Corporation to enter upon the premises 
and execute the order.

Section 14 (l) (l) of the Rent Restriction 
Ordinance is as followsj-

"No order or judgment for the recovery of 
possession of any'premises to which this 
Ordinance applies, or for-the ejectment of 
a tenant therefrom, shall, whether in re­ 
spect of a notice given or proceedings com­ 
menced before or after the commencement of 

20 this Ordinance, be made or given unless
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(l) the dwellinghouse, or the public or 
commercial building, or the building 
erected "by the tenant on'building 
land, as the case may" be, is requir­ 
ed by law to Toe demolished;"

With respect to the effect of the City 
Engineer's notice, the learned judge held that 
he was "bound by the judgment of the Pull Court 
of Trinidad and Tobago dated 21st October, 1958,

30 in the appeal of Lalchan Pooran v. Kuar Singh & 
Ors., No.164 of 1958, to decide in favour of 
the Respondents. In that case, the Town Engin­ 
eer of San Fernando, acting under the provisions 
of s.201 of the San Fernando Corporation Ordin­ 
ance Ch.39 No.7 which is similar in its terms to 
s.208 of the Port-of-Spain Corporation Ordinance, 
served a notice on the appellant stating that 
the premises ?;ere in a dangerous structural con­ 
dition and requiring the building to be demolish-

40 ed. In ejectment proceedings brought by the
appellant against his tenant alleging that the 
building was "required by law to be demolished," 
the tenant challenged the effectiveness of the 
notice on the ground that the premises were not 
"in a dangerous structural condition". The
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Magistrate refused to make an order. On appeal, 
the Pull Court held that while in proceedings "by 
the Corporation against the landlord under sub­ 
section (4) it was open to the Magistrate to try 
the issue of the dangerous condition of the 
"building, this issue could not be raised by the 
tenant in ejectment proceedings founded upon the 
notice. They said :-

"In this case the issue is not between the 
Council and the landlord. The landlord 10 
concedes that the premises are dangerous 
and is prepared to act on the notice of the 
Town Engineer. To that end he gave notice 
to quit to his tenants. The sole question 
that has to be decided is whether the 
premises could rightly be said to "be requir­ 
ed by law.

'Law 1 is defined in section 2 of the 
Interpretation Ordinance as including 
(inter alia) any legislative enactment. 20 
The San Fernando Corporation Ordinance is 
a legislative enactment.

It is to "be observed that if the notice 
is not complied with the Council proceeds 
by way of complaint. In our opinion, it 
is manifest that the complaint arises by 
reason of failure to comply with"a require­ 
ment . Hence where the notice which"is" 
given pursuant to the provision of that 
Ordinance does in fact convey a require- 30 
ment it follows that it must be a require­ 
ment "by law-

The proceeding before the magistrate is, 
however, a matter "between the Council and 
the landlord only and the tenants would 
not "be entitled to impeach the notice 
given by the Town Engineer on the ground 
that the premises are not dangerous".

We were invited by counsel for the Appell­ 
ant, in his submission referred to above, to 
hold that Popran'a case was wrongly decided. 
Counsel for the Respondents, on the other hand,, 
urged that Pooran's case did not go far enough,

40
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and that the Pull Court was wrong in holding 
that the Magistrate could try the issue of the 
dangerous condition of the building in pro~ 
ceedings "brought against an owner for non-com­ 
pliance with the Town Engineer's notice.

The question for determination in the 
present case is whether the words "required "by 
law" are wide enough to include a notice serv­ 
ed by the City Engineer under s.208 of the 
Port-of-Spain Corporation Ordinance. I think 
that the word "law" in this context must "be 
given its widest meaning, and that it includes 
a notice containing a requirement issued "by a 
public authority in the exercise of a statu­ 
tory power. Section 208 confers upon the City 
Engineer a wide administrative discretion to 
call upon an owner to do acts which may in­ 
volve the owner in considerable expense and 
does not even make it necessary for the City 
Engineer to give the owner a hearing before 
issuing his notice. The purpose of s.208 (4) 
is, in my view, to enable the owner to be 
heard before the Corporation is"entltlelT'uhder 
sub-section (5) to execute the requirements- 
itself and recover the costs from the owner, 
or to bring proceedings for non-compliance. 
In effect, s.208 (4) takes the place of the 
right of appeal from the notice which one 
would have expected to find provided for, and 
the words "it shall be lawful" give the magis­ 
trate, on the hearing of the complaint, a dis­ 
cretion whether or not to order the owner to 
carry out the requirements of the notice. I 
find nothing in the words of section 208 or in 
the general scope and objects of the Ordinance 
to lead to the conclusion that the Legislature 
intended to oblige the Magistrate to exercise 
the power to make an order merely upon proof 
of service of tho notice when on the prima 
facie meaning of the words he would be entitl­ 
ed to refuse to do so: and I agree with the 
Full Court that the exercise of his discretion 
involves a consideration of the question 
whether there is a danger which requires re­ 
moval. This is the more so in view of the 
fact that the power to apply for the order with 
its far-reaching consequences, is given to a 
public authority, for "it is far more easy to 
show that there is a right where private
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interests are concerned than where the alleged
right is in the public only" (per Lord Blackburn
in Julius v. Bishop of^Oxford (i860) 5 A.C. 214-,
at p.244).In my opinion, the City Engineer's
notice derives its mandatory authority from the
Ordinance under which it is issued and retains
its statutory force until set aside by the
Magistrate in proceedings under s.208(4) or,
possibly, by the Supreme Court in proceedings
instituted by the owner against the Corporation 10
for this purpose.

In Croydon Corporation y. Thomas (1947) 1 
All E.K. 239, Lord G-oddard, C.J., had to consid­ 
er the effect of s.?5(l) of the Public Health 
Act, 1936, which provides that a local authority 
who have undertaken the removal of house refuse 
in a district "may by notice require the owner 
or occupier of any building within the district" 
to provide dustbins according to such specifica­ 
tions as the authority may approve; and gives 20 
to any person aggrieved by such requirement a 
right to appeal to a court of summary jurisdic­ 
tion. Subsection (2), in substance, provides 
that if a person fails to comply with the notice, 
the authority may provide the dustbin and re­ 
cover the cost from the person in default, and 
the person who fails to comply becomes liable to 
a penalty. Lord G-oddard said, at p.240s-

"If you take the first part of sub-s. 1 
alone, it appears to put the widest possible 30 
discretion into the hands of the local 
authority. It appears to enable them by 
administrative action to require either the 
owner or the occupier to provide the dustbin. 
Accordingly, if the section remained without 
the addition of the words to which I have 
referred about an appeal, it would seem 
reasonably clear that that was an adminis­ 
trative discretion given to an elected body, 
the local authority, with which no one 40 
could interfere - not a discretion which 
requires to be exercised judicially, but an 
administrative discretion. When, however, 
you find that any person aggrieved by a 
requirement of the local authority may 
appeal to a court of summary jurisdiction,
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it is obvious that Parliament intends the 
discretion which has "been exercised by 
the local authority to be subject to an 
appeal, and the final determination, if a 
person does appeal, is left to the jus­ 
tices and not to the local authority" .

Counsel for the Appellant argued that the 
fact that the penalty in s.208(5) was attached 
to non-compliance with the Magistrate's order 
and not to non-compliance v/ith the City 
Engineer's notice indicated that the notice 
was not of itself a requirement "by law" but 
merely gave to tho Corporation an inchoate 
right to obtain an order. In my opinion, the 
ultimate power to enforce the requirements of 
the notice is there, though it can only be 
exercised after the notice has been confirmed 
by the Magistrate's order. The intervention 
of the order between the notice and its en­ 
forcement provides the opportunity for the 
owner to be heard, but this in no way deprives 
the notice of its full force and effect when 
the landlord accepts it as a valid notice and 
relies upon it.

In my opinion, Pooran's case was rightly 
decided. I agree that the Pull Court in hold­ 
ing that a house which is the subject of the 
City Engineer's notice to demolish is "requir­ 
ed by law to be demolished" and that the issue 
of the dangerous condition of the building can 
only be determined as between the Corporation 
and the owner upon whom the City Engineer's 
notice is served and is not relevant to pro­ 
ceedings in ejectment between landlord and 
tenant.

In the instant case the trial judge, while 
holding himself bound by the decision in Poor­ 
an's case, did try the issue as to the dangerous 
structural condition of the Respondents' build­ 
ing and came to the conclusion that the building 
(and particularly the roof and balcony) was 
rendered dangerous as a result of the wind storm, 
and that it was necessary in the interest of 
public safety for the Defendant Company to carry 
out the demolition work required by the City
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Engineer's notice. This is, in effect, a find­ 
ing that the City Engineer's notice was justi­ 
fied.

In my opinion, therefore, the learned judge 
was right in making an order for possession and 
the Appellant fails on this ground. I do not 
consider it necessary to deal fully with the 
question whether in view of the condition of the 
"building at the time of the trial, an order for 
possession should have been made under s.14 (3) 10 
of the Rent Restriction Ordinance, which permits 
an order to be made where in the opinion of the 
Court the ejectment is expedient in the interest 
of public health or safety. It is sufficient to 
state that having considered the arguments ad­ 
duced by counsel for the appellant, I am clearly 
of the opinion that the order was justified on 
this ground also.

In the result, the Appellant succeeds on 
only one of the issues raised in this appeal and 20 
as this was a minor aspect of the complaints 
upon which this action was founded and presented 
to the Court, it ought not, in my opinion, to 
affect the costs of this appeal. The judgment 
of the trial judge should be varied by awarding 
the sum of $100.00 damages to the Appellant, but 
the Respondents should have the costs of this 
appeal.

Dated the 2nd day of November, I960.

(Sgd) A.M.LEWIS 30 
Federal Justice.

The Chief Justices
I agree both with the reasoning and the 

conclusions in the judgment that has just been 
delivered.

(Sgd) ERIC HALLINAN
Chief Justice

Mr. Justice Marnan:
I also entirely agree.

(Sgd) J.F.MARNAN 40 
Federal Justice.
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No. 20
AFFIDAVIT OF DAVID HAMEL SMITH IN 
SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR LEAVE TO 
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IN THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT 
ON APPEAL FROM THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT 

APPELLATE JURISDICTION.
TRINIDAD. 

Civil Appeal of No.19 of 1959.

BETWEEN
ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN 

trading as A. J. MAURITZEN & CO.
Appellant- 
Petitioner 

And
GORDON GRANT & COMPANY LTD.

Respondent.

No.20

Affidavit of 
David Hamel- 
Smith in 
support of 
Petition for 
Leave to 
Appeal
21st November 
I960

40

I, DAVID MALCOLM HAMEL-SMITH of No.19, St. 
Vincent Street in the City of Port of Spain in 
the Island of Trinidad, Solicitor, make oath and 
say as follows ;-
1. I am a Partner of the firm of Solicitors 
known as M.Hamel-Srnith & Co. who are the Solici­ 
tors for the Petitioner herein.
2. The statements made in the Petition hereto 
annexed and marked with the letter "A" are true 
in substance and in fact.
3. The questions in dispute relate to the right 
to possession of premises demised by the Respon­ 
dents to the Petitioner and to breaches of the 
Respondents' covenants, and by reason otherwise of 
their general or public importance ought tcTbe 
submitted to Her Majesty in Council for decision. 
SWORN to by the within-named ) 
DAVID MALCOLM HAMEL-SMITH at 
No. 19, St. Vincent Street, 
Port of Spain, this 21st 
day of November, I960. 

Before me,
A.. C. Clarke 

Commissioner of Affidavits.
Filed on behalf of the Petitioner herein.

I certify that this is a true copy of the 
Original Affidavit filed in the Registry of 
the Supreme Court of Judicature of Trinidad 
and Tobago.

Dated this 5th day of February, 1963.
GEORGE R. BENNY 

Acting Deputy Registrar.

D. M. Hame 1-Smit h.
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Ho.21

PETITION OP A.J.MAURITZEN FOR 
LEAVE TO APPEAL TO HER MAJESTY 
IN COUNCIL

"A" This is the Petition marked with the 
letter "A" referred to in the affidavit 
of David Malcolm Hamel-Smith sworn to 
the 21st day of November, I960, before 
me,

A. C. Clarke
Commissioner of Affidavits.

IN THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT 
ON APPEAL FROM THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT 

APPELLATE JURISDICTION.
TRINIDAD. 

Civil Appeal No.19 of 1959.

BETWEEN
ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN

trading as A.J.MAURITZEN & CO. Appellant- 
Petitioner 

And
GORDON GRANT & COMPANY LTD. Defendant 

Respondent

The Humble Petition of Albert James 
Mauritzen showeth :

1. That your Petitioner carries on business at 
No.4 St. Vincent Street (being portion of a 
building and premises assessed as Nos.2 & 4 St. 
Vincent Street) in the City of Port of Spain in 
the Island of Trinidad of which he is in possess­ 
ion as a monthly tenant of the Respondent at a 
rental of $44.00 a month.

2. On the llth day of September 1958 a wind­ 
storm caused certain damage to the Respondent's 
said building and on the 30th day of September 
1958 the Respondent served a notice to quit on 
your Petitioner on the ground that it was not 
considered economical to repair the said damage.

10
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30
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3. On or about the 4th day of October 1958 
the Respondent was served with a notice by the 
City Engineer under provisions of section"208" 
of the Port of Spain Corporation Ordinance Ch. 
39 No.l requiring it to "take down" certain 
portions of the said building.

4. On the 13th day of November 1958 the 
Respondent commenced ejectment proceedings in 
a Magistrate's Court against your Petitioner 

10 for possession of the demised premises.

5. On or about the 13th day of December 1958 
the Respondent began to demolish the roof and 
other portions of the first floor (then occu­ 
pied by the Respondent) adjoining the demised 
premises thereby creating much disturbance to 
your Petitioner by reason of noise, dirt and 
dust.

6. Thereafter, during the months of December 
1958 and January 1959 Respondent inter alia

20 removed the roof over the stairway affording 
access to the demised premises demolished the 
upper walls of the said building and lowered 
a considerable portion of the main roof there­ 
of, thereby aggravating the disturbance to 
your petitioner in his-enjoyment of the demis­ 
ed premises. Further, the causing or permitt­ 
ing of great quantities of coffee husks and 
such like offal from the Respondent's own 
premises to enter the demised premises consti-

30 tuted an additional nuisance and breach of 
covenant as aforesaid.

7. On or about the llth day of January 1959 
while the said ejectment proceedings were still 
pending the Respondent removed the gallery 
windows that formed part of and enclosed the 
demised premises on its western side.

8. Further on or about the 24th and 25th Jan­ 
uary 1959 the Respondent demolished the closed 
balustrade forming the lower portion of the 

40 said enclosure of the demised premises and com­ 
pletely destroyed the business sign-board of 
your Petitioner's firm and entirely exposed his 
said place of business to the elements.
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9. Accordingly on the 4th day of February
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1959 your Petitioner caused a writ of summons 
to issue in the Supreme Court of Trinidad and 
Tobago claiming inter alia the following reliefs-

(a) a declaration that he is a tenant of the 
Respondent and entitled to possession of 
the said (the demised) premises.

(b) a declaration that he is entitled to the 
use of the passageway and stairway lead­ 
ing to his (the said demised) premises.

(c) A declaration that he is entitled to the 10 
use of the gallery along the western 
side of the said building.

(d) An injunction restraining the Respondent 
their servants contractors or agents and 
workmen from trespassing upon or demol­ 
ishing any part of the said demised 
premises or causing a nuisance or inter­ 
fering with the peaceful and quiet 
enjoyment of the said demised premises 
by your Petitioner. 20

(e) A mandatory injunction requiring the 
Respondent to restore the said"demised 
premises to its proper condition.

(f) Damages for trespass.

(g) Damages for nuisance.

(h) Damages for breach of covenant for quiet 
enj oyment.

10. The Respondent counterclaimed for the re­ 
covery of possession of the said demised 
premises. 30

11. This action came on for hearing on the 2nd, 
3rd, 4th, 5th ', 6th, 9th, 10th, llth and 12th 
days of March, 1959, before the Honourable Mr- 
Justice Clement Phillips who on the 30th Septem­ 
ber 1959 gave judgment in favour of the Respon­ 
dent on the claim with costs and for recovery of 
possession of the said premises on the counter­ 
claim with costs.

12. Your Petitioner appealed against the whole
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of this decision to the Federal Supreme Court 
on the following Grounds :-

(1) The learned Judge erred in holding:

(a) That the City Engineer's Notice of 
the 4th October, 1958, related and/ 
or referred to the demised premises 
or, if so, satisfied the require­ 
ments of section 208 of the Port of 
Spain Corporation Ordinance.

10 (b) That the said Notice was subsisting
at the material time.

(c) That the said Notice to '"take down" 
certain parts of the building at 
No.2 St. Vincent Street was a re­ 
quirement that the walls and appur­ 
tenances of the upper part of the 
entire premises should be demolished.

(d) That the mere service of the said
Notice on the Respondent constituted 
a requirement by law for demolition 

20 of the said demised premises within
the meaning of Section 14 of the Rent 
Restriction Ordinance.

(2) The learned Judge erred in holdings

(a) That the Respondent was entitled to 
enter and/or carry out any demoli­ 
tion of or upon the demised premises 
in alleged compliance with the re­ 
quirement of the said City Engineer's 
Notice or at all.

30 (b) That the Respondent's unauthorised
removal of the balustrade and windows 
forming part of the demised premises
was lawful.

(c) That the Respondent's removal of the 
roof and of the upper section of the 
staircase leading to "Appellant's 
premises and its replacements by an 
uncovered stairway was lawful.
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(3) That the learned Judge failed to have due
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regard or give effect to;

(a) The evidence of the Engineer, Rupert 
Douglas Archibald, called by the 
Appellant.

(b) The fact that if the demised premises 
were at any material time in a danger­ 
ous condition the same was caused by 
the acts of the Respondent itself.

(4) The learned Judge was wrong in law in hold­ 
ing that none of the acts of the Respondent 10 
(including the removal and"destruction of 
the Appellant's business sign-board) consti­ 
tuted a trespass or nuisance or breach of 
the covenant for quiet enjoyment.

(5) The order for possession was wrongly made.

(6) That the decision of the learned trial 
judge is unreasonable and/or against the 
weight of evidence and/or cannot be support­ 
ed having regard to the evidence and accord­ 
ingly should be reversed. 20

(7) (1) That the Judgment of the learned trial 
judge be set aside and that judgment be 
entered for the Appellant with costs 
here and in the Court below.

(2) Such further or other relief as to the 
Court may seem just.

13. The appeal came on for hearing before the
Federal Supreme Court on the llth, 12th, 13th
and 14th October I960 and on the 2nd day of
November, I960 the Appeal was dismissed with 30
costs save that the order of Phillips J. was
varied by an award of the sum of $100.00 damages
to Your Petitioner for damages for nuisance.

14. Against the decision of the Federal 
Supreme Court Your Petitioner desires""to""appeal 
to Her Majesty in Council and therefore now 
applies to Your Lordship for leave to appeal to 
Her Majesty in Council.
15- Your Petitioner hereby submits that leave
to appeal to Her Majesty in Council should be 40
granted for the following among other

REASONS; 
1. Because the learned trial Judge and (save in
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respect of the claim in nuisance) the Judges of 
the Federal Supreme Court gave judgment against 
your Petitioner, and such decisions are wrong 
in law on the grounds set out in paragraph 12 
hereof.

2. Because the decision directly involves a 
claim or question relating to property and the 
rights of your Petitioner to possession thereof.

3. Because the issues raised both under the 
10 Rent Restriction Ordinance and the Port of 

Spain Corporation Ordinance are matters of 
great general and public importance and fit to 
receive the consideration of Her Majesty's 
Privy Council.

YOUR PETITIONER therefore most Humbly Prays 
that Your Lordships will be pleased to grant him 
leave to appeal to Her Majesty in Council from 
the judgment or order of the Federal Supreme 
Court (Appellate Jurisdiction) dated the 2nd 

20 November I960 (save on the claim in nuisance) 
and from the judgment of the trial judge dated 
the 30th day of September 1959 or for such 
further or other relief in the premises as to 
Your Lordships may seem fit.

And Your Petitioner in duty bound will 
ever pray.

A. J. Mauritzen 
Petit ioner-

This Petition for leave to appeal to Her 
30 Majesty in Council is filed by Messrs.M.Hamel-

Smith & Co. of No.19 St. Vincent Street, Port of 
Spain, Trinidad, Solicitors for the Petitioner 
Albert James Mauritzen.

M. Hamel-Smith & Co. 
Solicitors for the Petitioner 
Albert James Mauritzen.

Note: It is intended to serve this Petition on 
Messrs.J.D.Sellier & Co. of No.13 St.Vincent 
Street, Port of Spain, Solicitors for the Re- 

40 spondent, Gordon Grant & Co.Ltd.
TAKE NOTICE that this Petition is set down for 
hearing at the Federal Supreme Court, Federal 
House, St.Vincent Street, Port of Spain, on the 
5th day of December I960 at the hour of 9.00 
o'clock in the forenoon and that the Petitioner 
will appear by Counsel.

Dated this 21st day of November, I960. 
R. V. Me. I. Clarke 

Registrar F.S.C.
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No.22

JUDGMENT OP THE HONOURABLE SIR ALFRED 
RENNIE, MR. JUSTICE ARCHER and MR. 
JUSTICE WYLIS.

IN THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT 
APPELLATE JURISDICTION 

CIVIL
Territory? TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO

APPLICATION FOR LEAVE TO APPEAL TO HER MAJESTY'S 
PRIVY COUNCIL FROM THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT 

CIVIL APPEAL NO.19 OF 1959
10

BETWEEN 
ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN

AND
GORDON GRANT AND COMPANY 
LIMITED

BEFORE:

Plaintiff- 
Applicant

Defendant- 
Respondent

The Honourable Sir Alfred Rennie, President 
" " Mr. Justice Archer 
" " Mr. Justice Wylie

6th December, I960, and 18th January, 1961.

20

Mr. Algernon V/harton, Q.C. and Mr. Raymond 
Hamel-Smith, for the Plaintiff-Applicant.

Mr. E. Hamel Wells for the Defendant-Respondent.

JUDGMENT

Mr. Justice Rennie;

This is an. application by the Plaintiff- 
Applicant, Mauritzen, for leave to appeal to Her 
Majesty in Council from a decision of the Feder­ 
al Supreme Court. The Defendant-Respondent 
opposes the application, which gives for its 
reasons because -.

30
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(a) the learned trial judge and (save in re­ 
spect of the claim for nuisance) the Judges of 
the Federal Supreme Court, gave judgment"Against 
the Applicant, and such decisions are wrong in 
law on the grounds set out in paragraph 12 of 
his petition; (b) the decision directly in­ 
volves a claim or question relating to property 
and the right of the Applicant to possession 
thereof; and (c) the issues raised "both under 

10 the Rent Restriction Ordinance and the Port-of- 
Spain Corporation Ordinance are matters of great 
general and public importance and fit to receive 
the consideration of Her Majesty's Privy Council. 
The rest of the application is more or less a 
recast of the Applicant's statement of claim in 
the action. That is the material on which the 
application is grounded.

Appeals to Her Majesty in Council are 
regulated "by section 45 of the Federal Supreme 

20 Court Regulations, 1958, which provides :-

11 ... an appeal shall lie -

(a) as of right, from any final judgment 
of the Federal Supreme Court, where 
the amount in dispute on the appeal 
amounts to or is of the value of 
$1,440 (£300) or upwards, or where 
the appeal involves, directly or in­ 
directly, some claim or question to 
or respecting property or some civil 

30 right•amounting to or of the value
of $1,440 ("300) or upwards; or

(b) at the discretion of the Federal 
Supreme Court, from any other judg­ 
ment of the Federal Supreme Court, 
whether final or interlocutory, if, 
in the opinion of the Federal Supreme 
Court, the question involved in the 
appeal is one which by reason of its 
great general or public importance,

40 or otherwise, ought to be submitted
to Her Majesty in Council for 
decision".

As the application contains no evidence of the 
value of the claim, the Applicant contends that no 
monetary qualification attaches to a claim to
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property. I am unable to place such a construc­ 
tion on the regulation; its language and form 
leave no room for doubt that the correct view is 
that there is only an appeal as of right if the 
requirement as to value is satisfied. Support 
for the view I hold can be found in Mohideen 
Had j iar v. Pitchery (1893) A.O. 193 and Vick
Chemical Company v.' De Gordova (1948) 5 J.L.R. __-

As a second limb of his argument, the 10 
Applicant submits that leave should be granted 
on the ground that the construction of the rele­ 
vant portions of the Rent Restriction Ordinance 
and the Port-of-Spain Corporation Ordinance 
raise a matter of great general or public im­ 
portance . It is of great general or public 
importance, he submits, because it touches on 
the rights of landlords and tenants, and on the 
powers of the Port-of-Spain and San Fernando 
Corporations. I regard such an argument as be- 20 
ing equivalent to saying that a construction of 
a public enactment which is not in accordance 
with the wishes of a party is a matter of great 
general or public importance. The possibility 
that there may be a large number of persons who 
may wish to have a different construction placed' 
on the enactment would not make what , in my view, 
is a purely personal matter into one of great 
general or public importance. It would be of 
great general or public importance to have the 30 
law settled if it is, in fact, unsettled, but 
one does not prove an unsettled state of law by 
putting forward his claim and by stating that he 
does not like the decision on his claim. If 
that were so, the law would always be unsettled.

From the provisions of the regulation it 
seems clear that this Court must first determine 
whether the question involved in the appeal is 
one of great general or public importance and, 
having done so, then proceed to exercise its 40 
discretion in determining whether such a ques­ 
tion ought to be submitted to Her Majesty in 
Council for decision. There are clearly two 
things the Applicant must dos he must satisfy 
the Court that the question involved in the 
appeal is one of great general or public impor­ 
tance and he must put forward material on which 
the Court can exercise its discretion. How is
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he seeking to prove that the question involved 
in the appeal is one of great general or 
public importance? He endeavours to do so 
"by arguing that the decision is concerned with 
the construction of an Ordinance which affects 
the rights of a large number of persons. He 
puts forward no evidence to show that even a 
single person, other than himself, has an in­ 
terest in the appeal going forward. There is

10 nothing I can find in the application to make 
me come to the conclusion that the question 
involved in the appeal is one of great general 
or public importance. As mentioned by Myers, 
O.J., in Associated Motorists Petrol Go. Ltd. 
v. Bannerman(No.2; (1943) N.Z.L.R. 664 at 
666,"the mere fact that an important question 
of law may be involved is not sufficient to 
bring the case within paragraph (b) of r.2. 
There must be something more than that; it

20 must be shown to the satisfaction of the Court 
that the question involved in the appeal~'is 
one, which by reason of its great general or 
public importance, ought to be carried 
further". The applicant in this case has 
done no more than to say an important question 
of law is involved in the appeal. This, in my 
view, is not enough.

For the above reasons, I would dismiss the 
application with costs.
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30 Dated the 18th day of January, 1961.

(Sgd.) A.B. RENNIE 
Federal Justice.

40

Mr. Justice Wylie:

This petition for leave to appeal to the 
Privy Council from a decision of the Federal 
Supreme Court is brought under both subparagraph 
(a) and subparagraph (b) of Regulation 45 of the 
Federal Supreme Court Regulations, 1958. Under 
subparagraph (a), the allegation in the petition 
is that "the decision directly involves a claim 
or question relating to property and the rights 
of your Petitioner to possession thereof". No
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evidence of the value of that claim was produced
and was contended on behalf of the Petitioner
that the qualification in subparagraph (a) that 
the matter in dispute must be of the value 
$1,440 or upwards does not apply where a claim 
or question relating to property is involved and 
that therefore an appeal to the Privy Council 
lies as of right. This Court held against the 
Petitioner on this ground without calling upon 
the Respondent and it is only necessary to state 10 
here that the language and form of subparagraph 
(a) does not leave any room for doubt that the 
correct view is that there is only an appeal as 
of right under that subparagraph if the require­ 
ment as to value is satisfied, whatever may be 
the subject-matter or question involved. In 
Mohideen .Had.liar v. Pitchery (1893) A.C. 193, 
and Vick Ghemical Gompariy v. j>e Gordova (1948) 
5 J.L.R. 196, it is clear that in the first 
case, the Judicial Committee, and in the second 20 
case, the Court of Appeal of Jamaica have both 
proceeded upon the assumption that the require­ 
ment as to value applies to a claim or question 
relating to property. While the actual provi­ 
sion under which the application in the first 
case was made, was not before this Court, it is 
not likely, in view of the attempts over the 
years to have some uniformity in the provisions 
regulating the right of appeal" to" the Privy" 
Council, that is materially different so far as 30 
this particular point is concerned.

This Court took time to consider the sub­ 
mission that leave to appeal should be granted 
under Regulation 45(b) on the ground that the 
issues arising under the Rent Restriction Ordin­ 
ance and the Port-of-Spain Corporation Ordin­ 
ance are matters of great general and public 
importance. The grounds of appeal on which the 
Petitioner appealed to the Federal Supreme Court 
raise several questions of law concerning the 40 
proper interpretation of section 14 (l) (l) of 
the Rent Restriction Ordinance, under which a 
landlord may obtain an order for possession of 
premises required by law to be demolished and 
section 208 of the Port-of-Spain Corporation 
Ordinance, which gives the Corporation's Engineer- 
authority to require a building, or part thereof, 
to be taken down, repaired, or otherwise dealt 
with under certain conditions. For the Petitioner
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it was submitted that the answers to these ques­ 
tions affect the rights inter se of'all landlords 
and tenants, as well as the Port-of-Spain Corpor­ 
ation and the San Fernando Corporation whose 
engineer has the same powers under Section 201 
of the San Fernando Corporation Ordinance. It 
was also submitted that the rights of all pro­ 
perty owners may be affected, whether or not the 
property concerned has been leased or let.

10 For the Respondent, it was submitted that 
the question involved in this appeal fell with­ 
in a very narrow compass because it arose out of 
circumstances that were rare and unlikely to 
recur, namely a building being damaged in a cer­ 
tain manner and to a particular degree ty a 
windstorm that was of most unusual severity for 
Port-of-Spain. It was further submitted that 
there was no evidence that other cases arising 
out of the windstorm depended on the result of

20 this case or that there was any considerable
number of tenanted properties in respect of which 
notices might be issued under Section 208 (2) of 
the Port-of-Spain Corporation Ordinance. It was 
also submitted that, whatever the-decision was in 
respect of these questions of law, the order for 
possession must stand because it was also made 
pursuant to Section 14 (3) of the Rent Restric­ 
tion Ordinance and the decision in that respect 
was based entirely on findings of fact.

30 Counsel for Respondent referred the Court to 
the following passage from the judgment of."Myers 
C.J. in Associated Mote rists Petrol Co.Ltd-, v. 
Bannerman (No.2j 1943 N.2.L.R. 664, at p.666, 
when dealing with an application for leave to 
appeal under the corresponding provision in New 
Zealand law ;-

"There is nothing before the Court, in my 
opinion, to show that other claims are pend­ 
ing or that the lav/ as laid down by this 

40 Court has not been the rule actually in prac­ 
tice in mercantile and other offices in the 
past - that is to say, since the passing of 
the Shops and Offices Amendment Act, 1936; 
and there is nothing to show that any consid­ 
erable body of persons are interested in the 
subject-matter of this appeal, or the subject- 
matter raised thereby, or that there is any
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continued
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general desire on the part of employers or 
others who may "be interested to have this 
case carried further. The mere fact that, 
an important question of law may "be involv­ 
ed is not sufficient to bring the case 
within para, (b) of r.2. There must "be 
something more than thats it must "be 
shown to the satisfaction of the Court 
that the question involved in the appeal 
is one which, by reason of its great gener- 10 
al or public importance, ought to be carri­ 
ed further, and in my opinion, that has 
not been shown."

The full report is not available, but the 
foregoing quotation appears in the Supplement 
for I960 to Volume 2 of Words and Phrases 
Judicially Defined. In this passage, the learn­ 
ed Chief Justice is, in my view, enumerating 
some of the elements that might,, in the parti­ 
cular case before him, have made the question 20 
in issue one of great general or public impor­ 
tance. He was not intending that the elements 
listed were cumulative or constituted an 
exhaustive list, applicable to all applications.

The judgment sought to be appealed from is 
based in part upon the view that the altera­ 
tions made by the Respondent to the building 
after the windstorm were reasonable because 
(inter alia) the Respondents were in process of 
complying with the notice given under Section 30 
208 (2) of the Port-of-Spain Corporation Ordin­ 
ance. Consequently, the questions raised con­ 
cerning this notice are 'directly in issue. I 
do not accept the contention put forward on be­ 
half of the Respondent that the questions as to 
the effect of a notice under section 208, or 
even as to the effect of the specific notice 
given in this case, are questions that arise 
only because of the extraordinary windstorm 
which caused the damage. These questions arise 40 
irrespective of the cause of the state of the 
premises and therefore the answers do have a 
general effect on the powers of the two corpora­ 
tions under that provision, the rights of 
property owners when these corporations purport 
to exercise these powers and, if the properties
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are leased or let, the respective rights of 
landlords and tenants under the Rent Restric­ 
tion Ordinance. Nor is the matter confined 
to the condition of the "building in respect 
of which this notice is issued.' Notices may 
be issued under subsections (l), (2) or (3) of 
section 208 of the Port~of-Spain Corporation 
Ordinance and in each case, their enforcement 
is provided for by subsection (4). Moreover,

10 before a notice can be issued under sub­ 
section (1) or subsection (2), a condition 
must be fulfilled that the engineer has deem­ 
ed a certain state of affairs to exist. In 
the case of subsection (2) there are a number 
of such states that may be deemed to exist, 
none of which was specified in the notice, 
It seems to me, therefore, that it cannot be 
said that the questions involved in this 
aspect of the case are not of great general

20 or public importance in the circumstances ex­ 
isting in Trinidad merely because in this par­ 
ticular case they arise in consequence of a 
most extraordinary windstorm.
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Moreover, both in the court below and on 
appeal, one ground on which the order for 
possession was based, was that the notice in 
this case which required the Respondent to 
take down only certain parts of this building, 
was such as to cause the premises let to be a

30 "public or commercial building" that "is re­ 
quired by law to be demolished", to quote the 
relevant language of Section 14 (1) (l) of the 
Rent-Restriction Ordinance. This is a ques­ 
tion, the answer to which by this Court affects 
a far wider field than Trinidad and Tobago. 
For the identical provision occurs in eight of 
the ten Territories comprising The West Indies 
Federation and also in British Guiana where 1 
this Court exercises appellate jurisdiction,

40 and it is not uncommon in these days for legis­ 
lation dealing with powers of local bodies, or 
with public health, or town planning, to have 
provisions providing for demolition of 
buildings.

In my judgment, therefore, the"questions 
of law that arise concerning the interpretation
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of these two statutory provisions do devolve 
matters of great general and public importance, 
and there are substantial questions to be 
determined which ought to be submitted to Her 
Majesty in Council for decision.

Referring to the fact that the order for 
possession was also made under Section 14 (3) 
of the Rent Restriction Ordinance, even if the 
Respondent's contention is sound that this 
decision is based purely on findings of fact 
and therefore unlikely to be upset on appeal 
to the Privy Council (a contention upon which 
I express no opinion) that would mean only that 
an order for possession, based on the state of 
the premises at the time of the trial, should 
stand. Such an order does not dispose of all 
the claims of the Petitioner as set out in the 
original statement of claim.

10

For these reasons, I would grant leave to 
appeal under Regulation 45 (b) of the Federal 
Supreme Court Regulations, 1958 upon usual 
conditions.

20

(Sgd.) C. WY1IE 
Federal Justice.

Mr. Justice Archer:

I am also of the opinion that the questions 
raised by the applicant should be submitted to 
Her Majesty in Council for decision.

(Sgd.) C.V.H. ARCHER 
Federal Justice. 30
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No.23

ORDER GRANTING FINAL LEAVE TO 
APPEAL TO HER MAJESTY IN COUNCIL

IN THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT 

ON APPEAL PROM THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT. 

(Appellate Jurisdiction)

In the Federal 
Supreme C ourt

No.23

Order granting
final leave to
appeal to Her
Majesty in
Council
3rd May 1961

10

20

Civil Appeal No. 19 of 1959.
Territory: TRINIDAD & TOBAGO

BETWEEN

ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN 
trading as A, J. MAURITZEN & CO.

- and - 

GORDON GRANT & CO. LTD.

Appellant

Respondent.

Entered the 3rd day of May, 1961. 
On the 3rd day of May, 1961.

Before The Honourable Sir Eric Hallinan,
Chief Justice

Mr. Justice Lewis, and 
Mr. Justice Marnan.

UPON MOTION made unto the Court this day by 
Counsel for the above named Appellant for an 
order granting the said Appellant final leave to 
appeal to Her Majesty in Her Privy Council 
against the judgment of the Federal Supreme Court 
dated the 2nd day of November, I960, and the 
judgment of LIr. Justice Clement Phillips dated 
the 30th day of September, 1959, upon reading
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Majesty in
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continued

the Notice of Motion dated the 17th day of 
April, 1961, the Affidavit of Anthony Hamel- 
Smith sworn to on the 17th day of April, 1961, 
and the Certificate of the Registrar of the 
Court dated the 15th day of April, 1961, all 
filed herein, and upon hearing Counsel for 
the Appellant and Counsel for the Respondent;

THIS COURT DOTH ORDER

That final leave "be and the same is here­ 
by granted to the said Appellant to appeal to 
Her Majesty in Her Privy Council against the 
said judgments

10

AND THE COURT DOTH FURTHER ORDER

That the costs of this motion be costs in 
the cause.

G-ordon Renwick 
Registrar (Actg)

I certify that this is a true copy of 
the Original Order filed in the Registry of 
the Supreme Court of Judicature of Trinidad 
and Tobago.

Dated this 5th day of February, 1963.

GEORGE R. BENNY 
Acting Deputy Registrar.

20
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EXHIBITS

A.I.

September 30, 1958.

Messrs. A.J.Mauritzen & Co. 
2 & 4 St. Vincent Street, 
Port of Spain.

Dear Sirs:

We regret to inform you that we have been 
advised that repairing the damage done by the 
recent storm to property Nos. 2 & 4~St.Vincent 
Street, Port of Spain, would be quite un-econo- 
mical; consequently we do not propose to re­ 
pair the building.

In the circumstances, we enclose herewith 
a formal notice to quit, and trust you will 
soon be able to find other accommodation.

Yours faithfully, 
GORDON, GRANT & CO. LTD. 

Secretary.
MSJ/dh 
End.

A.2

September 30, 1958. 

To: Messrs.A.J.Mauritzen & Co.

Take notice that you are hereby required 
to quit and deliver up to us, possession of 
the portion of the premises at No.2 & 4 St. 
Vincent Street, Port of Spain, which you hold 
as a monthly tenant, on the 31st October, 1958, 
or at the end of the month of your tenancy, 
which will expire next after the end of one 
month from the date of the service of this 
notice. " ~ 

For and on behalf of
GORDON, GRANT & CO. LTD. 

Secretary.

Exhibits 

A.I

Letter,
Gordon Grant
& Co.Ltd. to
A. J.Mauritzen
& Co.
30th September
1958

A.2

Notice to 
Quit, Gordon 
Grant & Co. 
Ltd. to A.J. 
Mauritzen 
& Co.
30th September 
1958.
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Exhibits 

_A.3

Letter
A.J.Maurit-
zen & Co.
to Gordon
Grant & Co.
Ltd.
2nd October
1958,

2nd October, 1958.

A.3 

A.J.Mauritzen & Co.

Your Ref MSJ/dh 
Our Ref. AJM/mm.

Messrs. Gordon, Grant & Co.Ltd., 
6, St.Vincent Street, 
Port of Spain.

Dear Sirs,

We beg to confirm receipt of your letter and 10 
notice to quit dated 30/9/58, and note reason for 
same.

As soon as we can obtain other suitable 
office accommodation, or as soon as you can offer 
us other suitable accommodation, we will vacate 
the office which we occupy in your premises.

We would point out that the damage to the 
building was caused on the llth September, and 
today, three weeks later, not the slightest 
attempt has been made by yourselves in any way 20 
to alleviate the appalling conditions under which 
we have to carry on business. Quite apart from 
repairs, no effort has even been made to clear 
the existing debris which still litvers the 
passageway, despite many promises to have this 
done.

Meanwhile, as you are aware, we are suffer­ 
ing very serious inconvenience and damage from 
rain, not only from the damaged gallery, but 
from the leaking roof and gutter spout. These 30 
must be repaired immediately, if only temporarily, 
otherwise we will find ourselves forced to have 
them done ourselves on your account.

It was noticed by your tenants in 2/4 St; 
Vincent Street, naturally with great interest, 
that repairs to your main building which houses 
your own offices, were effected in record time. 
We understood your explanation of "first things 
first", but did not understand that, so far as 
we were concerned, this meant "Never". 40
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We very much regret the tone of this letter 
but find it impossible to express ourselves in 
any other way.

Yours faithfully, 

A. J. Mauritzen.

A.4

October 3, 1958.

Messrs. A.J. Mauritzen & Co., 
P.O. Box 471 

10 Port of Spain.

Dear Sirss

We acknowledge receipt of your letter of 2nd 
inst., and confirm ours of 30th September, 1958.

Having regard to what you state in Paragraph 
4 of your letter under reply, we give you due 
warning that we will not and do not give you any 
permission to interfere in any way with our build­ 
ing, of which you are a monthly tenant.

Yours faithfully, 

20 GORDON, GRANT & CO. LTD.

Secretary. 
MSJ/dh.

A.5.

Messrs.A.J.Mauritzen & Co., 
P.O.Box 471, 
Port of Spain.

October 7, 1958.

Exhibits,

A.3
Letter A.J. 
Mauritzen 
& Co. to 
Gordon Grant 
& Co.Ltd. 
2nd October 
1958 
continued

A.4

Letter Gordon
Grant & Co.
Ltd. to A.J.
Mauritzen
ft Co.
3rd October
1958.

Dear Sirs:
Further to our letter of 30th September and

A.5
Letter Gordon
Grant & Co.
Ltd. to A.J.
Mauritzen
& Co.
7th October
1958
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A.5
Letter Gordon 
Grant & Co. 
Ltd. to A.J. 
Maurit zen 
& Go.
7th October 
1958 
continued
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our-notice to quit, given to you on the same 
day, we enclose copy of not ice:which we have 
received from the City Council, directing"us 
to do certain demolition work on the premises 
which you are now occupying as our tenant.

We have written to the City Council acknow­ 
ledging their directions and stating that as 
soon as we get vacant possession from you and 
our other tenants, we will proceed to carry out 
the works which they require us to do.

Yours very truly, 
GORDON, GRANT & CO, LTD.

Secretary.
MSJ/dh 
End. (1)

10

A.6
Notice 
of City 
Engineer 
4th October 
1958

A.6.
C.R.PARRELL, B.Sc., A.M.I.C.E. 
City Engineer.

City Engineer's Office, 
Town Hall,

Port of Spain. 
4th October, 1958.

The Owner,
2, St.Vincent Street,
Port of Spain.

NOTICE

Your attention is directed to the condi­ 
tion of the building on premises assessed as 
No.2 St. Vincent Street, Port of Spain, which, 
as a result of damage done by the high winds 
some time ago is as under :-

(a) There is sufficient evidence that the 
anchorage of the roof of the main part 
of the building has been affected to • 
such an extent that its resistance to 
wind can no longer be considered satis­ 
factory.

20

30
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(b) The parapet wall along the southern and 
western sides of the building is cracked 
horizontally where it was bonded to the 
main walls of the building.

(c) The balcony over the footways on South
Quay and St. Vincent Street is "without a • 
roof and is not tied to" the "main "building, 
which causes the wall enclosing it to be 
unstable.

(d) There are cracks in the concrete columns 
and beams on the first floor.

You are therefore required under Section 208 
(2) of the Port of Spain Corporation Ordinance 
Chap.39 No.l to take down the roof, the parapet 
wall along the southern and western sides of the 
building, and the balcony over the footways on 
South Quay and St. Vincent Street within thirty 
(30) days of the date of this notice.

C. R. Farrell.
City Engineer.

Your Ref: MSJ/dh.
A.7

31st October, 1958.
Messrs.Gordon,Grant & Co.Ltd., 
St. Vincent St., 
Port of Spain.

Dear Sirs,
Further to your letters of the 30th ult.,and 

3rd and 7th inst., we regret to have to advise you 
that despite our efforts to obtain alternative 
accommodation to the premises we" occupy Here at 
2/4 St.Vincent Street, we have been completely un­ 
successful and are therefore presently unable to 
remove as per your request.

You may rest assured that we will continue to 
do our utmost to find reasonable suitable accommo­ 
dation at the earliest possible opportunity, and 
can only ask you to bear with us until such time 
as we are successful in our quest.

Meanwhile, we would also greatly appreciate 
it if you are able to aid us in any way in our 
search.

Very truly yours, 
A.J. MAUKITZEN.

Exhibits

A.6
Notice 
of City 
Engineer 
4th October 
1958 
continued

A.7

Letter A.J. 
Maurit zen 
& Co. to 
Gordon Grant 
& Co.Ltd. 
31st October 
1958
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Exhibits A.8

A,8
Letter 
J.D.Sellier 
& Co. to
A.J.Maurit-
?!? t °°\ A.J.Mauritzen & Co., 7th November 2_4 st , Vinoent Street,
1958.

13 St.Vincent Street, 
Port of Spain,

.Trinidad, 
7th November 1958.

Port of Spain.

Dear Sirs,

We have been informed by our clients Messrs, 
Gordon Grant & Co.Ltd. that on the afternoon of 
the 22nd September last after a heavy rainstorm, 
you interfered with the flooring of the premises 
which you occup^r of them as a monthly tenant 
thereby causing, water which had collected on your 
premises to seep through and damage the celotex 
roofing of the office below.

Our clients tell us that they have had to 
repair the damage and that the-cost of labour 
and materials amounted to $24"iOO~. .f "They also 
inform us that on the 5th instant, you again 
repeated your acts of nuisance and they have 
therefore instructed us to call upon you to de­ 
sist from any further -acts of this nature and to 
reimburse them in the sum stated above by the 
12th instant.

In addition, they wish to advise that inas­ 
much as your tenancy terminated on the 31st 
October last and you have not vacated the prem­ 
ises they propose to institute legal proceedings 
against you to eject you therefrom.

Yours faithfully, 

J. D. Sellier & Co.

10

20

30
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10

A.9

10th November,1958.

Your Ref: L!FdN:PJ 
Our Eef: AJM/mm.

Messrs.J.D.Sellier•& Co., 
13, St.Vincent St., 
Port of Spain.

Dear Sirs,

With reference to your letter of the 7th inst 
written on behalf of your clients, Messrs.Gordon, 
Grant & Co.Ltd., I emphatically deny the allega­ 
tion contained in the first paragraph thereof.

As regards the proposed"ejectment"proceed­ 
ings, I can assure you that the same will be con­ 
tested to the fullest extent.

Yours faithfully, 
A.J.Mauritzen.

Exhibits

A.9

Letter A.J.
Mauritzen
& Co. to
J.D.Sellier
& Co.
10th November
1958

A.10

9th December, 1958

20 Messrs.A.J.Mauritzen & Co. 
P.O. Box 47, 
Port of Spain.

Dear Sirs,

We would refer to our letter of October, 
enclosing copy of notice which we received from 
the City Council directing us to do certain 
demolition work on the premises, which you are 
now occupying as our tenant.

We have now been advised that certain parts 
30 of the building are in eminent danger of falling. 

Immediate steps, therefore, are being taken to 
remove the worst of these dangers.

Warning notices are being put up to this 
effect, and wish to draw these dangers to your 
attention, staff and customers.

A.10

Letter 
Gordon Grant 
& Co.Ltd. 
to A.J. 
Mauritzen 
& Co.
9th December 
1958.
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A10
Letter 
Gordon Grant 
& Co.Ltd. 
to A.J. 
Mauritzen 
& Co.
9th December 
1958 
continued
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In keeping with our promise that should we 
hear of any alternative accommodation we would 
advise you, we understand that Mr. Assee of 
Hotel Miramar, 52 South Quay, whom we understand 
has an office for rent at No.90 Frederick Street,

Yours very truly, 
GORDON" GRANT & CO. LTD. 
(Lumber & Hardware Dept.)

GCH/vr
G.C.Howden 

Director. 10

A.11

Letter
M. Hamel
Smith & Co.
to J.D.
Sellier
& Co.
17th December
1958.

A.11 
BY HAND

17th December, 1958.

Messrs.J.D.Sellier & Co., 
Solicitors &c., 
St.Vincent Street, 
Port of Spain.

Dear Sirs,
Re George Howden -v- A.LIauritzen 

jectment Complaint .E 20

We are instructed by our client Mr.H.A. 
Mauritzen to request you to obtain permission 
from your clients Messrs.Gordon Grant & Co.Ltd. 
for an engineer to inspect on his behalf the 
premises No.2-4 St.Vincent Street of which our 
client is tenant of a portion.

We should be obliged if you would give this 
request your immediate attention as our client's 
instructions are that portions of this building 
have actually been pulled down and work is con­ 
tinuing in this connection.

A request for this permission has already 
been, made by our Mr.Anthony Hamel-Smith to your 
Mr. Power shortly prior to 10 a.m. this morning 
and this letter is written in confirmation of 
that request.

Yours faithfully,
M. Hamel-Smith & Co.

30
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A.12

December 17, 1958.

Messrs. M.Hamel-Smith & Co. 
St .Vincent Street, 
Port of Spain.

Dear Sirs,

Re: George Howden -v- A.Mauritzen 
Ejectment Complaint

10 In reply to your letter of today's date our 
clients, Messrs.Gordon, Grant & Co.ltd., are pre­ 
pared to grant your client all facilities to 
inspect the portion of the premises which he 
occupies and the means of access thereto. Our 
clients are not prepared to give your client any 
further inspection of their "building.

As. pointed out by our Mr. Power to your Mr. 
Anthony Hamel-Smith our clients have no intent- 
tion, for the present, of in any way interfering 

20 with your client's portion of the premises of his 
means of access thereto.

Yours faithfully, 
J.D.Sellier & Co.

Exhibits 

A.12

Letter, J.D. 
Sellier & Co. 
to M. Hamel 
Smith & Co. 
17th December 
1958.

30

A.13

22nd December, 1958.

Messrs.J.D.Sellier & Co., 
Solicitors &c., 
13, St.Vincent Street, 
Port of Spain.

Dear Sirs,

Re George Howden -v- A.Mauritzen 
"E.-jectment Complaint".

We acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 
17th instant and are surprised to note that your 
clients are not prepared to give our client in­ 
spection of their building other than the premises 
which our client now occupies together with the

A.13

Letter, M.
Hamel Smith
& Co. to
J.D.Sellier
& Co.
22nd December
1958.
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Exhibits means of access thereto.

A.13 The grounds on which the present proceedings 
were commenced was that the premises were requir- 

Letter, M. ed for demolition and we have no doubt that your 
Hamel Smith clients intend to lead evidence of the condition 
& Go. to of these premises as a whole. 
J.D.Sellier
& Co. Our client is prepared to reimburse your 
22nd December clients, for any damage done, by their engineer as 
1958 a result of his inspection, though of course he 
continued assures us that no damage whatever would result 10 

from his inspection, or for any other loss which 
your clients may suffer thereby. Further our 
client is prepared to have your representative or 
representatives whether professional or otherwise 
present throughout the inspection. We may state 
specifically that our client is advised, that on' 
the inspection which has so far been carried out, 
there is no imminent danger of any portion of the 
existing building falling, other than the balcony 
overlooking South Quay and portions of the para- 20 
pet wall. Our client is however advised by his 
engineer that the work now being carried out on 
the premises may endanger the building actually 
in his possession and the occupants thereof.

We trust that in view of the above your 
clients will see the reasonableness 'of our 
request of the 17th instant and will permit the 
inspection requested.

Should your clients however have some good 
reason for refusing our request we feel sure 30 
that they will have no objection to disclosing 
it.

You will no doubt realise the urgency of 
this matter.

Yours faithfully, 

M. Hamel-Smith & Co.
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A.U

Messrs.M.Hamel-Smith & Co., 
St.Vincent Street, 
Port of Spain.

23rd December,1958.

Dear Sirs,

Re: G-eorge Howden vs. A.Mauritzen 
Ejectment Complaints

Exhibit s 

A.U

Letter, J.D. 
Sellier & Co. 
to M. Hamel 
Smith & Co. 
23rd December 
1958

In reply to your letter of the 22nd December 
10 1958 our clients are not prepared to give your

clients any further inspection than that set out 
in our letter of the 17th December, 1958.

It is our client's every intention to see that 
the work being carried on now does not endanger the 
portion of the premises occupied by your client or 
the occupants thereof.

Yours faithfully 
J.D.S.

A.15

20

30

23rd December, 1958.

Messrs. Gordon, Grant & Co.Ltd., 
Port of Spain.

Dear Sirs,

We confirm receipt of your letter of the 9th 
inst. contents of which we have noted.

With-reference to the premises belonging to 
Mr. Assee, situate at 90 Frederick Street, we 
thank you for your kindness in advising us that 
these are available. Unfortunately, in view of 
the nature of our business, you will understand 
that they are quite unsuitable, apart from being 
located much too far from Customs and the Wharves.

Meanwhile we have noted that your offices on 
the corner of South Quay and St.Vincent, i.e.

A.15

Letter, A.J.
Mauritzen &
Co. to Gordon
Grant & Co.
Ltd.
23rd December
1958
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Exhibits 

A.15

Letter, A.J.
Mauritzen &
Go. to Gordon
Grant & Co.
Ltd.
23rd December
1958
continued

A.16

Letter 
Gordon Grant 
& Co.Ltd. 
to A.J. 
Mauritzen 
& Co.
2nd January 
1959.

ground floor of No.2 St.Vincent Street, are not 
being used at all except for a small amount of 
storage. These offices are eminently suitable 
for our needs, and we would be very pleased in­ 
deed to take them over at any time agreeable to 
you. Will you please advise us the position re­ 
garding them at your earliest convenience? 
In advance, many thanks.

We take this opportunity of wishing you the 
compliments of the Season.

Yours very truly, 
A. J. Mauritzen.

Your Ref: GCH/vr. 
Our Ref: AJM/mm.

A.16
Port of Spain 
Trinidad,B.W.I.,

2nd January, 1959
Me ssrs. A.J.Maurit zen, 
2-4 St.Vincent Street, 
Port of Spain.

Dear Sirs,
We acknowledge receipt of yours of the 23rd 

instant, which came to hand on the 20th idem.
We regret to note that you do not consider 

the premises available from Mr.Assee at 90 
Frederick Street suitable for you.

With regard to your reference to the ground 
floor of our premises on the Corner of South 
Quay and St.Vincent Street, we have to advise you 
that it is not our intention to offer these prem­ 
ises for rent as they are being used in and are 
necessary for our business.

Your seasons greetings are reciprocated.
Yours faithfully, 

GORDON, GRANT & CO.LTD. 
(Lumber & Hardware Dept)

G.C.Howden, 
Dire ct or.
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157. 

B.l.

EHOTOGRAPH

(Respondent's Objection 
Rule 18 of the Judicial 
Committee Rules 195?)

B.I. 
Photograph



158.

B.j.

PHOTOGRAPH

(Respondent's Objection 
Rule 18 of the Judicial 
Committee Rules 1957)

B.5. 
Photograph



159. 

C.

SKETCH PLAN OF PREMISES,

Exhibits

C.
Sketch Plan 
of Premises



160.

P.I.

PHOTOGRAPH

Exhibits

F.I. 
Photograph



161.

"G.I."

Port of Spain 

Trinidad, 

6.10.1958.

Received from A.J.Mauritzen & Co. Forty four 
dollars - rent -.

For and on behalf of

GORDON, GRANT & CO.LTD.

Exhibits
"G.I."

Receipt 
Gordon Grant 
& Co.Ltd. 
to A.J. 
Mauritzen 
& Co.
6th October 
1958.

10 #44.00

for Cashier

postal stamp

20

"G.2."

Port of Spain. 

Trinidad, 

10.11.1958.

Received from A.J.Mauritzen & Co. Forty four 
dollars - rent -.

For and on behalf of 

GORDON GRANT & CO.LTD. 

For Cashier
#44.00

"G.2."

Receipt 
Gordon Grant 
& Co.Ltd. 
to A.J. 
Mauritzen 
& Co.
10th November 
1958.

postal stamp
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H.I.

PHOTOGRAPH

Exhibits

H.I. 

Photograph



H.3. 

PHOTOGRAPH

Exhibits

H.3. 
Photograph



164. 

H.4.

PHOTOGRAPH

Exhibits

H.4. 
Photograph

(Respondent's Objection 
to P.I, H.I, H.3 and 
H.4. Rule 18 of the 
Judicial Committee 
Rules 1957)
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"K.I."

October 7, 1958.

City Engineer 
Town Hall, 
Port of Spain.

Dear Sir,

We acknowledge receipt of your demolition 
order of'the 4th October in respect of our 
premises, 2 St. Vincent Street, Port of Spain.

It is not possible for us to commence work 
until the tenants on the premises quit and 
deliver possession to us.

We enclose copy of a letter which we have 
today written to our tenants. If our tenants 
do not comply with notice-to quit which we served 
on them on 30th September, we shall proceed to 
take ejectment proceedings against them.

Yours very truly,
GORDON, GRANT & CO.LTD. 

Secretary.

Exhibits 

"K.I."

Letter, 
Gordon Grant 
& Co.Ltd. 
to the City 
Engineer 
7th October 
1958.

30

"K.2."

17th October 1958.

The City Engineer, 
City Engineer's Office, 
Town Hall, 
Port of Spain.

Dear Sir,
Storm Damage - Premises 
No.2 St.Vincent Street.

nK.2."

Letter, 
Gordon Grant 
& Co.Ltd. 
to the City 
Engineer 
17th October 
1958.

Further txy your notice of the 4th October, 
1958, Ref:- G-33/58i and our letter of the 7th 
October, Ref: MJ/DH, we wish to advise you that 
we have requested Mr. William Ackelsberg,



Exhibits

"K.2."

Letter, 
Gordon Grant 
& Co.Ltd. 
to the City 
Engineer 
17th October 
1958 
continued

"K.3."

Letter, 
Gordon Grant 
& Co.Ltd. 
to the City 
Engineer 
3rd November 
1958.

166.

Contractor, to proceed with the demolition work 
as outlined in your notice, and also to lower 
the steel roof now in position to first floor 
level, in order to make the ground floor habit­ 
able for our Produce Department.

Work will commence as soon as the tenants 
have left the premises.

Yours faithfully, 
GORDON, GRANT & CO.LTD. 
(Lumber & Hardward Dept.) 10

"K.3."

3rd November, 1958,

The City Engineer,
The City Engineer's Office,
Town Hall,
Port of Spain.

Storm Damage - Premises - 
2 & 4 St.Vincent Street:

Dear Sir,

We-would refer to- your notice of the 4th 
October, Reference: G-33/53 regarding the above 
premises. Also our letters of the 7th and 17th 
October, Ref: GCH/vr.

With the exception of one tenant, the re­ 
maining occupants have now vacated the premises. 
We are now taking legal steps to have this 
tenant ejected and will keep you advised.

Yours faithfully, 
GORDON, GRANT & CO.LTD. 

(Lumber & Hardware Dept.)
G.C.Howden

Director.
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167.

"I"

Goimnuni cat ions to be addressed to the assessor! 

OCCUPIER OF THE PREMISES IS ASKED TO FORWARD 

THIS NOTICE TO THE OWNER; 

PORT OP SPAIN CITY COUNCIL; 

NOTICE OP ASSESSMENT - 1958

Date of Service (To be filled in 

"by Officer serving this Notice) 

8th March 1958.

Exhibits

"I"
Assessment 
Notice 1958 
8th March 
1958.

10 Premises - 2 - 4 St. Vincent Street

Owner or Reputed Owner - William Gordon Grant

Annual Rateable Value - #979.80.

Annual House Rate (1096 on the above) #97.980.

The annual house rate in respect of the year 
above named becomes due on the 1st day of March, 
1958, and will be received without any statutory 
increase until the 31st day of May, 1958.

H. W. Parrell 
Town Clerk.



THE PRIVY COUNCIL No. 21 of 1961

ON APPEAL
FROM THE FEDERAL SUPREME COURT OP THE WEST INDIES 

APPELLATE JURISDICTION, TRINIDAD

BETWEEN;

ALBERT JAMES MAURITZEN trading as
A.J. Mauritzen & Co. (Plaintiff) Appellant

- and -

GORDON GRANT AND COMPANY LIMITED
(Defendant) Respondent

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

MAPLES TEESDALE & CO.,
6, Frederick's Place,
Old Jewry, E.G.2.
Solicitors for the Appellant.

J.N. Mason & Co., 
41-44, Temple Chambers, 
Temple Avenue, E. C .4-. 
Solicitors for the Respondent.


